THE SYDNEY HIGH SCHOOL



THE RECORD

Vol. XCIV

2004



The Record 2004

The Journal of Sydney Boys High School Moore Park, Surry Hills NSW 2010

Volume XCIV

Table of Contents

Staff Directory 5
Editor's Comments8
Year 12 Farewell Assembly9
Prefects 10
Speech Night Address11
Academic Achievement List
ANZAC Day Assembly 17
Remembrance Day19
Salvete21
Valete 22
Class Lists
SRC
Peer Mediation40
Peer Support 40
Cadets 41
Chess 42
Titration 42
Foundation Day Assembly43
Open Day 44
Music 47
Boggabilla Exchange

Debating54
Library 58
Representatives 59
Summer Sports Assembly 60
Cricket 63
Basketball70
Tennis 85
Rowing 89
Swimming 104
Sailing 106
Water Polo 107
Winter Sports Assembly 109
Athletics 111
Rugby 112
Soccer 120
Cross Country 140
Rifle Shooting 143
Fencing 145
Skiing 146
Volleyball 147
List of Officers 153



Front Row: C.Barris (HT History), P.Bigelow (HT Mathematics), G.Davies (HT Languages), J.Beringer (Deputy Principal), Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), R.Dowdell (Deputy Principal), T.Dolan (AHT Social Science), R.Farrington (Sports Master), G.Stein (HT Physical Education). Third Row: C.Werner, J.Prorellis, J.Gorham, A.Fuller, B.Hayman, H.Howey, S.Codey, B.Opferkuch, C.Walles. Second Row: M.Luithle, V.Ockert, R.Miller, K.Jackson, D.Hespe, C.Harvey, C.Finnie, J.May (HT Welfare). Fourth Row: P.Scrivener, R.Dam, J.Rudd, G.McLachlan, G.Moody, R.Devlin, M.Mason, S.Storey. Fifth Row: E.Pearson, M.Smith, T.Ryan, E.Coan, B.McDermott, H.Tuthill, M.Gainford.

Staff

STAFF DIRECTORY

PRINCIPAL

Dr K A Jaggar BA DipEd MA(Syd) MEdAdmin EdD(NSW)

DEPUTY PRINCIPALS

Mr J Beringer BA(NE) DipEd(Syd) MEdAdmin(NSW) Mr R Dowdell BSc(Hons) DipEd(W'gong)

ENGLISH

Ms M Shepherd, BA (NE) MA (NSW) Head Teacher Ms M Boukatos BA DipEd(Syd) Ms J Bryden BA DipEd(Syd) Ms J Eggleton BA DipEd (Macq) Ms F Gazzola BA DipEd(W'gong) Mr G Gilligan BA DipEd(Syd) ATCL Mr M Jones MA DipEd(NSW) LLB(Syd) Ms A Kaye BA DipEd(Syd) MA(Macq) Mr E Pearson BA DipEd(NSW) Ms V Ross BA DipEd(Macq) Year 7 Adviser Mr M Selway BA DipEd(NSW) MA Med(Syd) Ms C Walles BA(NE) DipEd(NSW) MA(Syd) LTCL FTCL Mr N Whitfield BA(Hons) DipEd(Syd) GradCert TESOL(UTS)

HISTORY

Mr C Barris BA(NSW) DipEd(Syd) Head Teacher Ms B Berger BA DipEd(Macq) Year 11 Adviser Mr R Devlin BA(Hons) G'smith) DipEd(UWS) Ms L Gowran BA DipEd MA(Egyptology)(Macq) Mr A Hannon BA DipEd(Syd)

MATHEMATICS

Mr P Bigelow BSc(Syd) Head Teacher Mr R Boros BA DipEd(Syd) Mr E Choy BSc DipEd(NSW) Mr A Fuller BMaths DipEd(W'gong) Mr A M Gainford BSc BE(Chem)(Syd) DipEd(SydTC) Mr D Hespe BS(Houston) MEd(NSW) Mr C Kourtesis BA DipEd(Syd) Ms F Nesbitt TCert(LTC) Ms B Opferkuch BEd(Hons)(Syd) Mr P S Parker BSc(Hons) DipEd(Syd) Ms S Roessler BADipEd(NSW) Ms A Ward BSc(Hons)(Liv) MTeach(Syd)

SCIENCE

Mr M Kay BSc DipEd(NSW) *Head Teacher* Mr K Ambler DipTechSc(NSWIT) DipEd(STC) Mr T T Benett BSc(Ed) MEdAdmin(NSW) Mr P E Coan BAppSc(UTS) DipEd MEd CertGiftedEd(NSW) *Year 10 Adviser* Mr I Cox BSc(Hons) CertEd(Wales) Mr B Deeming BSc(Syd) DipEd(SydTC) ECC(NSTC) Ms S Gorney BSc(Hons)(Syd) DipEd(MCAE) Mr C Harvey BSc MEd MCogSc(NSW) Ms M Luithle BSc(NSW) DipEd(SIE) *Year 9 Adviser* Mr M Smith BSc(Macq) DipT(NTC) Mr B Webb BSc(Griffith)Dip Ed(UQ)

The Record 2004

Staff Directory

MODERN LANGUAGES and CLASSICS

Mr G Davies BA(Asian Studies)(ANU) DipEd(N'cle) *Head Teacher* Ms R Fleming BA DipEd(Syd) Mr M R Mason BA(NE) MGenStud(NSW) GradDip Ed(AFTS) Ms D Matsos BA DipEd(Syd) *Acting Head Teacher* Ms C Werner BA DipEd(Syd) Ms W Zhang BA(S'hai T U) DipEd(N'cle)

SOCIAL SCIENCE

Mr P Day BCom DipEd (NSW) Head Teacher Ms J Brewer BA (Syd) DipEd(NSW) Mr S Codey BA DipEd(Macq) Mr T Dolan BSocSc(Bristol) MCom(NSW) DipEd (SIE) Ms C Finnie BEd(Hons) EdD(Syd) Mr H Howey BCom(Syd) DipEd(NSW) Mr G Moody BCom(NSW) DipEd(SydTC) Mr R V Ockert BEc DipEd(Syd) GradCertHRM(Syd) Year 8 Adviser Mr S Storey DipT(AMCAE) Year 12 Adviser

TECHNOLOGY AND APPLIED SCIENCE

Mr J Fittler DipIA(STC) GradDipEd(NE) GradDipDes(UTS) Head Teacher Mr J Prorellis Bed(SCAE) Head Teacher Administration, Head Teacher, Admin & Year 12 Adviser Ms R Dam Bed(Syd) Year 10 Adviser Mr R Gifford Bed(Syd) Mr C Kesting BSc(Tech)(NSW) Mr P Scrivener Bed(IA)(N'cle)

CREATIVE ARTS

Mr N Morris BA(Art&Design)(Bradford) DipEd MEd(NSW) *Head Teacher* Ms J May BA DipEd(Syd) *Head Teacher Student Welfare* Mr S Fonti BA DipEd Ms D Gilmore DipMusEd (N'cle) Ms R Miller DipMusEd(SydCon) Ms S Plenkovich AssDipHlthSc(NE) BFineArts BArtEd(NSW) Ms H Tuthill DipEd DipP&D(SydTC)

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Mr G Stein BA MA(CSULB USA) DipPhysEd(SydTC) Head Teacher Mr R Farrington BCom(NSW) DipPysEd(WTC) Sportsmaster Mr B Hayman BPE Bed(ACPE) Mr T Ryan DipT(SydTC)

LIBRARY

Ms V Crothers BA DipEd DipIM(NSW)

SCHOOL COUNSELLORS

Ms E Harman BA(Syd) DipEd(STC) MA(Psych)(Syd) Ms S Plummer BA(NSW) DipEd(Syd) MEd(Psych)(UWS)

CAREERS ADVISER

Mr R Watson DipT(ASOPA) DipHRM(NSWIT)

Staff Directory

SCHOOL ASSISTANTS

Ms G McLachlan School Administration Manager Ms L Clarke Ms L Dwyer Ms H Huang Ms S Kearns Ms I Laird Ms J Lawson Ms R Meakin Principal's Assistant Ms B Mourtzouhos Ms J Newton Ms R Robson Ms N Rutland Ms S Schlederer Ms C White

ICT

Mr D Isaacs Mr J Rudd

GENERAL ASSISTANTS

Mr S Carlyle Mr N Patterson

Editor's Comments

The task before me in producing The Record 2004 retrospectively was challenging. There were a number of hurdles which had to be overcome. With the passage of time, memories become dim and developments in technology mean that files and photos stored on certain media remain where they are because there are no more devices which have the drives available to read and extract the data.

I am very grateful for the help given to me by teaching staff who took the time to identify a number of students in photographs. Robert Dowdell's assistance in extracting Class Lists, Salvete and Academic Merit Lists also made my task much less arduous. Mr Barry Bennett, parent of an Old Boy, also deserves mention for locating digital photos. Similarly, Melba Studios assisted in locating photos for this publication. Their premises suffered irreparable damage in a fire early in 2009 and many photographs were lost. I consider their willingness and ability to help invaluable. All assistance was given freely and in good humour. I can only imagine their astonishment when they received a call from me in 2011 to say I was compiling the 2004 Record!

Although this may be a slim volume on your shelf, it remains an honoured part of the history of Sydney Boys High School. You can't buy spirit!

Lynne Williams Editor



Year 12 Farewell Assembly Speech

Welcome to parents, guests, staff and the Year of 2004.

This is another day of celebration for the High Family. As parents, teachers or fellow students, we take time out on this last day of formal secondary schooling for Year 12, to honour them as a group and to reflect upon what they have achieved together. It is our hope as an institution that we stood for something in the lives of our departing students - that we had an impact upon them. If the school provided nothing more than a place in which to learn and teachers to provide instruction, High would not be the school we believe it to be. This school is unique because of its combination of students, teachers, parents, old boys, curriculum and location. Each year that mixture creates its own identity within a context of the same buildings, much the same routines and many of the same teachers. Diversity of self and group expression is encouraged within a framework of common aspirations and shared goals.

The class of 2004 will be remembered for a number of outstanding achievements. I am particularly impressed by the great efforts made last week to collect money for charity as a signature effort of Year 12 as a cohort. You raised nearly three times the amount that the class of 2001 did when it pioneered this type of end of year activity. Congratulations to all boys who participated. I would like to thank the School Prefects and their executive, Tom Miller, Liam Bennett and Tom Lung for their efforts in representing the school and modelling its values.

Ivan Guo has an unparalleled record in mathematics competitions. Tom Miller placed at the national schools swimming championship, and with Barry Dubovsky won a GPS medley relay. Daniel Wodak reached state final in public speaking and was in the state squad for debating. Ilia Zvedeniouk was the mainstay of our chess team that won the state schools title. Michael Hayes and Tim Neville delivered back to back GPS tennis premierships. Clement Lau and Kapil Khanna were involved in our 1st and 2nd grade volleyball premiership winning squad.

I would like to thank the efforts of the all rounders who combined their studies with GPS level competition in both seasons of Year 12 – a fine effort. Matthew Shiner, Ben Friis-O'Toole, Tom Miller, Ben Mitchell, Robbie Girdler, Kim Dickson, Kapil Khanna, Eric Harkins, Drew and Tom Hoare, Dominic Byrne, Clement Lau, Michael Hayes, Andrew Jacques and Hughoce Feng stand out. Solid contributions to sport in both seasons were also made by: Matthew Dwyer, Tom Lung, Liam Bennett, James Gerofi, Ben Glass, Warren Logge, Ben Shores, Fergus Ly, Jason Tan, Aman Saxena, Jacob Stott, Sheng Zhang, Yinan Zhang, Julian Chan, Oliver Lee, Benedict Lee, Allen Chen, Naga Chandrala, Williiam Luong and Sam Samarasinghe.

The traditions of our school and the quality of its sporting and co-curricular performances are reliant upon boys like these. Thank you to all those boys who competed in both seasons of sport at whatever level. High standard performance is supported by depth of participation. You are the role models for the next cohort of boys to emulate. Our expectations are that more than a third of our Year 12 students will compete in both seasons at first or second grade level.

In many ways High boys are fortunate to have experienced such a strong culture of academic achievement, sportsmanship, involvement in the arts and languages, participation in democratic leadership and governance structures and contribution to community through school service and charity work. Your unique school history, ethos and multicultural student body, combined with your shared strong intellectual abilities, should anchor you firmly through life to the values and traditions experienced here.

Herman Hesse once observed that "knowledge can be communicated but not wisdom". You young men have acquired a lot of knowledge. Your years at High have accelerated that process of acquisition. Life experiences will teach you judgement and the value of ethical behaviour. Right thinking leads to moral decision making and to right action.

Australian society needs you to grow further in your tertiary studies and subsequent careers so that you can share in determining what kind of future Australians will make for themselves. I hope that you all grow as persons and become knowledgeable and wise. I wish you all the best of fortune in your life journeys and thank you for what you have added to the proud story of our fine school.

Dr K A Jaggar, Principal September 2004



SPEECH NIGHT

and

120th ANNUAL PRIZE GIVING

Occasional address by Mr Peter Crittle

Principal's Address

Special guests, Mr Peter Crittle, our occasional speaker, staff, parents, students of the class of 2003 and prize winners – welcome to our 120th Speech Night. On these occasions I am very pleased to be able to highlight some of the school's activities and honour the accomplishments of its students.

2003 was a year of exploration and experimentation in several areas. We spent guite some time researching issues for our Strategic Plan 2004-6. A staff/student survey revealed what was preoccupying the school - a new or extended library and more access to computers. The school family will really have to focus and pull together to make the vision of a new library by 2008 a reality. We investigated a move towards seven lines in the timetable to accommodate out of hours classes, sports training clashes, music rehearsals and extra electives. Compacted senior curriculum and structured study periods in the senior school would have been necessary. The staff rejected the concept of supervised study periods. On the other hand, the move towards two sports afternoons, Wednesdays for Years 9-12 and Thursdays for Years 7 & 8, was discussed and accepted in principle for implementation this year. I am pleased to be able to report that not only was this initiative introduced into an already complicated timetable by Bob Dowdell, but also it appears as though most sports are witnessing some benefits from the change. The experiment with structured subject acceleration, pioneered by industrial arts in 2002, was taken up by modern history in 2003. Geography students will be accelerating this year and we hope that students in English, visual arts and music might also be inspired to follow the successful lead of their peers. Cohort progression as a norm for all students is fracturing. I hope that a learning culture of personal planning and acceptance of responsibility for individual progress replaces it.

Late in the year I was to discover that when confronted by "many tasks severe" "sincere efforts" and "courage, bold and strong" do not necessarily overcome them. Perhaps our school song needs some amendment to alert boys to the power of political persuasion. Most regrettably, I was forced to "reconsider my position" [I think that is the correct euphemism] on the Ascham proposal. Eighteen months of effort by guite a number of people did not bear fruit in the end. It was a great pity that we could not agree on a way to move forward. The future of the Outterside Centre is now in the hands of the school community that claimed such a stake in the future of its operations. If medium to long term commercial relationships with other natural users - private rowing schools - are not to be brokered, then financial support from the School Family must be forthcoming in their stead. If our facility is to be perceived as a privately funded public asset even though it is plainly owned by an incorporated entity, it is up to us all to support it financially.

Academic Results

Our 2003 HSC results were of good quality. Band 6 numbers increased by 7.3% 15% of reported UAIs were at 99 or above - the best result for six years. Premier's Awards winners increased by 73% on 2002 to 26. UAIs above 90 were on the six-year average of 114. The cohort result for 90 UAIs was slightly below average at 66.7%. Reported UAIs below 80 were less than 2%. Over 95% of the cohort gained entry to the five major metropolitan universities. This result was slightly above the nine-year average of 94%. There was a big increase in students entering science related courses at 16%. Combined law was higher at 11%. There were fewer students in the commercial area at 26%, engineering attracted 13% and Arts degrees, 7%.

Sports Results

Tennis

The big result for 2003 was the GPS premiership win by first grade tennis. They were also runners up at CHS level to Lismore. They came a strong fifth at the National Tennis Teams Challenge in Wagga Wagga. Ably led by Ruo Li, the team was: Michael Hayes, Ryan Biancardi, Tim Neville, Tom Lung, Evan Solomons and reserve Kim Dickson. Michael Hayes, Ruo Li and Ryan Biancardi were selected in the Combined GPS team.

Rifle Shooting

The first grade rifle team (Andrew Jacques, Daniel Comben, Wilson Chong, Mark Boere, Christopher Budd, Michael Li, Jeffrey Tsang, and Joshua Scharfegger) won the GPS premiership. They won the Rawson Cup and the NRA Shield. Wilson Chong, Andrew Jacques and Michael Li were selected in the Combined GPS Rifle Team.

Soccer

High first grade were undefeated runners up in the GPS competition. One draw too many cost us the title. Matthew Mulroney, Hugh James and Ali Alsamail made Combined GPS first grade. Michael Walder and Pat Bazin were selected in second grade, with Sen Mitsuji in the 3rd XI.

Volleyball

High won the Sydney East Area Knockout and the inaugural open competition in volleyball as a trial GPS sport. Nigel Panagopka won a full scholarship to the AIS. Yaegan Doran and Keith Wong were selected to represent NSW in the U16 Australian Championships.

Athletics

At the GPS Athletics carnival Paul Watzlaff won the open 3000 metres championship and was third in the 800 and 1500 metres. Jacob Stretton was first in the U16 years high jump. Frank Jin won the U14 years long jump and was third in the 100 metres. Jih Tan won the 13 years 100 metres. Sydney High won the Eastern Suburbs Zone athletics carnival for the 12th consecutive year.

Rowing

At the Head of the River the second Year 10 VIII rowed to a strong 2nd place. The 3rd Year 10 VIII finished 3rd. At the NSW Championships (CHS) :

High rowers were 1st and 2nd in the championship VIIIs, 1st in the U16 double scull, 1st & 3rd in the U17 quad scull, 1st and 2nd in the championship IVs and 1st in the U16 single scull.

Cricket

Glenn Carroll and Peter Levido were selected in the Combined GPS cricket team. High won the Cec Rubie trophy from Melbourne High. In the Davidson Shield Knockout the team made it to the last 16.

Swimming

At the school swimming carnival in 2003, Andrew Leis broke the under 14 50m breaststroke record; and Tom Miller bettered the open 100m & 200m freestyle times set by Olympic Medallist Graham Brewer in 1976. Kenny La, Andrew Reis, Ellis Louie, Barry Dubovsky and Tom Miller were selected in the Combined GPS Swimming Team. Tom Miller and Andrew Reis made it to the Australian Age Championships in Brisbane. Andrew Reis' success at the All Schools Carnival at Homebush qualified him to represent NSW at the national titles in Hobart.

Cross Country

Nadeeka Jayarathna ran a close second in the GPS open Cross Country Championships.

Basketball

High were runners up in the Raschke Cup. Three GPS representatives were selected in combined teams.

Rugby

Jakheb Matthews played a record 25 first grade games of rugby for High. Daniel Thomas was selected to play in the NSW Under 16 Team. Rhys Gencur was selected in Combined GPS 3rd grade. Lachlan Mitchell and Tom Andrews were reserves for the 3rd XV.

Sailing

Oliver Pickles and Eddy Blaxell won the CHS Pacer class championship at Lake Macquarie.

Table Tennis

Secondary Schools Championship finalists: Yeou Kang Shaw, Edward Pham, Rou Li, Austin Hong.

Fencing

David Grenet, Kit Axelrod and Sean Chen won bronze at the Australian Fencing Association Championships at Newington.

Co-curricular

Debating

Angus Ng, Hamish Nairn, Evan Solomons, and David Grenet won the Hume Barbour Trophy for High for the 22nd time. The GPS Seconds Debating team, Daniel Wodak, Liam Bennett and Tanvir Ahmed were undefeated champions.

Michael Coutts, Moussa Farhat, Anthony Morris, Raymond Rocca, and Kelvin Yu won the state Year 7/8 debating competition. William Clegg, Thomas Kaldor, Mitchell Seow, and Gabriel McManus were defeated in the state final of the Commonwealth Bank Junior debating competition. Hamish Nairn, Evan Solomon and Daniel Wodak were selected in CHS debating teams. Hamish Nairn was selected in the NSW debating team which went on to take the National Championships in Brisbane. Hamish also made it to the final of the Plain English Speaking Award Competition.

Music

Daniel O'Keefe and Robert Chen were selected in the NSW State Schools Symphonic Wind Orchestra. Thomas Norrie, Raj Kumar, Adam McKenzie, Harry Walker and Robert Chen were selected in the NSW Public Schools Instrumental Ensembles. Adam McKenzie, James Gerofi, Thomas Norrie and Raj Kumar, were selected to attend the State Senior Music Camp.

Chess

Ronald Yu was the youngest ever City of Sydney chess champion. In the Young Masters tournament Ronald was the only undefeated player. He went on to represent Australia in Greece in the World Junior Chess Championships. The senior chess team (Thien Vuong, Ilia Zvedeniouk, Alex Feldman, Mark Liang and Opal Wu) won the NSW All Schools Championship.

John Shin (Year12) won the McDonald's Performing Arts Challenge – verse speaking section. Stas Madorski (11) and Henry Zou (11) were selected in the NSW Public Schools Senior Drama Ensemble. The Year 11 Ancient History class won the regional final of the Macquarie University Ancient History Drama Festival.

Hugh James won the Eastern Suburbs section of the SMH Young Writer of the Year Competition.

Sriram Srikumar was chosen to represent Bondi District at the State SRC Conference.

Academic Competitions

George Zhong won a gold medal in the Chemistry Olympiad in Athens. Ivan Guo represented Australia at the 44th International Mathematical Olympiad in Tokyo. He also won a medal and a BH Neumann Certificate for attaining a perfect score in the Australian Mathematics Competition. Charles Qin earned a medal for the second year in a row. Tony Chen (12) and Anthony Wan (8) earned medals in the Australasian Schools Science Competition. Matheepan Sivagnanasundaram was 1st in Australasia in the Australian and New Zealand Economics Competition: Tony Chen, Max Kletski and Han Xu also won prizes. The highest mark in their year level in the state for the Australasian Schools Computer Skills Competition: Matthew Cousins (Year 9), Gabriel McManus (Year 10) in computer science; Jiang Huang (Year 10) and Rupert Shuttleworth (Year 12) in computer literacy. In the **UNSW School Mathematics Competition Awards** Vinh Pham was 2nd and Vinoth Nandakumar 3rd in the junior division. In the senior division, Ivan Guo was first, while Charles Qin and George Zhong won prizes and Certificates. In the Business Studies Competition, seven students were awarded High Distinctions. Matheepan Sivagnanasundaram, Tony Chen and Han Xu received cash prizes. In the Economics Competition, 10 year 12 students received High Distinctions. Matheepan Sivagnanasundaram achieved the highest score in the competition. Opal Wu and Max Kletski also earned prizes.

Zhongxiao Sun of 7R was a finalist in Ozspell – Australian Spelling Championship 2003.

Kaivan Vaidya topped the school in the **Australian Geography Competition**. He was placed in the top 0.3% of the state. Other top performers (top 2% of the state) included: Tom Zhang, Richard Liu, Gabriel McManus, (all equal top 0.5% of the state) Tim Mazid, Vinh Pham, Daniel Guo, (all equal) Weir Qian, Peter Gordon, Daniel Ong, Paul Wong, Yuk Lun Yeung, Sririam Srikumar, Joel Kamerman, Fredrick Lee, Lixang Li, (all equal) Anthony Huynh, Peter Lieu, Phillip Roser, Jacob Stretton, Edward Wang, Paul Watzlaff, Matthew Wong, Andrew Wu (all equal).

On a personal note, I was strongly supported by John Beringer as Acting Principal, Bob Dowdell and Con Barris (Acting Deputy) in my prolonged absence mid-year as a crew member on KAZ chasing the record for a non-stop, unassisted circumnavigation of Australia. Despite a false start, a

Speech Night

broken finger, many days of modifications and maintenance and several postponed departures, the campaign was very successful and safely completed in 37 days, well inside the record. My year concluded by achieving a yachting milestone of 25 Sydney to Hobart races. I would like to thank everybody who helped me to accomplish my sporting goals, particularly Mr David Pescud, owner / skipper of KAZ and Kerry and Sophie, my family who carried on stoically in my absence

This year's concluding remarks depart from my usual practice of quoting poetry. Tonight, the words of Thich Nhat Hanh, Vietnamese monk, activist and Nobel Peace Prize nominee, resonate with my perception of our times. He writes:

"People kill and are killed because they cling too tightly to their own beliefs and ideologies. When we believe that ours is the only faith that contains the truth, violence and suffering will surely be the result...Do not think the knowledge you now possess is changeless absolute truth. Avoid being narrow-minded and bound to present views. Learn and practice nonattachment from views in order to be open to receive others' viewpoints'. To me, this is the most essential practice of peace". (Living Buddha, Living Christ, p.2)

Mr Hanh's ideals may be very hard to put into practice. Nevertheless, his example is a worthwhile model. To be passionate about what we are doing or saying is one thing, to be blinkered and intransigent is quite another. As we honour your achievements here tonight and wish you all the best for your various tertiary endeavours, I hope that as the graduating cohort of 2003, you will make the transitions from school to university to working life guided by a balanced set of viewpoints to which you are not so excessively attached that your ability to really listen to others who hold different interpretations of the important questions of living to your own, is impaired. Well done and good fortune to you all!

Dr K A Jaggar Principal



The Big Three Liam Bennett (School Vice Captain), Thomas Miller (School Captain), Thomas Lung (Senior Prefect)

Academic Achievement List 2004 – Years 7–10

SEMESTER ONE

Year 7

Bryant APOLONIO Alasdair BROWN Jarrod CHAN Matthew CHAN **Benjamin DIEP** Nicholas DIMITROPOULOS Matthew DINH **Bobby ESAEV** Stephen GAROFANO Jeremy IRELAND Sidharth JACOB **Brandon JIANG** Roshan KASHYAP Christian KATSIKAROS Danny LAM Brian LAU Matthew LAU James LEE Jacky LI Victor LIM Daniel I O Edward LU Mark LUCCHITTI **Ritam MITRA** Hung NEO Jason NGUYEN Thomas NGUYEN Plini ROESSLER-HOLGATE Johan SANTOSO Daniel SHAN Nevin SPOLJARIC Leonard TENG Matthew TONG Jack WACHSMANN Samuel WAN Thomas WILSON

Year 8 Fric ANG Ishan **BAPAT** Michael BOCK Tony CAI William CHAN David CHANDRAKUMAR Daniel CHIM Matthew COUTTS Jun DAI Yiming DENG Jonathan DIOLASO Pina DU David FAN **Richard HUA** Remv JI Albert KIM Nathan KWOK Kenny LA Alexandro LAI Sean LEF Nathan LIEU Simon LIU Georae LO Peter LUU **Calum MARTIN** Muhamed MEHMEDBASIC Edwin MONTOYA ZORRILLA **Brynley PFULL** Paul PHUAH **Ricky RATNAYAKE** Harrison **RFID** Alex SHAPILSKY I-cheng SHIH Marco SUN Lucian TAN Andrew TANG Daniel VIJAYAKUMAR Phil WU Simin YANG

Year 9 Jacky AU David CHEN Edward DENG Howard FAN Moussa FARHAT **Reuben GEORGE** Dakshika GUNARATNE David HU Sriram JEYARAMAN Frank JIN Aditya KESWANI Kevin KIM Amadeus KLOCKER David KUMAGAYA Joseph LAI Alexander I FF Kevin LEE **Beniamin LIU** Martin LIU Martin Han LIU John LUU Anthony MORRIS Albert NG Victor NGUYEN Ji-Kwang PARK Blaise PRENTICE-DAVIDSON **Raymond ROCA** Wen SHI Matthew SIN Steven SONG **Eugene STADNIK Bill SUN** Alan TAN Nguyen TRAN Anthony WAN Sivang WANG Cambridge WONG Jeffrey XIE **Richard XU** Louis YANG Edward YAO Kelvin YU Steven YUAN

Year 10 Faraz AMIN Stephen BURKE Roger BURRELL David CAO Aaron CHAN Lona CHEN **Benjamin CHOW** Samuel GRIBBLE Steven GUO Edward HIBBERT Chung HO Kevin HO Kenny HUANG Shafat HUSSAIN Anthony HUYNH Naziful ISI AM Adrian JEYENDRA Kevin KIM Joon KWON **Kieran LEONG** Henry LIU **Richard LIU** Bernard LO Angelo LU Kevin MAK Gajaba MANAMPERI James MORGAN Ramesh NITHIYENDRAN Edward PHAM Jack PHU Weir OIAN Labib RAHMAN Tharig RAZEEN Chong SHAO Sriram SRIKUMAR Sahir SYED Miruthulan THAYAPARAN Senthil **THILLAINADESAN** Alan TRIEU Tanvir UDDIN Kaivan VAIDYA Alan WONG Francis WONG Thomas WONG Yuk-Lun YEUNG

SEMESTER 2

Year 7 **Bryant APOLONIO** Yiming CAO Matthew CHAN Simon CHENG Tasneem CHOUDHURY Nicholas DIMITROPOULOS Matthew DINH David FAN Stephen GAROFANO Jeremy IRELAND **Brandon JIANG** Christian KATSIKAROS Vincent KHOU Phillip KURTS Danny LAM Victor LAM Brian LAU Matthew LAU Jacky LI Kang LIM Victor LIM Edward LU Mark LUCCHITTI Maxeem MIKHA Jason NGUYEN Kent NGUYEN Thomas NGUYEN Shane PONRAJ Daniel SHAN Avish SHARMA Wilson SZET Joshua TASSELL Leonard TENG Matthew TONG Samuel WAN Thomas WILSON Jeffrey WONG

Year 8

Eric ANG Ishan BAPAT Michael BOCK Tony CAI William CHAN David **CHANDRAKUMAR** Daniel CHIM Matthew COUTTS Jun DAI Yiming DENG David FAN **Richard HUA** Kartik IYER Remy JI Albert KIM Nathan KWOK Sean LEF Alvin LEUNG Nathan LIFU Simon LIU Georae LO Bernard LUNG Peter LUU Kiril MICKOVSKI Edwin MONTOYA **ZORRILLA** Ishan NADKARNI Adrian NG Paul PHUAH **Rickv RATNAYAKE** Harrison REID Alex SHAPILSKY Marco SUN Lucian TAN Andrew TANG Simon TING David VIEN Daniel VIJAYAKUMAR Jack WANG Simin YANG Alex YEUNG

Year 9 Jacky AU Michael COUTTS Edward DENG Howard FAN Moussa FARHAT Matthew FETHERSTON Reuben GEORGE David HU Sriram JEYARAMAN Frank JIN Aditya KESWANI Amadeus KLOCKER David KUMAGAYA Alexander LEE Kevin LEE Jeffrey LEUNG Martin Han LIU John LUU Anthony MORRIS Albert NG Victor NGUYEN Ji-Kwang PARK Raymond ROCA Wen SHI Matthew SIN Steven SONG **Eugene STADNIK** Alan TAN Jamie TAO David TRAN Nauven TRAN Raymond TRAN Anthony WAN Richard XU Louis YANG Richard YANG Edward YAO Kelvin YU

Year 10

Faraz AMIN Stephen BURKE Roger BURRELL David CAO Aaron CHAN Long CHEN **Robin CHEN Beniamin CHOW** Samuel GRIBBLE Steven GUO Edward HIBBERT Chung HO Kevin HO Anthony HUYNH Naziful ISLAM Adrian JEYENDRA Kevin KIM Joon KWON **Kieran LEONG** Peter LIEU Henry LIU **Richard LIU** Angelo LU Martin LUNNEY Kin Jina LY Kevin MAK Gajaba MANAMPERI **Ramesh NITHIYENDRAN** Edward PHAM Jack PHU Labib RAHMAN Malik RAZEEN Chong SHAO Sahir SYED Miruthulan THAYAPARAN Christopher TO Alan TRIEU Tanvir UDDIN Kaivan VAIDYA Alan WONG Francis WONG Thomas WONG Yuk-Lun YEUNG Michael 7HOU

Anzac Day Assembly

Distinguished guests, staff and students. Welcome to our traditional Anzac Day Assembly. The purpose of this gathering is to make sure that in every state school a ceremony is held to honour those who have died in this country's wars or in international conflicts affecting our citizens. Today, we make time available for reflection on the nature of war itself. Despite the necessity to hold the ceremony well in advance of the actual national holiday, this assembly is nevertheless one of the most important on the calendar, because of its personal, cultural and national significance. The state education system needs to make a strong statement about its support for this special day. As custodian of cultural continuity, our public education system has the obligation to emphasise the importance of national days. The Anzac Day tradition is inextricably linked to our sense of what it means to be an Australian. It is part of our mythology that we came of age as a nation as a result of the Gallipoli campaign. Anzac Day has evolved as a guintessentially Australian celebration. Dawn services and marches are followed by two-up games, egalitarian yarn spinning and carousing by the remnants of military units reunited for the one day of the year. At our ceremony, it is important that the human qualities of self sacrifice, courage, mateship, humour and stoicism, so abundantly displayed in a bitter and unsuccessful contest of arms, should be invoked by stories about Anzac Day and the months of heavy fighting that followed. We should respect those who did their duty and those serving in East Timor and Iraq. We all should reflect upon what defines aspects of our heritage and identity.

At this assembly last year I was concerned that the recently concluded war in Iraq was about to embroil Australia in a messy occupation, essentially unjustified unless weapons of mass destruction were to be discovered in Iraq. The invasion was also justified on the grounds that the cause of international war against terror would be advanced. I alluded to the cynical possibilities luring us to be involved in a war for 'regime change'- however desirable that may have been. Did we finally go to war for a free trade deal with the United States, a revival of wheat and live sheep sales to Iraq and a stabilisation of the oil price? Or was it all really a revenge invasion by Bush the Younger to finish off his father's war aims which we were seduced into



joining because of our sycophantic support for the ANZUS Alliance? Much of what I feared then would happen, has happened since. The occupation has been messy and deadly. Law and order have not been restored. Military and civilian casualties continue to mount. The coalition forces are viewed by the people they sought to make free, as invaders, not liberators. Recent very serious terrorist attacks in Spain sparked a new crisis. This week the USA has had its worst casualties since the invasion. Flash points like Falluja undermine any perception that the US and its allies are in control. Major military operations are being undertaken today. As the date for a transfer of political authority draws nearer, power groups in Iraq are flexing their muscles, trying to demonstrate to the people who should lead them. Afghanistan, the front line in the war on terror, has not been reconstructed by its 'liberators'. Irag is not stable enough for serious reconstruction to begin. Without reconstruction, invaded societies become a breeding ground for terrorists. The world is irrefutably not freer of terrorism than before the invasion of Iraq. The players have changed but the game goes on – personal martyrdom through suicide bombing and larger scale attacks on soft targets in transport and public places. The tactics of Palestinian terror have been internationalised.



Political fall out in Australia has followed the startling turn of events in Spain. Only last week we were witness to an unseemly dispute about accounts of intelligence briefings made by experts who formulate Australia's Iraq policy and the likelihood of Saddam Hussein really having stockpiles of weapons of mass destruction. Clearly, the quality of the intelligence upon which our government relied to support its decision to join the 'coalition of the willing' was questionable. Now, the political dispute is about when to bring our service personnel home. We need to honour our commitments to our allies but also to act ethically and admit to our mistakes. As soon as possible, Iragis need to be masters of their own destiny. As soon as is practicable, our personnel should return home. The complexities of getting involved in the affairs of another country are now only too apparent. Crises develop lives of their own and run their courses unpredictably. Such is the nature of warfare.

During today's assembly we turn our attention to our honour board with the names of those Old Boys of High who gave their lives in the service of their country. Beneath this long list of the lost we lay our wreaths of remembrance. Our thoughts turn to the millions who have died in wars. We hope that war will not touch us, our families, our neighbours, our friends. Sadly, for many of us, this is not the case. Young men in the assembly might well consider how it would feel if they were the ones being asked to answer their country's call. It is the tragic waste of war that leaves the most lasting impression, as we imagine this afternoon the possible productive futures of those who never came home to grow old.

During the school vacation I exhort all of you here to do something on Anzac Day to commemorate the occasion. We will be represented again by our marching band and cadets. Our cadets are forming an honour guard in Hyde Park today for the Department of Education's Anzac Day service, with one of our students as master of ceremonies. I hope that a tradition of High involvement in Anzac Day has begun. Do not while away the day as a public holiday. Get involved and demonstrate a 21st century version of that spirit of collegial endeavour so wonderfully exhibited on 25 April 1915.

Dr K A Jaggar Principal

Remembrance Day 11 November 2004



The eleventh hour of the eleventh day of the eleventh month marks the signing of the Armistice, in 1918, which signalled the end of the Great War. At this time, the guns of the Western Front fell silent after more than four years of continuous warfare.

War is the great divider of the world's people, but also the great uniter – in that no-one on this planet has not been affected by war in some way or another. Whether it is through our grandfathers who fought in the Second World War, for any side, or through people living in the middle of any one of the dozens of smouldering or exploding conflicts in the developing world today: war concerns us all. That is what makes this day so important. It is this great common link between us that compels us to remember and reflect on war.

Today is in no way a day to glorify war. It is a day to think about the meaning of war and its realities, and to realise that there is no prestige and there are no victories in war. It is a day to commemorate those who have been lost as we yet again fail to learn the lesson that has been taught countless times throughout history. Between 1899 and 1973, over 100 000 Australians have died in conflicts starting with the Boer war, in which 606 Australians died, through to the Vietnam conflict, which claimed 520 Australian lives. The first and second world wars took 61 000 and 39 000 Australian lives respectively, huge numbers in our small population, especially when you think that they were mostly young men. But our losses are a drop in a vast ocean when looked at on a global scale.

The destruction that war has left over the years is dramatic and widespread. War has damaged all nations. Among all the countries of the world, deaths during the period of the first World War amounted to roughly 15 million, while those during the second World War reached an astonishing 55 million.

Australia has in fact been relatively fortunate in that conflict has rarely been brought to our own territory, and therefore our loss of life has been comparatively small. During World War II, for example, Germany lost well over 5 million people. More surprising and shocking still, 10 million Chinese died during this same period, of which a large majority were civilians.

More recently our experience with war has been with peace-keeping efforts, such as in East Timor, and more notably our contribution to the US-led 'War On Terror' and the consequent invasion of Iraq. This experience of war has been very much an impersonal one for most Australians. Despite the





fact that since the Vietnam war we have been able to watch world conflicts on TV, most of us are very ignorant of the realities of the Iraqi conflict. Few Australians have had a direct experience of the nation which was left after the USA declared the second Gulf War officially over last year. None of us deal with the sporadic acts of aggression that kids in Iraq do. And none of us live in a country with a shattered political order, a devastated economy and a society whose way of life has been uprooted.

If we are not directly involved in war, it is hard to realise its impact and its human costs. It is easy enough to go along with the decisions of our leaders and accept that they are right when we are not confronted each day with the ramifications of war as you would be if you lived in the Middle East, for example. But what we all need to do on this day of remembrance is attempt to reflect on war, and consider its costs, its losses and, ultimately, its futility. If we are unable to understand this basic lesson, history will continue to repeat itself and wars will rage on into the future. Finally, in remembrance, we must reflect on those who have been forced to personally experience war's costs and futility before us. It is these 100 000 Australians who have died, and many more who have served, and those billions who have been involved in war globally whose memory obliges us to consider the consequences of war. If we forget about these people we will never learn war's lesson. Most of all, we do not do them honour and justice if we do not consider the harsh realities of war for ourselves, and use this reflection to prevent war.

Don't let these millions of global deaths go in vain. They may have died in wars for one reason or another, as fighters or as civilians, but what unites them all is their common experience of the horror of conflict. This common experience ensures that every last one of these people would hope that no-one dies in the same way ever again, and that war is prevented.

We will remember them.

Tom Kaldor

Salvete

The following boys have joined the school since the end of 2003. We wish them well in their endeavours.

YEAR 7

Class 7E

ABEYSURIYA Nishan, ALAM Aqeeb, APPLETON Louis, BELL Joshua, BINNS Samuel, BURNHAM Sam, BURSTON Timothy, CHAN Michael, DESMOND Patrick, DIMITROPOULOS Nicholas, EVANS Christopher, HOANG Simon, IRELAND Jeremy, LAM Danny, LAU Robert, LEE Felix, LEE James, LIM Victor, MITRA Ritam, NAM David, OSINSKI Matthew, PAN William, PNG Lawrence, REEVES Cameron, RIDGES Nelson, STOJANOVIC Denis, TASSELL Joshua, WACHSMANN Jack, WANG Jeffrey, WONG Matthew

Class 7F

ASTAFIEV Grigori, CHAN William, CHEN Clement, DONG Stephen, FENG Richard, HE Stanley, HI Desmond, HOPKINS Anthony, HUYNH Richard, KAYES Masnun, LEI Sonny, LIM Timmy, LIN William, LU Edward, MCPHERSON Kerrod, NGUYEN Matthew, NGUYEN Thomas, PEDNEKAR Nakul, QIU Johnson, SHARMA Avish, SHIMADA Shota, TRAN Luke, TSIAILIS Anthony, WONG Johnny, YOUNG James, YOUNG Jason, YU Zile, ZHANG Geoffrey, ZHANG Max, ZHENG Steven

Class 7M

BELOKOPYTOV Alexander, BROWN Alasdair, BROWN Lachlan, CHAN Jarrod, CHAN Matthew, CHEN Clive, CHEN Roy, CHOW Justin, CLUNE Addison, ESAEV Bobby, GREENSLADE Beau, JIANG Brandon, KASHYAP Roshan, KATSIKAROS Christian, LEE Simon, LINDEBACK Nick, LING Matthew, LIU Charley, LO Kelvin, NGUYEN Darren, NGUYEN Kent, ROESSLER-HOLGATE Plini, SANTOSO Johan, SZET Wilson, TAN Jonathan, TANG Matthew, TONG Matthew, WAN Samuel, WONG Nicholas, ZHOU Michael

Class 7R

AHMED Razeen, ANG Adrian, BYRNES Julian, CHAN Yuen, CHEN Jack, CHEN Jacky, CHEN Jeffrey, CHENG Simon, DINH Matthew, GAROFANO Stephen, JURISEVIC Anton, KURTS Phillip, LAMBERT Daniel, LAU Matthew, LI Jacky, LIM Kang, PENG Charley, PENG David, QUAH Xhian, RICHARDS Adam, RICHARDS Hugo, SIU Timothy, SPOLJARIC Nevin, TENG Leonard, UNG Victor, WILSON Thomas, WONG Jeffrey, YANG Bohan, YU Henry, YU Timothy

Class 7S

ANDONOVSKI Daniel, APOLONIO Bryant, CHIN Stanley, CHOUDHURY Tasneem, ERIKSSON James, FAN David, FENG Michael, HARVEY Thomas, HATLE Aditya, JACOB Sidharth, KRISHNAN Arun, KWOK Alden, LAM Victor, LIEN Vincent, LIEU Johnny, LUCCHITTI Mark, MA William, MAK Chun, MARTINI Eric, MIKHA Maxeem, NEO Hung, NGUYEN Jason, PARK Justin, SAGGAR Raghav, SHENOY Rohit, TRAN David, WU Dickson, XIE Cong, ZHANG Weiang, ZHONG Tim

Class 7T

CAO Yiming, COSMAN George, DIEP Benjamin, GAO Ting, HU David, HUANG Nathan, HUDA Shah, HUH Harry, HUNG Philip, KE Steven, KHOU Vincent, LAU Brian, LEE Raymond, LI Aolin, LI Hongwei, LO Daniel, LU Benjamin, LU Simon, PONRAJ Shane, SHAN Daniel, SHURAPEY Dmitriy, SIN Michael, TRAN Anthony, TRAN An-Ton, TRAN Trung, YIU Michael, YUAN Ike, ZHANG Mike, ZHANG Shorson, ZHANG Victor

YEAR 8

COPPA Jed, DESAI Mihir

YEAR 9

FETHERSTON Matthew

YEAR 10

RAHMAN Mushfiq

YEAR 11

BODROZIC Dejan, CHEUNG Louis, DAKDOUK Ibrahim, DE SILVA Vishan, DESAI Varun, DU Johnny, FAN Jimmy, HANSRA Balraj, KANG James, KARUNARATNE Shehan, KNOLL Avi, KWOK Jamie, LU Winston, LY Brian, MAINPRIZE Thomas, PALANA Dustin, PATEL Viraj, PRABAKARAN Sayanthan, SIU Raymond, VITHANAGE Anuradha, WONG Wesley, XUE Kevin, YONG Chuanji, ZHANG Phillip Valete

Valete

The following boys have left the School since the end of 2003. We wish them well for the future.

Year 7 2003

CHIU Thomas, CHU Victor

Year 8 2003

LIU Benjamin, NANDAKUMAR Vinoth

Year 9 2003

YIN Albert

Year 10 2003

ANNABATTULA Chandra, ARORA Manit, FRANCIS Lucian, HUANG Jeremy, LAU Jason, MANOHARAN Ragavan, YU Siyang

Abbreviations

ACO: Australian Chemistry Olympiad AMC: Australian Mathematics Competition APO: Australian Physics Olympiad ASCSC: Australian Schools Computer Studies Competition ASEC: Australian Schools English Competition ASMC: Australian Schools Maths Competition ASSC: Australian Schools Science Competition ASWC: Australian Schools Writing Competition BSC: Business Studies Competition D: Distinction GC: Geography Competition HD: High Distinction ICB: Intermediate Concert Band ISB: Intermediate Stage Band

Year 11 2003

BIANCARDI Ryan, BOWEY Mitchell, LEE Gareth, ZHENG Kelvin

Year 12 2003

Unless otherwise indicated, boys enrolled in 1999, and sat for the Higher School Certificate in 2004.

JCB: Junior Concert Band JSB: Junior Stage Band MCYA: Mathematics Challenge for Young Australians MCS: Maths Challenge Stage NCQ: National Chemistry Quiz SCB: Senior Concert Band SE: String Ensemble SRC: Student Representative Council (School Union) SSB: Senior Stage Band SWE: Symphonic Wind Ensemble TCB: Training Concert Band **UNSWMC: UNSW Maths Competition** Wessta NSW GC: Wessta NSW Geography Competition **YA: Young Achievers**

AHMAD Shakir: Silver Medallion; 1st – English Extension 1 (03); NCQ (HD 00; D 01-02); ASCSC (HD 01; D 00); GC (HD 02); AMC (D 99-03); ASSC (D 99-03); ASEC (D 00, 02); ASBSC (D 04); represented Australia in the Programme for International Student Assessment - placed in top 12% of the represented world in all three areas (Mathematical Literacy, Scientific Literacy and Problem Solving); Soccer (99-04); Cricket (99-02); Telstra International Soccer Expo (01); Trans-Harbour Trophy Cricket Trophy (01-02); Chess (99-00).

AHMED Tanvir: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Debating (99-04); 2nd grade Debating (03); 2nd grade GPS Premiers (03); 1st grade Debating (04); Member of CHS Representative Debating Team (04); Member of the Metropolitan East Representative Team (02); Member of team to win the Junior State Debating Championship (02); Member of team to win the Les Gordon History Debating Championship (02); Year 10 Prize for Debating (02); Year 9 Peter Walker Prize for Literature (01); Deputy Principal's Prize (04); Silver Medallion; 1st – French (99); 1st – Commerce (01-02); 1st – Latin (01-03); 1st – Science (01); 1st – Geography (01); 1st – Chemistry (03); 3rd overall – Year 11 (03); AMC (HD 00-02; D 99, 03); NCQ (HD 00-03); ASSC (HD 01; D 00, 02-03); ASEC (HD 01); GC (HD 01).

ALSAMAIL Ali: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); President – Islamic Society of SBHS (04); Silver Medallion; 1st – History Wars (01): 2nd – Legal Studies (03); 2nd – Modern History (03); Warwick Segal Memorial Prize (04); AMC (HD 99, 03; Prize (01)); GC (HD 01); NCQ (HD 01); University of Sydney Mind and Morality course (D 03); Soccer Blue (03); GPS Soccer (00-04); 1st XI – Soccer (02-04); Captain – 1st XI – Soccer (04); GPS Combined 3rd XI – Soccer (02); GPS Combined 2nd XI – Soccer (04); GPS Combined 1st XI – Soccer (03); Cross Country (99-01); Athletics (02).

ANWAR Johan: (2004-2004):

- AU Benjamin: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Formal Committee (04); ICB (00-02); Academic Merit List (00-02); Silver Medallion; 1st – Chinese (00); 1st – Design and Technology (01); AMC (HD 02; D 99-01); ASEC (D 99-01); ASSC (D 00-01); NCQ (D 02); ASBSC (HD 04); Tennis (99-01); Basketball (02-04); Rugby (00-04); Captain – 3rd XV Rugby (04); GPS Athletics (99-03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets.
- AXELROD Kit: Peer Mediator; SRC; 1st English (00-01); 1st History (02); 1st Modern History (100% score) (03); P & C Prize (02); AMC (HD 00); Fencing; 1st grade Fencing (01-04); Captain Fencing (04).
- BADETHALAV Rahul: Library Assistant (99-02); Peer Support Leader (03); Peer Mediator (03-04); Debating (99-02); Gold Medallion; 2nd Physics (04); 3rd 2 Unit Mathematics (04); NCQ (HD 01-03; D 00); AMC (D 99, 01-02); ASSC (D 99-02); GC (D 02); ASEC (D 00); ASCSC (D 99); Cricket (99-04); Captain 3rd XI Cricket (04); 2nd XI Cricket (03-04); Soccer (99-04); Captain A grade Chess Team (99-02); Duke of Edinburgh Award Scheme (01-04); Fundraising Amnesty International; Legacy, Youth Off the Streets.

BANERJEE Rajib:

- BENNETT Liam: House Clerk (02-03); Peer Support Leader (03); School Vice-Captain (04); Record Committee (02-04); Badges Committee (02-04); Music Program (99-01); SCB; SSB; Debating (99-04); 2nd grade Debating undefeated in (03); Sydney Boys High Trophy; CHS Blue Rowing (04); Reg Galvin Memorial Award for outstanding male rower of the CHS rowing championships (04); NCQ (HD 00-01); ASSC (D 00-02); ASEC (D 99, 01-02); AMC (D 00-01); Rugby (99-04); 2nd XV Rugby (04); Rowing (99-04); 2nd VIII Rowing (03); Stroke first VIII (04); Athletics (04); Fundraising Daffodil Day, Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes.
- **BYRNE Dominic:** Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; Peter Walker Prize; Phil Ainsworth Memorial Prize; GC (D 01); ASEC (D 99-01); 1st – Extension Two English HSC Course; 2nd – HSC Ancient History Course (04); GPS and Zone Athletics (01); Cricket (99-04); player in the Trans Harbour Competition (01-02); 4th XI – Cricket (03-04); Rugby (99-00); Soccer (01-04); 2nd grade – Soccer (03); 1st grade – Soccer (04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International, Legacy House.
- CARROLL Glen: (1998-2004): SRC; School Prefect (03-04); 1st PD/H/PE (99); 3rd PD/H/PE (04); Bronze Medallion; AMC (D 98-00); ABSC (D 04); Sports Blue Cricket (03); A C McKibbon Trophy for Cricket (03); Cricket (98-03); First XI Cricket (00-03); Vice-Captain First XI (02-03); Combined GPS First XI Cricket (02-03); Athletics GPS Championships, Zone and Regional levels (98-02); School Age Champion Athletics (98-00); Cross Country (98-99, 01); Rugby (98-00, 04); First XV Rugby (04); Swim Team Zone, Regional, NSW CHS and NSW All Schools levels (98-02); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.

CHADWICK Simon:

- CHAN Alex: Bronze Medallion; School Choir (99-00); 2nd Technical Drawing (02); AMC (HD 01-03; D 00); NCQ (HD 00-02; D 03); ASCSC (HD 99; D 01-02); ASSC (HD 01; D 02); Basketball (99-04); 2nd grade – Basketball (02-03); 2nd grade - Volleyball (03-04); Best and Fairest Player – Volleyball (03); Member of team to win the GPS Volleyball Championship (04); Member of team to place 2nd in NSW Schools Volleyball Cup (03); Tennis (99-00); Soccer (01-02); Fundraising – Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes, Salvation Army Red Shield Appeal.
- CHAN Julian: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-03); SWE (02-04); SCB (04); Bronze Medal; AMC (HD 99-00; D 01-02); ASSC (D 99-01); GC (D 01-02); ASBSC (HD 04); Tennis (99-04); 2nd grade Tennis (02-04); Captain Tennis (04); Soccer (02-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.

CHANDRALA Naga:

CHANG Ken: (2003-2004):

CHEAH Liang: ASSC (HD 99, 01-02; D 00, 03); ASCSC (HD 01); GC (HD (020: NCQ (HD 02; D 01, 03); AMC (HD 03); Swim Team (99-01); Tennis (00-03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Red Shield Appeal, Legacy.

CHEN Allen:

- **CHEN James:** Debating (99, 02-03); Member of Debating team to win the Karl Cramp Debating Competition (03); Member of Debating team to win the Commonwealth Bank Junior Debating Competition (02); AMC (HD 99-01, 03; D 02); ASSC (HD 99-02); ASEC (HD 99-02); NCQ (D 01-03); GPS 2nd grade Fencing (01-03); Tennis; head writer of a student based website; Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Youth Off the Streets, World Vision.
- **CHEN Jun:** AMC (HD 01; D 99); GC (HD 02; D 01); ASBSC (HD 04); ASSC (D 02-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets; Senior Member Reaching Horizons (charity organisation).
- CHEN Patrick: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); ASBSC (HD 04); GC (HD 01); AMC (D 99, 02); ASEC (D 02); ASCSC (D 99); Basket all (01-04); 2nd grade Basketball (03); Captain 2nd grade Basketball (04); Soccer (99-04); Cricket (99-01); Fundraising School's World History Tour, Amnesty International, Jeans for Genes, Legacy, Youth Off the Streets.
- CHEN Sean: Year Book Committee (04); Music Program (00-04); JCB (00); ICB (01); SCB (02); SWE (03); ASSC (HD 02-04; D 99-01); GC (HD 02); NCQ (HD 02-04; D 00-01); AMC (D 99-03); Fencing (00-04); 1st grade Fencing (01-04); Founding Member of Reaching Horizons LMGT (04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- CHERIAN Ritchie: Library Assistant (99-00); Peer Support Leader (03); Silver Medallion; NCQ (HD 01; D 00); AMC (HD 01; D 99-00, 02-03); ASSC (D 00-01); GC (D 01); ASEC (D 00); ASCSC (D 99); Cricket (99-04); 2nd XI – Cricket (03-04); Soccer (99-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International.
- CHIN Howard: Music Program (99-02); ICB (00); SCB (00-01); SWE (01-02); Woodwind Ensemble (00-01); Bronze Medallion; Music Pocket (02); AMC (HD 99; D 00-03); NCQ (HD 02; D 00-01); ASSC (D 99-01); ASSC (D 00-03); ASEC (D 01); GPS Basketball (99-04); GPS Soccer (01-03).

CHOI Ho-Yeon:

CHOU Tyron: (2003-2004):

COSMAN Michael:

- DICKSON Kim: Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; Soccer Blue (04); Soccer (99-04); 2nd XI Soccer (02); 1st XI Soccer (03-04); Captain of undefeated 3rd grade GPS Combined team which set a new GPS record, defeating ISA 10-0 (04); Tennis (99-04); 2nd VI Tennis (02-04); Captain 15As Tennis (01); Captain 2nd VI Tennis (03-04); Member of Tennis Team who came 2nd in the NSW Combined High Schools Tennis Tournament (03); Athletics (03); Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Daffodil Day, Youth Off the Streets.
- DONG Nanshan: 3rd Physics (04); AMC (Prize 01-02; HD 03; D 99-00); ASCSC (HD 99-03); ASSC (HD 00); NCQ (HD 02-03); ASEC (HD 01); GPS Soccer (01-03); Tennis (9-01); Chess (99-01); Webmaster, co-founder and writer for student based website; Co-Founder and General Manager of inter-school student-based charity Reaching Horizons; Delegate to World Vision's Youth Leadership Convention (04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- DONG Victor: Peer Support Leader; Peer Mediator; 2nd Commerce (02); ASSC (HD 00; D 01); GC (HD 01-02); AMC (D 00-01); ASEC (D 01); Basketball (99-04); Soccer (99-04); 2nd grade – Soccer (02-03); 1st grade – Soccer (04); Fundraising – Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes; Legacy; Youth Off the Streets, Salvation Army; Smith Family, Burwood Pound's Walk the Dogs Day.
- D'SOUZA Steven: SRC (99); Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); Gold Medallion; 2nd – History (Empires) (01); Dux – History (Empires) (02); Academic Merit List (02); ASCSC (HD 02); GC (D 01; HD 02); AMC (D 00-02); Zone and Regional Cross Country (99-02); 1st grade Cross Country (03); GPS and CHS Athletics (99-03); Basketball (99-03); Soccer (9-04); Player of the Season – Soccer (04); Participant –

Young Achievers Australia Program (03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes, Legacy, Starlight Foundation.

- DUBOVSKY Barry: W.W. Ivo Wyatt Memorial Trophy; Claude Tressider Trophy (04); Open High School Distinguished Achievement Award Japanese Beginners (03);Debating (99); AMC (Prize 99; D 01-02); NCQ (HD 00; D 01-02); GC (HD 01-02); ASSC (D 99-00, 02); Cricket (04); Swimming Blue; Zone, Regional and State Swimming (99-04); Vice-Captain Swimming (04); GPS Swim Team (99, 03-04); CHS Swim Team (99-01, 03-04); All Schools Swim Team (04); Silver Medal (CHS Swim Meet (04); Swimming Age Champion (99-04); 1st grade Water Polo (04).
- DWYER Mathew: Peer Support Leader (02); Soccer (99-04); 2nd grade Soccer (03-04); Cricket (99-04).
- EDIRIWEERA Miyuru: 3rd Physics (04); NCQ (HD 02-03; D 00-01); GC (HD 02; D 01); AMC (D 99-03); ASSC (D 00-01, 03); ASEC (D 02); ASCSC (D 01); GPS Tennis (99-04); Open 2nd grade Tennis (03-04); GPS Tennis Most Valuable Player Award (04); GPS Soccer (02-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- ELIA Brian: 2nd Biology (03); ASSC (HD 02-03; D 01, 04); GC (HD 02; D 01); NCQ (HD 03; D 01); AMC (D 00-01, 03); MCYA (D 02; Credit 01); ASEC (D 02).

EMMANUEL Roshan:

- ESKANDER Bishoy: 2nd History (Empires) (02); 2nd Business Studies (03); ASSC (HD 99; D 00-01); NCQ (HD 00); ABSC (HD 04); GC (D 02); ASEC (D 00-01); AMC (D 99-00); GPS Fencing (99-01); GPS Soccer (02-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Legacy, Daffodil Day.
- EUSEBIO Jan Eric: Music Program (99-03); JCB; SWE (02); SSB (02); Music Pocket (03); Best Musician Award JCB (99); 2nd Engineering Studies (03); AMC (HD 00-02; D 99, 03); GC (HD 01-02); NCQ (HD 00-02; D 03-04); ASSC (HD 01; D 99-00); ASEC (D 01); ASCSC (D 00); Basketball (99-04); Soccer (01-04); Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Red Nose Day, Legacy, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.

FENG Hughoce: (1998-2004):

- FRIIS-O'TOOLE Benjamin: SRC (00-03); Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); School representative at the Macquarie Bank Rugby Leadership Forum; Sydney Boys High Plaque; Caltex Best All Rounder Award; Special Award for creating and managing the school's rugby website (02); Academic Merit List (00-02); GC (HD 01; D 02); NCQ (HD 02; D 00); ASSC (D 00-01); AMC (D 99-00); Cricket (99-04); 2nd XI Cricket (02); 1st XI Cricket (03-04); Vice-Captain Cricket (03-04); Cec Rubie Trophy (1st XI in 03 and 04); 2nd XI Cricket (02) and 1st XI Cricket (04) Committee Awards; Cricket Trophy for Fielding (04); Rugby (9-04); 1st XV Rugby (03-04); Captain 16As Rugby (02); 1st XV Rugby Coaches' Award (04); Athletics (01-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, St. Vincent De Paul.
- **GEROFI James:** Prefect (04); Music Program (99-04); SWE (01-03); SSB (01-04); Sydney Boys High Trophy; Class of 1991 Prize; ASSC (HD 01-02, 04; D 03); NCQ (HD 01-03); AMC (D 00-03); ASEC (D 01-02); Rugby (99-04); 2nd XV – Rugby (03-04); Athletics (02-04); Rowing (00-04); 1st IV – winners of CHS Championship (03); 2nd VIII – runners up at CHS Championships (04); runner up – men's open pair – Rowing – CHS Championships (04); 3rd – men's open quad – Rowing – CHS Championships (04).
- **GINN William:** Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-03); SWE; SSB (02); 3rd Physics (04); Silver Medallion; AMC (HD 99); ASSC (HD 01-02, 04; D 03); NCQ (HD 02-03); GC (HD 01-02); ASEC (D 01); Soccer (99-04); 2nd grade Soccer (03-04); Zone Cross Country (03); Tennis (99-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- GIRDLER Robbie: Peer Support Leader; Peer Mediator; Prefect (04); Music Program (9-02); SSB; SWE; Sydney Boys High School Plaque; The John Waterhouse Prize (04); J.W. & W.G. Forsythe Prize; Prize for Outstanding Contribution to Rowing (04); Coaches' Award for Outstanding Commitment – Rugby; Academic Merit List (01-02); School representative – Macquarie Bank Rugby Leadership Forum; Rugby (99-04); 1st XV – Rugby (03-04); Rowing (00-04); two CHS gold medals as senior rower; Swim Team (99-04); Athletics (02-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes.

- **GLANCE Robbie:** Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); 1st Information Processes and Technology (03-04); Soccer (01-04); Tennis (99-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- GLASS Benjamin: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; 3rd Geography (03); 2nd Software Design (04); ASSC (D 99); NCQ (D 00); AMC (D 00); Rugby (99-04); 2nd & 3rd XV (03); Vice-Captain 3rd XV (04); Rowing (00-04); 2nd IV Rowing (03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets. Amnesty International.

GODFREY Peter:

- GOLDSTEIN Ron: (1998-2004):
- **GUO Ivan:** (2000-2004): Yearbook Committee; 1st Mathematics (01-03); 1st Software Design & Development (03); 1977 Prize for Excellence; Australian Student Prize (03) and the title of University of Sydney Carslaw Scholar (03); Representative at National Mathematics Summer School (03-04); International Mathematical Olympiad (Gold Medal 04; Bronze Medal 03); Asian Pacific Mathematics Olympiad (Honourable Mention 02; Gold Medal 03; Bronze Medal 04); Australian Mathematical Olympiad (Gold Medal 03: Bronze Medal 04); Australian Mathematical Olympiad (Gold Medal 03-04; Bronze Medal 02); AMC (Medals 01-04; three Bernhard Neumann Awards 02-04 for perfect scores); UNSWMC (1st 03-04; 3rd 01; 4th 02); ASSC (HD 02; D 03-04); GC (HD 02); ASCSC (D 03); Founding Member of Reaching Horizons LMGT (04).
- GURUPARAN Vaakesan: AMC (D 99-02); GC (D 01); NCQ (D 03); GPS Cricket (99-00); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- HAMID Sabbir: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Bronze Medallion; AMC (Prize 02; HD 01; D 00, 03); NCQ (02-03; D 01); ASCSC (D 01); GC (D 00-04); ASSC (D 00-04); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); Basketball (99-03); Volleyball (01-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes, MS Read-a-thon, World Vision Forty Hour Famine.
- HAN Si Joon: AMC (HD 99, 01-02; D 00, 03); NCQ (HD 03; D 00, 02); GC (HD 02); ASSC (D 00); GPS Soccer (04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- HANZMANN-JOHNSON Eric: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-03); SWE; SSB (01-03); Music Pocket (02); Doris M Gray Prize for Third (99); S & P Tzannes Prize (99); GC (HD 02); ASCSC (HD 02); NCQ (HD 02; D 00-01); AMC (D 99-00, 02); ASSC (D 99-00, 02); Athletics; Athletics Champion (99); GPS Athletics (99-01); Swimming (99-01); Soccer (99-03); Basketball (02-04); 2nd grade Basketball (03-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- HARISH Varun: Peer Support Leader (02); Academic Merit List (00-02); AMC (HD 00-01); ASSC (HD 00-01); ASCSC (HD 01-02); ASEC (D 99-00, 02); NCQ (D 03); GC (D 02); Cricket (01-04); First XI – Cricket (02-04); Captain – 15As Cricket (01); represented SBHS in Five Highs Cricket Carnival – Adelaide (03); Team member of winning team - CEC. Rubie Trophy (03); Fundraising – Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.
- HARKINS Eric: (2002-2004): Prefect (04); Bronze Medallion; NCQ (D 02); ASBSC (D 04); 1st grade Basketball (03-04); Rugby (03-04); 1st XV Rugby (04); Best and Fairest Player 2nd XV Rugby (03); Coach of 13s Basketball; Duke of Edinburgh Award (02).

HAYES Michael:

- **HO Ericson:** Australian Economics Competition (HD and prize 04); ASSC (D 04); AMC (D 99-04); NCQ (D 01, 03); ASCSC (D 01); GC (D 02); GPS Basketball (01-04); Vice-Captain Basketball (01-03); Soccer (01-04); Vice-Captain Soccer team (01-04); Chess (99-01); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- HOARE Drew: Record Committee (00-04); Badges Committee (00-04); SRC 999-02); Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediation Leader (03); Prefect (04); Rubie House Captain (03); Rubie House Clerk (04); Sydney Boys High Plaque; Academic Merit List (04); 2nd PD/H/PE (03); Alan Kippax Trophy for Rugby (04); 1958 Merit Award (04); Brian Allsop Memorial Prize (02); John Francis Bush Memorial Prize (03); ASSC (D 01-02); AMC (D 01); GC (D 01); Rugby (99-04); 1st XV Rugby (03-04); Captain 1st XV Rugby (04); selection in Combined GPS 3rd XV Rugby (04); First XV Player's Player Award (04); GPS Zone, Regional and State

Athletics (99-04); Captain of Athletics (04); Zone and regional Cross Country (99-02); Rowing (00-03); 1st Year 10 VIII (02); 1st IV – (03); 1st place – Under 17 Quad – Rowing a NSW CHS Championships (03); 1st grade Water Polo (04); 1st grade Swim Team (04); Supervisor – Junior Rowing Camps; Representative to Youth Leadership Forum (04); Member of World History Tour (03); Regional and State Finals participant – Festival of Greek Drama (03); Year 10 Drama Performance Night (02); set-up and co-management of SBHS inaugural rugby website (02-03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes.

- HOARE Tom: Record Committee (00-04); Badges Committee (00-04); SRC (99-02); Peer Support Leader (02); McKay House Clerk (04); Prefect (04); Sydney Boys High Plaque; 1958 Merit Award (04); Brian Allsop Memorial Prize (02); Academic Merit List (04); 1st – Business Studies (04); 2nd PD/H/PE (04); AMC (D 02); ASSC (D 02); ASEC (D 02); GC (HD 02); ASBSC (Prize 04); Rugby (99-04); Vice-Captain 13a, 14a and 15a – Rugby; 1st XV – Rugby (03-04); Vice-Captain – Rugby (99-02); Zone and Regional CHS Athletics (99-04); Zone and Regional Cross Country (99-02); GPS Swim Team; 1st grade Water Polo; Rowing (00-03); 2nd VIII – Rowing (CHS Champions); Male CHS Rower of the Year (04: 3rd – under 16 quad scull at State Championships; 2nd – double scull at CHS championships; 1st quad scull CHS Championships; Supervisor – Junior Rowing Camps; Representative to Youth Leadership Forum (04); Member of World History Tour (03); set-up and co-management of SBHS inaugural rugby website (02-03); Year 10 Drama Performance Night (02); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes.
- **HOSSAIN Imran:** (2003-2004): Vice-President SBHS Islamic Society (04); 3rd Software Development & Design (03); NCQ (D 03); 3rd XI Cricket (03-04); Rifle shooting (03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Muslim Aid.
- **HUA Calvin:** Music program; TCB (99); ICB (00-01); SCB (02); Music Pocket (02); Silver Medallion; GC (HD 01-02); Held equal 9th place in NSW in GC (01) and equal 8th place in NSW in GC (02); NCQ (D 01-03); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); ASSC (D 01-02); AMC (D 99-00, 02); ASEC (D 01); Basketball (99-04); Volleyball (01-03); 2nd grade Volleyball (03); Member of U15's team who won the NSW State Cup Volleyball; Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes.

HUANG Luke:

- **HUANG Wei:** SRC (04); Yearbook Committee; AMC (D 99-00, 02); Cricket (99-02); Captain 14Bs Cricket; Basketball (02-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Founding Member - Reaching Horizons (charity organisation).
- **HUYNH Dat:** SRC (02-04); Vice-President SRC (04); Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); Senior Dance Committee (03-04); Yearbook Committee (04); Kite Day Committee (03); Sydney Boys High Special Award; Special Staff Prize; Lodge Sydney High School Prize (03); responsible for designing the School SRC tie (04); 1st Design & Technology (99); 2nd Technical Drawing (01); 2nd Architecture (02); 2nd Vietnamese (02); NCQ (HD 02); ASSC (HD 02); AMC (D 99, 01-03); ASEC (D 02); GC (D 01-02); 1st grade Fencing (02-04); member of Fencing team who won a silver medial in the Mini Boys Schools Fencing League (00); 3rd place (individual bronze medal) Roberta Nutt Cup Fencing (00); 3rd place (bronze medal) Schools Fencing League (03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes, Public Relations Manager for Reaching Horizons.
- ILLANGAKOON Kavan: (2003-2004): Year Adviser's Award (02); ASSC (HD 01); NCQ (HD 01; D 03); AMC (D 00-02); Cricket (03-04); Vice Captain – second XI – Cricket (04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets.
- JACQUES Andrew: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Sydney Boys High Trophy; Deputy Principal's Prize (04); Arch Ferguson Prize (00-01); Sports Blue (01); three GPS Sports Blues (01-03); Australian Sports Medal (00); NCQ (HD 01); GC (HD 02); AMC (HD 02-03; D 99-01); ASSC (D 99, 01-03); Cricket (99-01); Rowing (02-04); 2nd IV – Rowing (03); 2nd VIII – Rowing (04); Rifle Shooting (99-04); 2nd grade Rifle Shooting (99); member of Australian Schools Combined Rifle Team who competed in UK (00); 1st grade Rifle Shooting (01-04); member of GPS premiership winning rifle shooting team (01 & 03); GPS Combined Rifle Team member (03); Captain – Rifle Shooting (04); Athletics (99-02); GPS Athletics Championships (03-04); Regional CHS Athletics (99-04); Rugby (02-03); 2nd grade – Rugby (03); Cross Country (04); Fundraising.

 JAYARATHNA Nadeeka: 3rd Extension 1 English (04); AMC (D 02-03); ASEC (D 99-01); Zone, Regional and State Cross Country (99-03); Cross Country Sporting Blue (03); 1st grade – Cross Country (03-04); Captain – Cross Country Team (04); 2nd – GPS Cross Country Championship - 14s (00) and Opens (03); Zone Cross Country Champion (99-03); Regional Cross Country Championship (02); 2nd – Regional Cross Country (01, 03); Zone, Regional and State Athletics – CHS competition (00-02); Zone, Regional and State Athletics – GPS competition (00-03); Cricket (99-04); Soccer (00-02); Fundraising – Retired Soldiers League, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.

JIN Roy:

KELLY Alexander:

KHANNA Kapil: Year Book Committee (04); Library Monitor (99-00); Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Gold Medallion; 2nd – Information Processes & Technology (03-04); Duke of Edinburgh program (Bronze Medal 02-04); AMC (HD 00, 03); ASCSC (HD 00, 02); ASSC (HD 99, 01); Cricket (99-04); Captain of his cricket team (99-02); Vice-Captain – third XI – Cricket (02-03); 2nd XI – Cricket (03-04); Volleyball (02-04); member of 2nd grade premiership team – Volleyball (03); Vice-Captain – 2nd grade Volleyball (04); Soccer (99-01); Fundraising – Amnesty International; Sydney to the Gong Bike Ride for MS.

KHOO Andrew:

KIM James:

KIM James Han:

- KOK Jason: 2nd Music Program; String Ensemble (99-01); member of Performing Arts Unit Symphony Orchestra; Physics (03); Rio Tinto Physics Olympiad (HD); AMC (HD 99-02); ASSC (D 99-02); ASEC (D 01); NCQ (D 02-03); Ruby (99-01); Tennis (99-01); Basketball (02-04); Soccer (03-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Daffodil Day, Legacy.
- **KRASTEV George:** Peer Support Leader (03); AMC (HD 02); Basketball; Soccer; Volleyball; represented SBHS at Australian Schools Volleyball Cup Melbourne (04); Fundraising Amnesty International.
- **KULUPANA Sayuru:** Peer Support Leader (02); 2nd Geography (03); AMC (D 99-03); Australian Schools Economic Competition (D 04); Cricket (99-04); 2nd XI Cricket (03-04); Soccer (01-03); Chess A grade (02); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International, Legacy.
- **KWONG Kenelm:** Peer Mediation Leader (03); ASSC (HD 00, 02; D 03); NCQ (HD 01-03); GC (HD 01-02); ASEC (D 01-03); AMC (D 01-02).
- LAU Clement: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Music Program 99-03); SWE (01); Music Pocket (02); Gold Medallion; Oswald Chapman Memorial Prize (04); Dux – Year 11 (03); 2nd place overall (99, 02); 3rd place overall (01); 1st – Music (00); 1st – English (02); 1st – Mathematics (02); 1st – Science (02); 1st – Economics (03); 1st – Legal Studies (03); UNSWMC (Prize 04); AMC (Prize 03); Australian Intermediate Mathematics Olympiad (HD 02); AMC (HD 02); Australian Mathematics Challenge (HD 02); NCQ (HD 02-03); ASEC (HD 02); Basketball (99-04); 2nd grade – Basketball (03-04); Volleyball (03-04); 2nd grade undefeated Volleyball team (04).
- LAU Stephen: AMC (HD 99); NCQ (HD 02-03); AMC (D 00, 02-03); ASEC (D 00-02); GPS Basketball (99-04); GPS Soccer (02-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Legacy.
- LAW Terence: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; Chinese Community (Prize 02); F A Elgar Prize for English Extension (03); Chinese Continuers (Prize (03-04); Chinese Extension (Prize 04); AMC (HD 00; D 99, 01-03); ASSC (D 99-01); NCQ (D 01, 03); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); Basketball (99-04); Team Captain 3rd grade Basketball (03-04).

LEE Benedict:

LEE Joseph:

LEE Michael:

LEE Oliver: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-01); 1st - Classical Greek (00-04); J.W. Gibbes

Memorial Prize; AMC (HD 99, 02; D 00, 03); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); Basketball (99, 01-04); Captain – 16Bs – Basketball; Rugby (99-00, 02); 1st grade - Cross Country (04).

LEE SUK-Woo:

LEI Tony:

- LEUNG Ho: Music Program (99-03); SWE (01); SSB (01); Music Pocket (03); Debating (99-01); NCQ (HD 02; D 01); GC (HD 01-02); ASEC (D 02); AMC (D 01); ASSC (D 00); Basketball (99-04); Soccer (99-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- LEUNG Kevin: Peer Support Leader (00); Music Program; represented SBHS in a choir performance at the Opera House (99); Bronze Medallion; 3rd Photography (03); 3rd Business Studies (03); AMC (Prize Certificate 02; HD 99-03); ASCSC (HD 99; D 00-01); ASSC (HD 99; D 00-02); NCQ (HD 01; D 00); GC (D 02); ASEC D 01); MCYA (Credit 01); Basketball (00-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Red Shield Appeal.
- **LEVINZON Louis:** Student Librarian (99-00); Debating (99-02); 1st Science (99); 1st Geography (00); Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.
- LIANG Mark: AMC (HD 01-02; D 00); ASSC (HD 00; D 01); ASEC (D 00-02); GPS Soccer (99, 04); Chess (99, 02-03); 3rd – Scots Chess Tournament; GPS Chess Premiers (03); Founder – 'Satireco' – student based website; Fundraising – Youth Off the Streets.
- LIANG Peter: Peer Support Leader (02); GC (HD 01; D 02); AMC (HD 99; D 00-03); NCQ (D 01); ASSC (D 99); GPS Basketball (02-04); Fundraising Salvation Army; Youth Off the Streets.
- LIU Andrew: (2003-2004): ASSC (D 03-04); ASCSC (D 03); NCQ (D 03); 2nd grade Rifle Shooting (03-04); Fundraising Shave for a Cure, Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes, Red Nose Day, Youth Off the Streets.

LIU Calvin:

- LIU Daniel: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-04); SWE (02-04); member of SWE to win 3rd place at regional competitions; Debating (99-03); Silver Medallion; 1st – Architecture Building Design (02); ASEC (HD 01); GC (HD 02); NCQ (HD 02; D 01); ASSC (D 99-04); AMC (D 99-00, 02); Rowing (00-03); Fencing (01-04); member of Fencing team to win Bronze at the NSW School's Fencing League (03); individual silver medal – Fencing – NSW School's Fencing League (03); 1st grade Fencing (04).
- LIU Thomson: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; P & C Prize for 2nd in the grade (00-01); 1st – Chinese (02); 2nd – Photography (03); 2nd – Business Studies (03); NCQ (HD 01; D 02-03); AMC (HD 00-01; D 02); ASEC (HD 00); MCYA (D 02); ASSC (D 99-00, 02); Australian Schools Economic Competition (D 04); ASBSC (D 04); GPS Basketball (02-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Red Shield Appeal.

LIU Yi:

- LOGGE Warren: Peer Support Leader (02); House Clerk (03-04); Badges Committee; Music Program (99-03); SWE; SSB (02-03); GC (HD (01-02); NCQ (D 02-03); ASEC (D 02-03); Cricket (99-04); 1st grade – Water Polo (03-04); Soccer (99-04); 1st grade Soccer (03-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International, Jeans for Genes.
- LOI Peter: Peer Support Leader; AMC (HD 99; D 01-03); NCQ (D 01-02); ASSC (D 99); Basketball (02-04); Soccer (02-04); Fundraising Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.
- LOW Andrew: Music Program; ICB (00); AMC (D 00-02); ASSC (D 99-03); ASCSC (D 99); NCQ (D 01); GPS Soccer (99-04); member of 14Cs who won the Dolan Cup; GPS Tennis (99-00); Fundraising Reaching Horizons, Youth Off the Streets.
- LUNG Thomas: Peer Support Leader (02); SRC (03); Senior Prefect (04); Silver Medallion; AMC (D 00-02); ASSC (D 01); Athletics (99-03); Zone and Regional Athletics (00-02); Tennis (99-03); 2nd grade Tennis (01-02); 1st grade Tennis (03); GPS Tennis Champions (03); 1st grade Waterpolo (04); Soccer (99-04); 1st grade Soccer (02-04); Vice-Captain Soccer (04); GPS 3rd XI Soccer; Fundraising Legacy Badge Day, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.

- LUONG William: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03);Prefect (04); 2nd Design and Technology (01-02); Academic Merit List (02); AMC (HD 99-02; D 03); ASCSC (HD 99-01); ASSC (HD 99-00; D 01); GC (HD 01); NCQ (D 02-03); Zone and Regional Cross Country (99-00); Athletics (02-03); Soccer (99-04); 2nd grade Soccer (03-04); Basketball (00-02); Cricket (03-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International, Legacy Badge Day, Jeans for Genes.
- LY Fergus: Peer Support Leader (02); SRC (03); Prefect (04); Senior Dance Committee (03); Kite Day Committee (03); SRC (03); Chess (99-02); Music Program String Orchestra (99-01, 03); Gold Medallion; ASEC (D 02); AMC (D 03); ASSC (D 03); Rugby (99-04); 1st XV Rugby (03-04); Captain 2nd XV Rugby (04); Basketball (02-03); Cricket (99-00); Rowing (01); member of Chess team who won the NSW JCL Secondary Schools Chess Teams Competition Metropolitan East; member of Chess team who placed 2nd in The Scots Invitational Chess Tournament (00) and 3rd place (02).
- MADHAVAN Naresh: SRC (99); ASSC (HD 03; D 99-01); AMC (D 99-03); NCQ (D 99-01, 03); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); Athletics (00); Cricket (99-02); Soccer (99-02); Fundraising – Youth Off the Streets, Legacy Badge Day.

MADORSKI Stanislav:

- MCKENZIE Adam: SRC (99-01, 03); SRC President (03); Peer Support Leader (02): Prefect (04); Music Program; Music Pocket (02); Best Year 10 Musician (02); Musician of the Year (03); School Orchestra (03-04); Advanced String Group (99-04); String Quartet (01-04); PAU Public Schools Symphony Orchestra (01-03); Sydney Youth Orchestra (00-04); 1st – History (99); 1st – Music (01-02); 1st – Music 2 (03-04); 1st – Music Extension (04); 3rd - English Extension 1 (04); 3rd – English Extension 2 (04); Performed at Aria Awards (01); Australia Day Ceremonies (01-04); Royal Danish Wedding at Sydney Opera House (04); Carols in the Domain (02-03); Drama; AMC (D 02); NCQ (D 02); ASEC (D 02); Soccer (99-02, 04).
- MILLER Thomas: Peer Support Group Leader (02); School Captain (04); Charity Committee; Open Day Committee; Academic Merit List (02); SBHS Plaque; SGHS Cup for Games and Sportsmanship; KJ Andrews Award; Ross Miller Memorial Award; Personal PD/H/PE Prize; Ray Smee Water Polo Trophy (03); Ivo Wyatt Memorial Trophy (03); Swimming Blue (03); GPS Swimming Blue (03-04); Sydney East Schools Sports Association Blue for Swimming (04); 1st PD/H/PE (03); Swimming Open Champion (03); Captain School Swim Team (04); Vice Captain GPS Swimming (04); Team member combined GPS Swim Team (99-04); NSW All Schools Championships (99-04); Bronze and Silver medals at Australian Schools Swimming Championships (04); Water Polo (99-04); Captain Water Polo team (03-04); Rugby (99-04); First XV Rugby (04); GPS Rugby; 1st XV GPS Rugby (03-04); Vice-Captain GPS Rugby (04); Representative Young Leaders Conference; Represented the youth of Australia when he read The Ode at the ANZAC Day Dawn Service in Martin Place (04).
- MITCHELL Ben: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); AMC (HD 00, 02; D 99, 01, 04); ASSC (HD 02; D 99-01, 03); NCQ (D 00-02); Rugby (99-04); 2nd XV Rugby (03); 1st XV Rugby (04); Rowing (00-04); 1st IV Rowing (03); 1st VIII Rowing (04); Swimming (99-04); Zone and Regional Swimming (02); Fundraising Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.
- **MOHAN Bharath:** Library Monitor; member of Trans Harbour Cricket Team (02-03); AMC (D 99-03); NCQ (D 03); ASSC (D 00-02); Community work Clean Up Australia (01-04); Fundraising Gujarat Earthquake Appeal, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.
- **MOLTCHANSKI Konstantin:** Record Committee (03-04); Charities Committee (04); Dux Economics (04); Debating; Gold Medallion; Paul Griffiths Prize for Economics; AMC (HD 01; D 99); Australian Schools Economics Competition (HD 04); NCQ (D 01); ASCSC (D 02); ASSC (D 02); GPS Soccer (99-04); Captain – 16Cs Soccer (02); GPS Tennis (99-03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Legacy.
- MONTEMAYOR Anton: Yearbook Committee (04); GC (HD 01-02); NCQ (HD 01-02); ASSC (HD 02; D 02); ASEC (D 00-02); GPS Basketball (02—03); 3rd grade Fencing (00-03); Youth Off the Streets.

The Record 2004

MURALITHARAN Rajeevan: Peer Mediator; Academic Merit List (02-03); NCQ (HD 02-04); AMC (HD 99-00; D 01-02); GC (HD 02); Australian Schools Economic Competition (HD 04); ASEC (D 02); ASBSC (D 04); GPS Cricket (99-01); Fundraising – Legacy Badge Day, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.

NADARAJAMOORTHY Nimalan:

- NALAVENKATA Sunny: SRC (00); Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Charities Committee (03-04); Academic Merit List (00-04); 1st – English Extension (03); 3rd – Advanced English (03); 3rd – Maths (02); 2nd – French (02); AMC (HD 99; D 00-03); NCQ (HD 01-03); GC (01-02); ASSC (HD 01; D 99-00, 02-03); ASCSC (D 00); ASEC (D 01); Tennis (99-03); Captain – Tennis – B grade (01-02); Soccer (99-03); A grade – Chess (99-01); Duke of Edinburgh Silver Awards Scheme (01-04); Young Achievers Program (03); Fundraising – Legacy, Amnesty International, Youth Off the Streets.
- NEVILLE Timothy: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); School Formal Committee; Equal 1st Geography (99); NCQ (D 02); ASCSC (D 01); ASSC (D 00); Tennis Blue (04); Tennis (99-04); 2nd grade Tennis (00); 1st grade Tennis (01-04); 1st grade undefeated GPS Champions Tennis (03-04); Reserve GPS representative Tennis (04); team member to win Stan Jones Trophy Tennis (04); 2nd grade Soccer (04);
- NORRIE Thomas: Music Program; SCB (99-01); SWE (02-04); SSB (03); Senior String Ensemble (99-04); Orchestra (03-04); String Quartet (00-04); Performed at Aria Awards (01), Opening Ceremony to Special Olympics (02); selected in State Schools Symphony Orchestra (99-04); 1st – Music (99); AMC (D 99-02); ASSC (D 99002); GC (HD 02); Soccer (99-01); Rugby (02-04); Tennis (00-03); Fundraising – Amnesty International, Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.

PAK Sae-II: (2000-2004):

- PANG Anson: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Plaque; Music Program; Grade VIII Piano (99);
 Grade V Musicianship (00); SWE; ISB (02); ICB (00); SCB (01): ISB (02); 1st English (03); 1st PD/H/PE (04);
 AMC (HD 00, 02); NCQ (HD 01, 03; D 00); GC (HD 01; D 02); ASEC (D 01-02); ASSC (D 00, 02, 04); Zone,
 Regional and State Cross Country (00); Soccer (02-04); CHS State Swimming (00-01); 1st grade –
 Waterpolo (04); Soccer (02-04); Athletics (00-03); Rugby (01); Rowing (01-03); Most Improved Rower (02).
- PANIYAN DUWAGE Indeewa C: (2003-2004): Bronze Medallion; 2nd Physics (03); 2nd Trial HSC Chemistry; 3rd – Trial HSC Extension 2 Mathematics; ASSC (D); AMC (D); NCQ (D); Cricket (03-04); 4th grade Cricket (03); Soccer (03); Cross Country (04); Badminton; Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets.

PARK David:

- PICKLES Oliver: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (99-03); SWE (03); Music Pocket (03); GC (HD 02); ASSC (D 99-02); ASEC (D 02); ASBSC (D 04); 1st grade – Sailing (01-03); Captain – Sailing team (03-04); CHS Sailing – winner – Pacer division (02-03); Joint Coal Board Trophy (03-04); Fundraising.
- PLUIS Adrian: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); School Formal Committee (02); ASSC (D 99-00); AMC (D 00); ASEC (D 99, 02); Rugby (99-04); 2nd XV – Rugby (04); Rowing (00-01); 1st grade - Basketball (02-04); Captain – Basketball team (04); Zone Cross Country (99, 03); Swimming (99-01); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets.

POON Matthew:

QIAN David:

- RAO Anirudh: Peer Support Leader (02); SRC (03-04); Kite Day Committee; AMC (HD 99; D 00-02); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); GC (D 01); GPS Cricket (99-02); Bowling Award Cricket (01); 2nd XI Cricket (02-04); Chess (99-02); Divisional Champions Award Chess (02); Representative 'Future Leaders' Conference; Fundraising Youth Off the Streets, Legacy Badge Day.
- RAVEENDIRAN Nirushan: (2001-2004): Most Consistent Award (00); Year 8 Sports Champion; 2nd English (01); GC (HD 02; D 00); AMC (D 99, 01-03); NCQ 9D 03); ASCSC (D 02); MCYA (Credit 99); Cricket; Captain 15As (01); 1st XI Cricket (02-04); Team member Five Highs Cricket Carnival (Adelaide 04); Team member 1st XI to win CEC Rubie Trophy; Soccer (01-03); Duke of Edinburgh Scheme (02-04); Young Achievers Australia Business Skills Program (03); Fundraising Amnesty International; Legacy Badge Day, CANTEEN, Oxfam 100km Walk, Youth Off the Streets.

REN Eric: 1st – Design and Technology (00-01); 1st – Visual Arts (01-02); ASCSC (Gold Medal 99; HD 99, 00, 03; D 01-02); NCQ (HD 00-02; D 03); AMC (HD 03; D 99-02); ASSC (D 99, 01-02); ASEC (D 00-01); Cross Country (99-03); 1st grade – Cross Country (04); Rowing (99-02).

ROSENZVEIG-HOLLAND Joel:

RUAN Tim: (2003-2004): NCQ (HD 03); AMC (D 03-04); ASSC (D 03); Basketball (03-04); Table Tennis (03-04); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets; Jeans for Genes, Legacy, Red Cross.

SAMARASINGHE Sam:

SAXENA Aman: (2000-2004): Peer Mediator (03); Academic Merit List (00-03); Debating (00-03); Cricket (00-04); Captain – 4th XI – Cricket (02-03); Soccer (02-04); 1st XI – Soccer (03-04); Fundraising – Amnesty International; Jeans for Genes; Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.

SEDAGHAT Nima: (2003-2004):

SELIM Daniel:

- SEVINC Kagan: (2003-2004): GPS Soccer; Rifle Shooting; Basketball: Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- SHANTHIKUMAR Krishaanth: 1st Chemistry (03); 3rd Chemistry (04); AMC (HD 99-00, 02; D 01); ASSC (HD 99, 02; D 00-01, 03); NCQ (HD 02-03; D 00-01); Australian Schools Economics Competition (Prize 04); ASEC (D 99-02); GC (D 01); Cricket (01-04); 1st XI Cricket (03-04); Soccer (99-03); Fundraising.
- SHEIL Clement: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program; TCB; ICB; SCB; Debating; Les Gordon Trophy (02); 1st – Modern History (04); 2nd – Legal Studies (04); Peter Walker Award for English Literature; Debating Award (99); GC (HD 01-02); ASSC (HD 00; D 01-02); NCQ (HD 00-01); ASEC (HD 00-01); AMC (D 01); 2nd – Debating – Commonwealth Bank Junior Competition for South East Sydney; Captain 3rd grade Debating (03); Cricket; Soccer; Water Polo.

SHEN Jack:

- **SHEN Mark:** Peer Mediator (03); Yearbook Committee (04); AMC (HD 99; D 00-02); ASSC (D 00); Australian Schools Economics Competition (D 04); GPS Basketball (00-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- SHINER Matthew: Peer Support Leader (02); Peer Mediator (03); Prefect (04); Music Program; SWE (00-02); SSB (01-02); 1st – Music (99); 1st – French (00); 1st – PD/H/PE (03); Academic Merit List (00-04); ASEC (HD 01-02); GC (HD 01-02); ASSC (D 99-01); AMC (D 99-02); NCQ (D 00-10); Cricket (99-04); Vice Captain – 2nd XI – Cricket (01-02); 1st XI – Cricket (02-04); Captain – Cricket (04); Combined GPS 1st XI – Cricket (04); Soccer (9-04); 2nd grade – Soccer (02); Captain – Soccer (03); 1st grade – Soccer (04); Combined GPS 3rd grade – Soccer; Player of the Year Award – Soccer; Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Legacy Badge Day, Jeans for Genes.
- SHORES Benjamin: Peer Support Leader (02); SRC (03); Sydney South East District Secondary Drama Camp (02); Young Dramatists Page to Stage (02); Sydney South East Festival of Drama (02); Outstanding Contribution to Drama Award (03); Rugby (99-04); Basketball (99-03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- SHUTTLEWORTH Charles: Peer Support Leader (02); GC (HD 02); ASSC (HD 02; D 00-01); ASEC (HD 02); NCQ (HD 00-02; D 03); AMC (D 00-01, 03); ASCSC (D 00-01); GPS Basketball (99-04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- SIU Eric: 1st Chinese (Foreign) (02); ASEC (HD 00; D 01-02); AMC (D 99-01); ASSC (D 03); NCQ (D 02); Basketball (00-03); Fundraising Red Shield Appeal, Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.

SONG William:

SRINATH Havish: ASSC (D 99-00); Soccer (99-02); Cricket; Captain 3rd XI – Cricket (02-03); 2nd XI – Cricket (03-04); Youth Achievers Program (03); Fundraising – Amnesty International, Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.

STONE Andrew:

- STOTT Jacob: (1998-2004): Peer Support Leader; Music Program; ICB (99-00); SCB (01-02); 1st German (99-01); 1st Accelerated German Continuers (03); 2nd English (02); 2nd grade Waterpolo (01); 1st grade Waterpolo (03-04); Youth Exchange to Germany (01); Rotary Youth Ambassador to Germany (02).
- SUN Alan: (2003-2004): AMC (D 03); ASSC (D 03); Basketball (03); Young Achievement Australia Business Skills Program (03); Fundraising REACH.

TAAFFE Oliver:

- **TAN Jason:** Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Special Medal; 2nd Business Studies (04); 1st Biology (04); ASSC (HD 99, 02; D 01); NCQ (HD 02; D 00); AMC (D 99, 01-02); ASEC (D 02); Rugby (01-04); Rowing (01-04); 2nd IV Rowing (03); Cox 1st VIII (CHS Champions) (04); Zone, Regional and State Cross Country (99-04); Athletics (04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- THAI Phillip: Student Librarian (9-01); Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Badges Committee; Yearbook Committee; Debating (99-03); AMC (HD 01, 03; D 99-00, 02); ASSC (D 99-00, 02); ASEC (D 02); GC (D 02); ASCSC (D 02); NCQ (HD 03-04; D 01); Australian Schools Economics Competition (HD 04); Tennis (99-01); Basketball (02-04); Soccer (99-04); Co-Captain 14C Soccer Team (03) who won the Dolan Cup; Chess (99-01); House Badge (03); Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Legacy Badge Day, Reaching Horizons.
- THANGASAMY Isaac: Peer Support Leader (02); Music Program (9-03); SWE (00-03); SSB (00-03); Dux French (02); 3rd – English Advanced (03); AMC (HD 00-01); GC (HD 01); NCQ (D 03); Cricket (99-01); Bronze Medal – Duke of Edinburgh Award Scheme; Fundraising – Amnesty International; Legacy Badge Day.
- **TO William:** (2003-2004): AMC (D 03); ASSC (D 03); ASCSC (D 03); Soccer (03); Basketball (04); Fundraising Legacy.
- **TSANG Jeffrey:** GC (HD 01); AMC (D 99, 01-02); ASCSC (D 02); ASSC (D 99-00, 02); ASEC (D 02); GPS Tennis (99-01); GPS Basketball (01-04); GPS Soccer (02-04); Fundraising Jeans for Genes Day, Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets.
- TSE Garry: Peer Support Leader (02); 3rd Design and Technology (02); Academic Merit List (01); AMC (D 99-03); ASSC (D 99-01); NCQ (D 03); Basketball (99-04); Captain 3rds Basketball (04); Soccer (02-04); Cross Country (9-01); Young Achievers Australia Program (02); Fundraising Amnesty International; Legacy Badge Day, Youth Off the Streets, Jeans for Genes.
- UTHAYACHANDRAN Abarajithan: Peer Mediation Leader; Academic Merit List (99-04); NCQ (HD 02-04); AMC (D 99-03); ASCSC (D 99-01); ASEC (D 02); Australian Schools Economics Competition (04); ASSC (D 99-03); Cricket (99-02); Soccer (99-02); Fundraising – Amnesty International, Legacy Badge Day.
- VAN Jimmy: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Record Committee (01-04); Badges Committee (01-04); SWE (03), SCB (02); ICB (00-01); TCB (99); Music Pocket (02); Old Boys Prize (04); 1st – German (00); 1st – French (00); AMC (HD 99-04); NCQ (HD 00-04); ASSC (HD 99-04); Aust Schools Economics Competition (HD 04); GC (HD 02); GPS Athletics (99-02); Tennis (99-01); Soccer (01-04); Rowing (01-02); Cox – 2nd VIII (03); Fundraising – Jeans for Genes; Daffodil Day, Youth Off the Streets.

VONGRATSAVAI Jason:

WANG Danny:

WANG Mian: SRC (01-03); SRC Treasurer (03); Prefect (04); Year Survey Committee (01); Charities Committee (03); Senior Dance Committee (03); Kite Day Committee (03); Chamber Choir (99); SBHS Plaque; Geography Prize (03); House Badge (02); equal 1st – Geography (01); 1st – Geography (03-04); 3rd – Mathematics (99); GC (HD 01-02); AMC (HD 99, 01; D 00, 02-03); NCQ (HD 00; D 01-03); ASCSC (D 00); GC (HD 01-02); Zone and Regional Athletics (99-02); GPS Athletics (99-03); Cross Country (04); GPS Cross Country (99-01); Cross Country – GPS Championships (00-03); GPS Rowing (99-02); GPS Basketball (02-04); Vice-Captain – Basketball team (02-03); GPS Soccer (00-04); Captain – Soccer team (02-03); Soccer referee (03-04).

WANG Tom: (2003-2004):

WANG Yu Lin: (2003-2004):

WANG Zhi:

WARE Oscar: Debating (00-04); 1st – English (99); 3rd – English (03); 1st – French (03); 1st – Ancient History (03); ASWC (04); Cricket (00-03); 2000 Cricketing Committee Award; Captain – Cricket Team (02); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets.

WODAK Daniel:

WONG Alexander:

WONG Kae Yen: Peer Support (01); Peer Mediation (02); Music Program (99-03); SWE; Woodwind Quintet, Symphony Orchestra; Debating (99-02); Team member 0 runners up in Sydney South East Debating Competition 900); Debating Award (00); Gold Medallion; Music Pocket (02); Senior Prize for Creativity (04); 1st – Visual Arts (03); ASSC (HD 02); GC (HD 02); ASCSC (HD 01); ASEC (D 00, 02); AMC (D 00-02); Rugby (99004); Rowing (00-03); producer of videos about the school and the school swim team; Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets, Amnesty International.

WONG Michael:

WU Jack:

- WU Tim: 1st Art (99); 1st History (00); 2nd Economics (03); AMC (HD 02; D 99, 01); ASSC (HD 01; D 99); GC (HD 01); NCQ (D 02-03); GPS Basketball (02-04); GPS Soccer (02-04); Young Achievement Australia Business Skills Program (03); Fundraising – Red Shield Appeal, Starlight Children's Foundation.
- **WU Xavier:** (2003-2004): Music Program; String Ensemble; Chamber Orchestra; Zone, Regional, State and GPS Swimming (03-04); Young Achievement Australia Business Skills Program (03); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- XIN Pu Shen: Peer Support Leader (02); Prefect (04); Records Committee (03); Year Book Committee (04); Music Program (99-02); SWE (01); SSB (01); Woodwind Ensemble (00); Music Pocket (02); Plaque; AMC (HD 99, 01, 03; D 00); Australian Economics Competition (HD 04); ASSC (HD 04; D 00, 02-03); NCQ (HD 01); ASCSC (HD 02); GC (D 01); Fencing (99-01); 2nd grade Fencing Team Captain (01); Soccer (02-04); Captain – 16Ds Soccer (02); Vice-Captain – 6th grade Soccer (03); Captain – 6th grade Soccer (04); Golden Boot Award – Soccer (03); Rowing (00-03); 1st grade Waterpolo (04); Chess (99-02); artwork published in the 2001 Harrington Street Gallery calendar; Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets; General Manager – Reaching Horizons (charity organisation).

XU David:

YANG Charles:

- **YANG John:** Music Program; AMC (HD 99, 01; D 00, 02); NCQ (HD 01; D 02); Cricket (99-00); Swimming (01-02); Chinese Eisteddfod (04); Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.
- YANG Phillip: Prefect (04); Gold Medallion; Dux Year 7, 8, 9, 10; 2nd place overall Year 11 (03); 1st Geography (99, 02); 1st Latin (99-00); 1st Mathematics (00); 1st Chinese (00); 1st History (01); 1st Technical Drawing (01-02); 1st History (Wars) (02); 1st Chemistry (03); 1st Physics (03); J.W. Gibbes Senior School Prize; Australian Schools Chemistry Olympiads (HD 03); Australian Schools Physics Olympiad (D 03); Australian Mathematical Olympiad (Bronze Certificate 03); Australian Intermediate Mathematics Olympiad (D 02); Volleyball (01-04); Champions NSW Schools Cup (01); runners-up NSW Schools Cup (02-03); Australian Volleyball Schools Cup (01-03); Captain 2nd grade Volleyball (03-04); Basketball (99-04); Fundraising Jeans for Genes.

YE Hunter:

YEO Daniel:

YEUNG Ngai Hang: (2003-2004):

YU Li: Peer Mediator (02-03); AMC (HD 00; D 01); ASSC (HD 99-02; D 03); NCQ (HD 02); GC (HD 00); 2nd grade – Fencing (00-03); Fundraising - Youth Off the Streets; REACH.

ZGLINIECKI Michael:

ZHANG Haowei:

ZHANG Jia Chen: (2003-2004): AMC (D 03); Fundraising – Daffodil Day, Jeans for Genes.

- ZHANG Kevin: Australian Youth Choir; BSC (HD 04); GC (HD 02; D 01); AMC (HD 00; D 99, 01-03); ASSC (D 99-03); Tennis (01-03); Fundraising – Forty Hour Famine; Youth Off the Streets.
- **ZHANG Sheng:** Yearbook Committee: AMC (HD 99-00); NCQ (HD; D 03); ASCSC (D 01); Maths Challenge State (Credit 01); Basketball (99-04); Captain 4th grade Basketball; Athletics (99-00); Volleyball (03-04); 2nd grade Volleyball (03-04); Volleyball Premiers (03-04); Best and Fairest Award Volleyball (03); Fundraising Jeans for Genes, Amnesty International; Legacy Badge Day.
- ZHANG Yinan: Peer Mediator (03); Badges Committee (03-04); Sydney Boys High Plaque; Special Prize for Service to the School; House Badge (02); AMC (Prize 99-00, 02, D 03-04, HD 01); NCQ (D 04, HD 01-02); Excellence 100% 03); Australian Mathematical Olympiad (Bronze Certificate 04); GC (HD 02); ASSC (D 99, HD 02, 04); ASCSC (HD 02, 04); ASEC (D 01-02); Mathematics Enrichment Stage (D 01); Mathematics Challenge Stage (D 01-02); Australian Intermediate Mathematical Olympiad (D 02); Rowing (01-04); Basketball (199-00); 3rd IV Rowing (03-04); 3rd IV CHS Rowing Championships (03-4); Zone and Regional Cross Country (99, 03-04); 1st grade Cross Country (04); Vice-Captain and Acting Captain Cross Country (04); Athletics (99-04); Vice-Captain Athletics (04).
- **ZHENG Jack:** Student Librarian (99-01); AMC (HD 02-03; D 99-01); NCQ (HD 03; D 00); GC (HD 02); ASSC (D 99-02); ASCSC (D 01); GPS Cricket (99-02); Committee Award Dedication to Cricket (00/01); GPS Chess (99-00); Founding Member Reaching Horizons; Fundraising Youth Off the Streets.

ZHENG Kelvin:

ZHOU Robert: Peer Support Leader (02); AMC (HD 01-02); ASSC (HD 01; D 02); GC (HD 01-02); ASEC (D 00-01); NCQ (D 02); Academic Merit List (02); Basketball (99-04); Soccer (99-04); 2nd XI – Soccer (03); Captain of three soccer teams through unbeaten seasons; Fundraising – Legacy Badge Day, Jeans for Genes, Youth Off the Streets.

ZHU Willie:

ZOU Henry:

ZVEDENIOUK Ilia: AMC (HD 00); NCQ (HD 03; D 00); ASSC (D 99-00); ASEC (D 01); Tennis (00-03); 2nd grade – Tennis (03); Soccer (99-04); 1st grade – Chess 99-04); Played first board – Chess for the 2003 NSW School's Senior Championship winning team; and scoring 100% in all competitions in 2004 for his school as his team again captured the NSW Senior Championship. Fundraising.
Class Lists

For Year 7 see Salvete, and for Year 12 see Valete.

Class 8E

CAI Tony, CHEUNG Cary, COHN Jason, COPPA Jed, DESAI Mihir, HUI Joshua, IP James, JIN Daniel, LAM Kevin, LEE Matthew, LIEU Nathan, LIU Chang, LO George, LUONG Ian, MA Jiawen, MA Winson, MENZIES James, MEROM Shahar, MICKOVSKI Kiril, MYRONENKO Michael, NG Adrian, QIN George, RUSLI Matthew, SHI David, SIMPSON Daniel, SUTTON Ryan, WANG Phillip, YANG Charles, YOON Robert, ZU Zhi

Class 8F

BALACHANDRAN Ajay, BOWES Dominic, BURNEY Jack, CAMPION Daniel, CERECINA Ivan, CHOI Jun, CULIBAO Jonathan, DIOLASO Jonathan, FSADNI Matthew, GU Howard, HARRISON-TIKISCI Ziggy, HUANG Dean, JI Remy, KANDASAMY Arunan, KOMAROV Anton, LA Kenny, LI Philip, LOCHNER Nicholas, MA Kevin, MANCENIDO Zid, MEHMEDBASIC Muhamed, ROSENGARTEN Toby, SHAPILSKY Alex, SUN Yu (Tom), TRAC Warren, TSENG Benjamin, WANG Jack, WANG Kevin, WU Phil, XU Bob

Class 8M

CHAN William, CHANDRAKUMAR David, CHIU Daniel, IYER Shreyas, KIM Albert, LEE Winston, LEUNG Alvin, LUNG Brian, LUO Steven, MARTIN Calum, O'KEEFE Daniel, PALAU Benjamin, PFULL Brynley, PHAM Daniel, RAHMAN Sifat, REID Harrison, SHIH I-cheng, SHUM Christopher, STREET Lachlan, TAYLOR Alistair, TOH David, TRUONG Gary, VIEN David, VIJAYAKUMAR Daniel, VINGNANASINGAM Keerth, WANG Benjamin, WOGAS Andrew, WONG Jason, ZHANG Chamberlain, ZOLOTAREV Boris

Class 8R

AHMED Khalid, ANG Eric, BAPAT Ishan, BOCK Michael, CHEE Andrew, CHEN Robert, CHIM Daniel, DOVAN Alexander, HUA Richard, HUANG Garland, LAM Christopher, LEE Benjamin R, LEE Sean, LIM Andrew, LIU Simon, LOCKE Patrick, LUNG Bernard, MCDONNELL Nathan, MONTOYA ZORRILLA Edwin, NA Koeun, NG Danny, NGUYEN William, SUN Marco, TAN Lucian, THOMAS Ashwin, TING Simon, WONG Roy, YANG Caly, YANG Simin, YEUNG Alex

Class 8S

BHRUGUBANDA Hari, BOIKOV Lawrence, BURGER Lewis, CHEN Harry, COUTTS Matthew, DONG Roger, HAYES Nicholas, HUANG Jack, KARUNAKARAN Arun, KWOK Nathan, LAI Alexandro, LEE Benjamin S, LEE Joshua, LEUNG Andrew, LINDEBACK Thomas, LIVINGSTON Joel, LU Tan, LUU Peter, MAI Tam, NADKARNI Ishan, PHUAH Paul, PHUNG Jordan, RATNAYAKE Ricky, SERBAN Michael, SONG Joon, SPENCER Mark, SRIRANJAN Kogulan, TSE Andrew, TSUI Vincent, ZHANG Schuman

Class 8T

CHAN Nathan, DAI Jun, DENG Yiming, DU Ping, FAN David, FANG Bernard, FU Danny, HO Anthony, HUYNH Anthony, IYER Kartik, JOO Timothy, JUNG Daniel, LE Kevin, LE Minh, LI Edward, LI Timothy, LIU Ruiwen, MAO John, NGUYEN Peter, PERANANTHAN Varan, PHAN Albert, TANG Andrew, TANG Christopher, TSE Damien, VU Mark, WANG Arthur, WONG Dennis, YIP Jackson, YU David, ZHAI Xiaoyi

Class 9E

ASHOKKUMAR Ashleey, BA Mac, BASKARAN Radheshan, CHENG Leo, GEORGE Reuben, JIA Stanley, LAM Kevin, LEE Alexander, LEE Henry, LEE Kevin, LEUNG Jeffrey, LUO Roger, LY Terry, NGUYEN Victor, PANDIT Rommo, PARK Anthony, PARK Ji-Kwang, SHEN Michael, SIN Alfred, SONG Harry, SUN Bill, TRAN David, TRAN Joshua, TRAN Kent, TRAN Raymond, WANG Siyang, WONG Cambridge, WONG Leslie, XIE Jeffrey, ZHU Jie

Class 9F

ALIM Michael, ARAFAT Amir, AZAD Shaihan, CHEN Patrick, FETHERSTON Matthew, HAN Owen, HU David, HURRELL Thomas, HUSSAIN Sabeeh, HUYNH Phillip, JIN Frank, KESWANI Aditya, KIM David, KIM Kevin, KIM Matthew, KLOCKER Amadeus, LEE Clement, LUU Eric, LUU John, MORRIS Anthony, NGUYEN Trong, VU Martin, VULKANOVSKI Alexander, WAN Anthony, WONG Danny, XU Richard, YAO Edward, YU Kelvin, YUAN Steven, ZHUANG Wei

Class 9M

AMEEN Sameer, BLACKSHIELD Efrem, BLAXELL D'arcy, CHEN Steven, COUTTS Michael, DEACON Lachlan, DUFFY Patrick, FREIMAN Joshua, GOKARN Rahul, GUO Yun-Zhe, HEO Phillip, ISSAEV Vassili, JEYARAMAN Sriram, KELDOULIS Maximilian, LEACH Rowan, LUSCOMBE Jeremy, MIAO Richard, NA Joeun, PALANA Calvin, PERERA Oswin, PHAM Andrew, PORT Joshua, PRENTICE-DAVIDSON Blaise, SONG Steven, TRAN Ian, TSITALOVSKIY Vitaliy, WONG David, WONG Milton, WU Li, ZAMAN Redhwan

Class 9R

ALCHIN Robbie, AU Jacky, CHERIAN Renju, DIZON David, HUSAINI Adnan, ISKANDER Andrew, ISKANDER Timothy, JIN Terry, KOK Jason, KUMAGAYA David, LE Alexander, LIU Martin Han, LIU Xiao, MALEK Peter, NG Albert, NGUYEN Quan, NI Max, ROCA Raymond, SHEN William, SHI Wen, SIN Matthew, STADNIK Eugene, TAO Jamie, WILSON Jeremy, XIA Tom, YANG Louis, YANG Richard, YEUNG Rano, YUEN Shek-Him, ZHANG Geoffrey

Class 9S

CHEN Kevin, CHEN Michael, CHIU Jaffe, CUI Si, DEVAPIRIAM Richard, DING Jackson, FARHAT Moussa, LAI Joseph, LEVANIC Nikola, LI Zhongzhu, LIU Martin, LOU Samson, LU Weiping, LUI Edmond, NAIK Aditya, PANICKER Girish, SANKARAN Siddharth, SIU Chapman, SO Gary, SOMANCHI Ravi, SU Raymond, TAN Alan, TAN Jih, WANG Albert, WANG Jing, WONG Kelvin, WONG Wilson, ZHAI George, ZHANG Wilson

Class 9T

ALAGANAR Arjuna, CHEN David, DENG Edward, FAN Howard, GUNARATNE Dakshika, HSIAO Jourdan, HUANG Andrew, JANG Raymond, JAWAHIR Amjad, KARUNARATNE Gehan, KIM Joseph, LIN Yu, LIU Andrew, MACKAY James, MAK Thomas, NG Matthew, NGUYEN Richard, PHU Jason, SATHIAKUMAR Samuel, SHUTTLEWORTH Aaron, SURENDRAN Arthavan, TRAN Nguyen, VERTOUDAKIS Alexander, VISSER Josef, WALKER Henry, WANG Godwin, WANG Michael, WU Eddy, WU William, ZHANG Sean

Class 10E

ALI Rezwan, ANGELL Blake, BURKE Stephen, CHAN Aaron, GRIBBLE Samuel, JEYENDRA Adrian, KAMERMAN Joel, LAMBERT Justin, LIU Bob, LIU Richard, LO Bernard, LOUIE Ellis, LUNNEY Martin, NAOUMENKO Daniel, OH Abraham, PHAM Edward, QIAN Weir, RAZEEN Malik, REIS Andrew, SHAO Chong, SHAW Yeou-Kang, SHI Leo, SRIKUMAR Sriram, TIEDGEN James, TRAN David, UTHAYACHANDRAN Pradeepan, VAIDYA Kaivan, WONG Eugene, WONG Nelson, WONG Thomas, XU Wayne

Class 10F

BUI Minh, CHEN Long, CHHOR Samuel, CHOW Alan, DANG Hieu, FLORES Adrian, HA Augustine, HU Kevin, KIM Kevin, KWON Joon, LE Hai, LEE Alan, LEE Frederick, LEONG Kieran, LIU Kenny, LUONG Jordan, MEI Ting, NGUYEN Andy, NI Davie, NITHIYENDRAN Ramesh, POPESCU Mihnea-Paul, TAO Michael, THAYAPARAN Miruthulan, TO Christopher, TRIEU Alan, TRINH Andrew, UDDIN Tanvir, WIJEYARATNE Ashan, YE George, ZHOU Muli

Class 10M

ABEYSURIYA Romesh, AMILBANGSA Khalil, AMIN Faraz, BUDD Christopher, BURRELL Roger, CHANG Douglas, CHONG Tony, DANG Henry, FANG Jason, HO Kevin, HUANG Kenny, LEE Jongha, LEONG Andric, LEVY Michael, LI Richard, LIU Henry, MAK Kevin, MURRAY Julian, NGUYEN Vincent, RAHMAN Mushfiq, ROSER Phillip, SZABO Alexander, THIEVIASINGHAM Daniel, THILLAINADESAN Senthil, VERMA Rishubh, WONG Alan, WONG Bennett, YANG Quinton, ZHONG Tony, ZHOU Michael

Class 10R

AMBATI Chaitu, BOULOS Iliya, CAO David, CHAN Brian, CHEN Robin, CHEONG Benjamin, CHOW Benjamin, D'AVIGDOR Lewis, GUNASEKERA Dinuka, GUO Steven, HO Chung, JIANG John, LIN David, LU Angelo, LY Kin Jing, MAZID Taymur, NG Nicholas, NGUYEN Gregory, OCIAS Alexander, RAHMAN Labib, RAJA Rahul, RODRIGO Christopher, SU Dennis, SUN Jack, TU Cong, WU Daniel, XU Yimin, YU Aolifu, ZHANG Simon, ZHANG William

Class 10S

BANH Joe, CHAU Engleman, COUSINS Matthew, DIEP Jason, HIBBERT Edward, HUSSAIN Yaseen, HUYNH Anthony, JAHJA Christopher, KIM Yo-ha, LAI Larry, LIEU Peter, LY Anthony, MANAMPERI Gajaba, MORGAN James, NOSSAR Mstislav, PEARSON Rory, PHU Jack, ROTHERHAM Riet, SAMARASINGHE Mark, SHI Andrew, SHU Timothy, SYED Sahir, SZABO Attila, TANG Yu Wun, TRAN Paul, TRAN Peter, TRAN Steve, WANG Peter, WONG Francis, WONG Matthew

Class 10T

AFSHAR Soheil, ARCHER James, BALASHOV Nikita, BLAXELL Eddy, CAO William, CHEUNG Francis, CHONG Aaron, CUNNINGHAM Sandy, FARROW-PALMER Adam, GUPTA Arghya, GURUPARAN Giridhaar, HUSSAIN Shafat, HUYNH Raymond, ISLAM Naziful, KARUNAKARAN Ajith, KOGAN Alex, LU Jason, LUI Victor, NELIATH Vinayak, PHAM Vinh, QIU Kelvin, RAZEEN Thariq, SHARMA Himanshu, SUN Dale, TAAFFE Felix, TAN Tony, WANG Evans, WEI Victor, YEUNG Yuk-Lun, ZINGER Gleb

Class 11E

BALGAHOM Fahmy, BODROZIC Dejan, CHEN James, CHEUNG Jason, DESAI Varun, FONSEKA Damitha, GORDON Peter, GREENUP David, HUA Li-Bin, JIANG Rowland, KARUNARATNE Shehan, KHALIL Mohsin, LEE Jerry, LI Michael, McMANUS Gabriel, NGO Gary, NOMCHONG Ian, PATEL Viraj, PHUNG Jason, PHUNG Ryan, SAMARAWEERA Manusha, SHARPE Trent, STEEN Mischa, STRETTON Jacob, TRAN Christopher, TUNG Patrick, WANG Jun, WONG Dominic, XUE Steven, YANG David, YONG Chuanji, YU Ronald, ZHANG John, ZHANG Li

Class 11F

ALI Tahseen, CHAN John, CHEUNG Louis, CHUNG Hae-Sang, DOU David, FAN Jimmy, FRAZI Nathan, GOUGH Jack, GUO Daniel, GUO Ranald, JAMES Jeremy, KNOLL Avi, LAM Raymond, LI Jackson, LIANG Charles, LIN Andrew, NHAM Benjamin, ONG Daniel, PARTHASARATHY Akshay, POON Billy, PRABAKARAN Sayanthan, SANGHA Rakshinder, SHI Kevin, SINGARAYAR Sanjiv, SUN Jack, THAI Michael, TRAN Dat, VADALI Ravi, WONG Keith, XU William, ZHANG Phillip

Class 11M

BARI Ridan UI, CHAN Toby, CHOI Daniel, CLAYTON David, CRADOCK Simon, DAKDOUK Ibrahim, DELARUELLE Olivier, DORAN Yaegan, DU Johnny, GRECH David, GUTNIK Gabriel, HA James, KIM Mikael, KUMAR Raj, KWOK Jamie, LEE Hann, LESTER William, LOPEZ Bertrand, MANI Shibbu, MARCINIAK Philip, MITSUJI Sen, MOSTAFA Naeef, PEREIRA Peter, PHAN James, RAJASEKERA Anuranga, SEOW Mitchell, SIU Raymond, SKARIAH Arun, STAMATI Benjamin, TALLURI Vamsi, TRAN Charley, YAO Richard, YUEN Jeremy, ZHOU Jun

Class 11R

BROWN James, CHAU Anthony, CLEGG William, DE SILVA Vishan, FONG Gary, GEORGE Vineeth, GRIMM Dominic, HANSRA Balraj, HE Yang, HUANG Peter, KALDOR Thomas, KARIAWASAM Peshala, KUMAR Shaheen, LEONG Edward, LI Nan, LOU Michael, LU Winston, MAINPRIZE Thomas, OVADIA Edward, PASUPATHY Gantheepan, QI Dawei, QIAN Roger, ROUCEK Nicholas, SARKAR Anik, SCHARFEGGER Joshua, SIRINOPAKUL Victor, TAYLOR Mitchell, VITHANAGE Anuradha, WANG David, WATZLAFF Paul, WONG Paul, YOGANATHAN Rajeevan, ZAK Ilya, ZINZOPOULOS Alexander-Vasil

Class 11S

AMION Ralph, BULL Nicholas, CHEN Henry, COHEN Alon, DOBRINSKY Savva, DOMESHOK Stan, DOMNI Victor, HOLLOWAY John, KRAINDLER Joshua, KRUSZELNICKI Karl, KWOK William, LI Lixang, LY Brian, NEO Hung, NGAN Gordon, NGUYEN Christopher, NGUYEN Martin, NINYO Joel, PEREIRA Robert, SINGH Sahaj, SO Clarence, SO Vincent, SYED Atif Zaki, TRIPP Philip, WANG Jia, WANG Michael, WICKRAMASINGHE Suren, WONG Wesley, WRENCH Bryan, XIE Joe, YANG Chen, YOUNG James, ZHANG William

Class 11T

CAI Frank, CHAN Henry, CHEN Christopher, DAM Alan, FONG Jamie, HALLS Cameron, HAN Jack, HONG Walter, HWAN Albert, ISLAM Anisul, JONG Jeffrey, KANG James, KOUCHAK Rodney, KWOK Ian, LIU Kevin, LU Robert, MITTELHEUSER Thomas, NG Vincent, PALANA Dustin, PANG Jason, SALEM Omar, SHI Richard, THOMAS Daniel, TIAN Philip, TIEDGEN Alexander, WANG Edward, WEI Tom, WU Andrew, XUE Kevin, ZEVIN Simon, ZHANG Bill, ZHANG Tom, ZHAO Jiong



Student Representative Council

Sydney Boys High School

The Record 2004

Back Row: W.Huang, D.Huynh (Vice President), P.Pereira, I.Kwok, J.James, R.Burrell, M.Seow, R.Kouchak, C.Rodrigo Second Row: S.Srikumar, M.Kayes, N.McDonnell, R.Yang, T.Joo, M.Farhat, W.Lu, Y.Gao, A.Shapilsky, E.Blaxell Front Row: K.Kim, Z.Zu, Y.Yeung, R.George, B.Wrench (President), D.Lo, M.Ling, T.Harvey, P.Desmond **Student Representative Council**

Peer Mediation and Peer Support



Peer Mediation Back Row: M.Li, V.Talluri, S.Singh, P.Pereira, V.George, S.Dobrinsky Second Row: S.Singarayar, A.Skariah, M.Nguyen, A.Sarkar, I.Nomchong, H.Neo, G.Pasupathy, R.Bari Front Row: B.Poon, M.Khalil, M.Samaraweera, Ms B.Berger (Coordinator), P.Kariawasam, N.Mostafa, B.Stamati



Peer Support Back Row: M.Zhou, C.Shao, A.Jeyendra, V.Wei, R.Pearson

Sixth Row: J.Diep, R.Raja, S.Gribble, T.Mei, B.Angell, G.Nguyen, A.Szabo, J.Tiedgen, T.Chong Fifth Row: D.Sun, S.Cunningham, Q.Yang, R.Liu, R.Huynh, Y.Hussain, A.Wijeyaratne, K.Ho, H.Dang, P.Lieu Fourth Row: D.Naumenko, P.Tran, E.Hibbert, D.Gunasekera, H.Li, J.Kwon, S.Zhang, M.Samarasinghe, K.Liu Third Row: R.Rotherham, D.Thieviasingham, L.Chan, F.Lee, J.Murray, G.Manamperi, S.Syed, A.Huynh, A.Lu Second Row: A.Wong, S.Srikumar, N.Islam, J.Archer, J.Morgan, S.Burke, M.Razeen, A.Ha, K.Kim, T.Razeen Front Row: R.Abeysuriya, L.Rahman, T.Tan, J.Sun, Ms J.May (HT Welfare), K.Vaidya, J.Luong, B.Lo, R.Verma

Cadets



Cadet Under Officers CUO W.Clegg, CUO S.Cradock (Senior Under Officer), CUO J.Yuen.



One Platoon Cadets Back Row: Cdt M.Ling, Cdt R.Rotherham, Cdt F.Lee, Cdt R.Shenoy. Second Row: Cdt C.Chen, Cdt L.Appleton, Cdt D.Stojanovic, Cdt N.Spoljaric, Cdt B.Lung, Cdt D.Lo, Cdt E.Martini, Cdt B.Greenslade. Front Row: Cdt J.Wachsman, Cpl R.Raja, Sgt S.Srikumar, CUO J.Yuen (Platoon Commander), Cpl C.Budd, Cdt G.Zhang, Cdt V.Lam.

The Record 2004

Chess/Titration



Junior Chess C.Shum, S.Ting, A.Kandasamy, J.Cohn, A.Kim



Titration Team Back Row: V.Talluri, B.Hansra. Front Row: A.Sarkar, R.Mounarath, B.Lopez, V.Desai.

Foundation Day Assembly 2004

Distinguished guests, parents of our Prefects elect, staff and students. Good morning and welcome to the 121st Founders' Day Assembly. We are pleased to have with us as our special quest, Old Boy Bishop Brian King, a frequent visitor to our school over the years, who will deliver the occasional address. We are gathered today to commemorate October 1, 1883 when the first 46 students began their schooling at High. Our Prefects Elect are also here to become part of the official history of the school by accepting the call to a prestigious office. They have lived through a searching process of gualification and election to reach the point of induction here today. By investing School Prefects and honouring academic, sporting, spiritual and social values that unite us, this ceremony connects us to our traditions and founding principles in a very demonstrable way. Early next year the Prefects will be asked to sign the School Prefects Book, linking them to over 50 years of leadership history.

If you were time warped back 25 years to 1979, what would you recognise about the place? Certainly you would know the buildings, except for the Study Centre and UTS Gymnasium. There would be many familiar faces: Messrs Boros, Gainford and Kourtesis might be teaching you mathematics; Mr Hannon might be helping you with history or rugby; Messrs Bennett or Smith could well be teaching you science; Mr Moody in social science, Mr Farrington in PE, Mr Fittler in Industrial Arts or Ms McGuinness in the office, might interact with you in the course of the day. As you might imagine, there is a lot of corporate history hived like honey in those people. Stability of personnel is one feature of High that supports its traditions and values.

The place of selective schools in Sydney was on the agenda twenty five years ago as it is in 2004 with the expansion of the number of selective classes and the first year of the extended writing task. Back then, the issue was survival. The OBU and the Headmaster, Mr Outterside, made a deputation to the then Premier, Neville Wran, to secure a change of policy in respect of selective schools. The Record of 1979 published the text of a 1978 petition to the NSW Parliament, signed by 1500 people protesting the proposed elimination of selective schools. The petition said inter alia "We are further opposed to any action being taken to destroy the special nature of Sydney High School and its place in the

community. The School through its membership of the Great Public Schools during the past seventy years- and previously through its close association with the private schools in existence at its establishment in 1883 – has always formed a link between a great, highly developed State system of education and a number of great private secondary schools.

Your petitioners therefore humbly pray upon your Honourable House to recognise the special function of Sydney High School in the community and the need for the restoration of its former enrolment area, viz. the State of New South Wales (current between 1883 and 1928), which gave every child in this state the right to seek enrolment at Sydney High School. And further your petitioners pray that the criteria for enrolment be that of motivation to attend a special type of school which demands from its students a strong desire to participate in a rigorous scholastic, sporting and cultural programme involving the pursuit of excellence in studies, moral conduct, and behaviour in a "six-day" school week (as opposed to the normal "five-day" week of ordinary secondary schools), together with an assurance of parental participation well above the ordinary, in the various activities of the School needed to maintain its association with the Great Public Schools" (pp23-4).

As you all can appreciate from this example, our preoccupations have not altered much over the last quarter century, apart from the ironic push for rezoning of selective schools espoused by some Old Boys. We still want boys who are attuned to our allround excellence ethos; we still urge boys to commit themselves to Saturday team competition; we still need extraordinary parental participation to hold our own in the GPS scene; we still claim a special status in respect of the NSW Parliament; we are still fighting for selective education; and we still pursue academic rigour.

In summer sport, a snapshot of teams shows that in 2004 we have more senior cricket teams than in 1979 (5 to 4), and one less in 16s, two in 15s, one in 14s and 3 in 13s. In rowing there were two VIIIs, a junior VIII, 4 IVs, and six quads. Our current rowing program exceeds these 1979 figures. In basketball there were two open teams and not always four teams per age group. In tennis there were three

Foundation Day

open teams and age teams. Today we have more tennis, rowing and basketball, but significantly less cricket. In terms of results in 1979 the 1st VIII came eighth at the Head of the River and first grade basketball won one GPS game. As well as the stability of staff, we have enjoyed stability in our approach to sport over the course of our history, in leans years and joyous ones.

My point here is that despite a quarter of a century of demonstrated quality teaching and learning, and in the face of an often hard-nosed perception by some concerning the school's so-called decline, High has remained at least as good as it ever was – arguably better in many ways.

People who support High ought to want to see it stay true to itself as an institution – one that tried hard always to reach a high standard but at the same time understood that sport is character building and must be played in the right spirit.

Turning to our emblems of High spirit and leadership, I trust that every Prefect inducted today perceives himself in terms of the quality of leadership at High and endeavours during his tenure of office to uphold and enhance the traditions of this fine school. Be proud to serve in an institution that has produced with such marvellous consistency, high achieving all-rounders in large numbers for 121 years. One could hardly ask more of an institution. I commend to the gathering today this most worthy group of young men who embody the ideals that this school has maintained since its first October day so long ago.

Dr K A Jaggar Principal

Open Day 2004

Why choose Sydney Boys High for my son's secondary education? The building blocks of school achievement are not bricks but brains, not facilities but opportunities, not resources but individual talents. I believe our school offers a unique educational experience. At High we have the best of both worlds - through our membership of the AAGPS we have access to wonderful private school facilities and organisation - as a public school we have entitlements to the programs and support provided by state education. We offer single sex education, yet share a site and various programs and social activities with the girls at SGHS. We have gifted boys. It is our responsibility to nurture and motivate them to transform their gifts into talents. We provide opportunities for boys to test their potential. We try to motivate individuals to perform to their personal bests in a wide variety of endeavours.

High offers a rigorous curriculum

All our students study Classics in Year 7. In Year 8, students are offered two languages. In Year 9, as well as the usual electives, we offer Wars and Empires in History. Latin and Classical Greek are taught along with Chinese, French, German and Hebrew. In Years 8 & 9, talented mathematics students are targeted for extension studies with university personnel guiding their development. All

our students do Advanced English in the senior school. 90% of our students study English and mathematics extension courses in Year 11.

No standard courses are offered. We have the highest candidature for 4 unit mathematics in the state.

High encourages individual challenge

Structured acceleration is a feature of our talent development policy. Individuals have opportunities to accelerate in various courses. Groups of students are currently accelerating in Information Processes and Technology, Languages and Modern History. Our students undertake Distinction courses. Mind and Morality a university developed, Board endorsed dual accredited course is being delivered by a university lecturer on our site as a joint program with Sydney Girls High. We automatically enter boys in a wide range of academic competitions as part of our talent development program. We allocate a high number of teaching periods even to very small classes, to allow for diversity. We sponsor individual or teams to enter competitions in: writing, public speaking, the environment, business, computing or visual arts.

High applies purposeful grouping practices to put able learners with special learning needs together

Information on our students is gathered from an analysis of test scores, from information supplied by applicants, from primary school principals and counsellors and from internal testing. In Year 7, some special classes are formed. We have a class of students who performed very well in the SSET. We have a special needs English class, where an ESL teacher is assigned to assist the classroom teacher. We have classes selected to encourage students with high General Ability Test scores or with high English scores. In other classes, students are grouped as a result of assessed musical talent or sporting ability. In Years 8 through 12, classes in mathematics are streamed. In other courses with multiple classes, an advanced learner class or two is formed where possible.

High is serious about student welfare

Based around the Living Skills program for years 7-10. student welfare is a major part of our curriculum. The Student Welfare Committee has over 20 members. It meets twice a term to plan strategies, review programs and discuss student issues. We have a Head Teacher - Welfare who is responsible for a suite of programs designed to enhance student self-esteem and promote a sense of belonging to the school. Each incoming Year 7 boy is tested for literacy competence and surveyed for learning style orientation. Peer Support and Peer Mediation training is offered to a large number of boys. We provide all boys with diaries which contain our major operating policies and procedures as well as a comprehensive calendar of school events. We have applied technology to student attendance and progress monitoring. We have targeted weeks when welfare matters are reviewed. Every student is interviewed by the Principal twice each year to discuss his progress. At the end of each reporting period, 'students of concern' are targeted, interviewed and referred to the School Counsellor, the Careers Adviser or to their Year Adviser. Year Advisers mentor individual students in their learning. Students with special needs are supported. Our School Counsellors are actively engaged in our student welfare programming and offer referrals to specialist people and agencies.

High trains a large number of musicians in various ensembles

Our music program is highly regarded for its quality. Each year it attracts one third of the school to be involved in performance ensembles. We are supported by a co-ordinator, several experienced tutors and a strong fundraising program through the Music Committee. We have an annual Music camp that is very well patronised. The Performing Arts Unit targets several of our boys each year for its orchestras. We have a marching band. Our boys have significant performance opportunities each year. Many of our students are also trained by the DET Performing Arts Unit and are offered opportunities to perform at major events.

High has established an enviable debating program

We have won the Hume Barbour trophy, the state school symbol of debating supremacy, twenty times, significantly more than any other school. We have a highly structured program of GPS debates and also enter all state school contests for years 7-12. Our teams regularly represent the school in state finals or semi finals. Boys debate on Friday nights for GPS and during the week for state competitions. Each year has its own debating coach. Multiple teams are trained. Social debates with Sydney Girls are organised. High enters the Les Gordon history debating competition each year. The Debating Committee raises funds to support the debating program.

High recognises and rewards its students for their achievements

We are justly proud of our Student Awards scheme. We feel it represents best practice in recognising and rewarding students for achievement. Up to 50 boys in each year fulfil the demanding requirements of successful participation in six of the ten categories outlined in our booklet. Students are honoured at Year assemblies, Wednesday assemblies and at sports dinners, special assemblies and ultimately at Speech Night. They receive handsome medallions for the first four stages of achievement followed by a School Plaque and School Trophy for the senior years. There is a 'high talent' section of our weekly newsletter that is devoted to praising students for their achievements. Honour Boards around the school, bear the names of prize winners in many areas of endeavour. Photographs of successful students adorn our foyer. Our archives room preserves our history. Recognition of student achievement builds tradition.

High has an exceptional sports program

High boys were responsible for organising the first athletics competition for school boys in NSW held in August 1886 at the SCG. Self help is our tradition in sports organisation. We are justly proud of our association since 1906 with eight independent schools, comprising the Great Public Schools. The AAGPS committee conducts a peerless schoolboy competition in eight major sports. High competes in them all and offers opportunities in state schools knockout competitions and Combined High Schools carnivals as well we have the Five Highs cricket tournament, played each year in a different capital city. We have sports tours to The Armidale School. Melbourne High and to CHS rowing. We send teams to the national volleyball tournament in Melbourne each year. With seventeen organised sports and some social games, High has boundless sporting opportunities.

High involves its parents in school governance and program implementation

High parents have specified positions in the governance of this school. In the School Council, the Sydney High Foundation, the Parents and Citizens Association, parent representative positions are established. In the Student Welfare, Canteen, Outterside Centre Management, McKay Management and Library Committees, parents are important members of decision-making groups. In addition, parents chair and make up the bulk of a number of standing committees for the administration of: debating, music, rowing, rugby, rifle shooting, tennis, sailing, cricket and basketball. You can have a say in how resources are raised and spent and in how school activities are managed.

High communicates well with its community

Apart from our weekly *High Notes*, our web site is accessed regularly by parents and students, particularly to find maps of venues, to confirm events and dates, to use our hot links to various agencies or to find out more about our policies or programs. Our internal website has daily updates of our calendar and variations to school routine. Regular meetings, social events and correspondence through *High Notes* keep our community informed about what is going on.

High promotes itself as the leadership school

High Old Boys are well represented among leaders in sport, law, the professions, business, the arts, universities, religion, politics and civil service. The Prefect System works very well at High under the experienced guidance of our Prefects Master. Up to 40 Prefects may be appointed. There are stringent gualifications for candidates. Above average academic achievement, good attendance and behaviour records and demonstrated participation in the Student Awards Scheme, set the standard for our student leaders. The Prefects have a range of liaison and representational duties and serve in the School Canteen. The student Representative Council has four elected representatives for each vear. It functions as a sounding board for student opinion. It undertakes research and makes representations to the Principal for improvements to facilities for students. It alerts the Principal to occupational health and safety issues that arise from time to time. The SRC offers leadership opportunities outside the school at District and state level.

High has a social conscience

The school has an active Charities Committee. Each year adopts a charity and raises funds for its benefit. Mufti Days and Talent Quests are organised to raise funds for charities. Representatives of charities are invited to speak at student-run cohort assemblies, to inform students of the work of volunteer organisations. Year 12 has established a tradition of substituting charity collections for muck up day. Their initiative has raised substantial sums of money for worthwhile causes.

High has an extensive co-curricular program

Chess, Interact, Tournament of Minds Cadets, religious clubs Outdoor Education Community Service Environmental conscience High trains School Cadets High nurtures the spirit Philosophy Club Islamic Club ISCF

Music



Symphony Orchestra

Back Row: T.Shu, J.Kwon, S.Chen, J.Kwok, Y.Deng, P.Gordon, C.Siu, P.Lieu, M.Zhou. Second Row: G.Truong, D.Toh, S.Luo, A.Huynh, J.Phu, A.Chong, D.Fan, H.Walker, S.Zhang. Front Row: S.Hoang, S.Garafano, J.Byrnes, F.Rahul, L.Deacon, N.Wong, J.Chow, A.Yeung, A.Brown.



Senior Concert Band

Back Row: C.Siu, J.Kwok, M.Zhou, P.Gordon, A.Farrow-Palmer, V.Wei, S.Gribble, D.O'Keefe, B.Pfull. Third Row: K.Kim, A.Wong, W.Wu, P.Chen, A.Morris, S.Dobrinsky, T.Shu, Y.Deng, S.Burke, N.Ng. Second Row: A.Thomas, R.George, K.Kim, W.Chan, L.Deacon, W.Wong, J.Freiman. Front Row: M.Keldoulis, P.Lieu, J.Mackay, R.Xu, L.Yang, R.Chen, J.Luscombe, A.Shuttleworth, A.Vertoudakis.

Sydney Boys High School



Senior Stage Band Back Row: A.Farrow-Palmer, D.Cao, V.Wei, F.Taaffe. Front Row: A.Shuttleworth, A.Vertoudakis, J.Luscombe, K.Kim, C.Siu.



Intermediate Concert Band

Back Row: N.Kwok, A.Ho, T.Mai, W.Nguyen, L.Brown, A.Lim, P.Du, L.Boikov, D.Lo, M.Sun. Third Row: R.Ahmed, S.Merom, R.Ji, I.Nadkarni, D.Fan, M.Coutts, T.Wilson, M.Fsadni, M.Wong, K.McPherson. Second Row: C.Martin, P.Kurts, Z.Zu, A.Kim, S.Ponraj, J.Culibao, A.Balachandran, D.Wong, I.Bapat, T.Siu, M.Tong. Front Row: M.Chan, Z.Harrison-Tikisci, S.Ting, D.Tse, L.Burger, D.Shi, T.Rosengarten, C.Shum, R.Kashyap. Seated on Ground: L.Teng, A.Chan, H.Li, J.Santoso, J.Chow, C.Katsikaros, R.Chen, S.Zhang.



Intermediate Stage Band

Back Row: J.Luscombe, P.Lieu, M.Zhou, D.Cao, V.Wei, C.Siu. Front Row: A.Thomas, J.Freiman, T.Shu, A.Shuttleworth, A.Vertoudakis, W.Wong, I.Cerecina.



Junior Stage Band

Back Row: R.Chen, S.Lou, D.Simpson, P.Du, M.Coutts, Y.Deng. Second Row: L.Brown, B.Lau, I.Nadkarni, S.Merom, J.Phu, L.Deacon, A.Ho, D.Lo. Front Row: P.Kurts, R.Wong, N.Dimitropoulos, Z.Zu, C.Martin, P.Desmond, T.Siu.



Guitar Ensemble Back Row: L.Street, N.Ridges, T.Lindeback Front Row: D.Nguyen, I.Cerecina, H.Huh, S.Binns, D.Lam.



Training Concert Band Back Row: S.Lee, R.Alam, J.Park, S.Ke, J.Wong. Second Row: D.Andonovski, T.Burston, V.Ung, D.Nam, M.Osinski, C.Evans, N.Spoljaric, K.Lo. Front Row: A.Xie, R.Huynh, C.Liu, K.Nguyen N.Huang, N.Abeysuriya, D.Lam. Music



Training Strings Back Row: A.Huynh, D.Jung. Front Row: N.Lieu, K.Mickovski, J.Li, T.Sun, B.Jiang.



Vocalese Back Row: L.Brown, M.Coutts. Front Row: T.Burston, L.Png, S.He, C.Chen.

Visit to Boggabilla Central School – August 2004













The Record 2004







The Record 2004

Debating



First Grade GPS Debating D.Wodak, G.McManus, T.Ahmed, A.Stone.

Second Grade Debating

2004 would be a year of changes. Our long-time coach, Gareth Tilley, had told us at the conclusion of last season that we would be having a new coach this year. Also, with the departure of Liam Bennett and the promotion of Gabriel McManus to First Grade, Second Grade Debating had lost one of its standouts. Fortunately there had always been plenty of people in the squad throughout the junior years and there would still be a fair amount of competition to fill Gabriel's place.

The results were in: William Clegg and Thomas Kaldor would team up with the up-and-coming star: the charismatic Dawei Qi. The team had plenty of potential and, more importantly, a brilliant coach with which to harness the potential. Hamish Nairn had just graduated from Sydney High and immediately stood up to the challenge of Second Grade Debating coaching. Despite this being his first coaching job, he brought the team a wealth of knowledge and debating experience.

After resoundingly defeating the other great debating force – St Ignatius – in Round 1 of the GPS competition, it was clear that these boys wanted to top the Second Grade table. Unfortunately, some obvious tactical and debating errors saw us losing to a weaker opposition in Grammar. This loss turned out to be a devastating one. St Ignatius claimed the trophy and left us in heart-breaking second position. Nevertheless, the GPS season set the stage for a highly competitive first grade in 2005 – all three boys would aim to join Gab at the peak of High Debating.

The CHS season was highly successful. Tom, Gab. Will and Dawei combined to create a solid fourperson team for the CHS style of debating – consisting of three speakers and a team advisor. All

Debating

four of us rotated through both speaking and advising positions during the competition - known as the Karl Kramp. We defeated Gosford High in the State Final held in the Coles Theatre at the Powerhouse Museum. All of the boys performed at their highest right throughout the competition. Many thanks to Ms Berger who drove us to all of our away fixtures.

Overall the season was very successful. We easily won the majority of our debates across both competitions. Gab stepped up well for Firsts, and Tom was selected for the CHS representative side along with Tanvir Ahmed and Daniel Wodak from First Grade. Hamish did an excellent job under the guidance of the always inspirational and intelligent Dr Joseph Suttie – head coach of debating at High. The foundations were laid for a positive year of debating in 2005.

Thomas Kaldor

Year 10 Debating

With Alex MacCauley and Alex Gruszka continuing as coaches, the Class of 2006 debating looked as strong as ever, and this translated into a fantastic season with many great achievements in both the GPS and CHS competitions.

The GPS A's team, consisting of Faraz Amin, James Morgan, Sriram Srikumar and at times Phil Roser managed to win an amazing six out of seven debates. In the CHS comp, Senthil Thilenadessan did a great job as 4th speaker as the team won the regional competition, beating Sydney Girls once again at the final. However, in an adjudication decision that perplexed many, including our CHS coach Mr. Davies, the team lost at the state quarter final to Smiths' Hill High.

Special thanks to Mr. Davies, who drove the team around all over Sydney the whole year, and gave some great tips! The B's GPS team won five out of seven debates as well, and the quality of our depth showed in the constant pressure on the A team that resulted in many changes. Faraz Amin was chosen in an open state squad of 12 debaters consisting of Year 12 students Daniel Wodak and Tanvir Ahmed. He also took the Debater of the Year award, being fortunate to win it twice in a row.

Faraz Amin



Third Grade Debating Y.Doran. K.Kruszelnicki, A.Stone.



Year 10 Debating

Back Row: S.Syed, B.Angell, P.Roser, Y.Hussain, S.Thillainadesan, T.Uddin, R.Rahman. Front Row: L.Rahman, K.Vaidya, S.Srikumar, J.Morgan, F.Amin, R.Abeysuriya



Year 9 Debating Back Row: B.Liu, S.Lou, M.Farhat Second Row: K.Yung, D.Kim, M.Coutts, A.Morris, T.Hurrell, R.Roca Front Row: R.Cherian, S.Hussein, E.Stadnik, A.Iskander, B.Prentice-Davidson

Sydney Boys High School



Year 8 Debating Back Row: K.La, Z.Mancenido, I.Nadkarni, S.Liu, A.Taylor Front Row: D.Bowes, A.Kim, K.Mickovski, J.Cohn, L.Tan



Year 7 Debating Back Row: J.Cao, E.Lu, A.Krishan, J.Lieu, C.Evans Front Row: S.Hoang, A.Jurisevic, G.Zhong, C.Katsikaros, A.Sharma, P.Kurts, S.Garofano

Library



Back Row: B.Apolonio, N.Spoljaric, M.Mikha. Front Row: S.Chin, (---), (---), J.Li, M.Lucchitti, V.Lam.





Front Row: T.Kaldor (CHS Debating), B.Li (GPS Tennis), T.Lung (GPS Soccer), D.Hoare (GPS Rugby), P.Watzlaff (CHS Athletics), Back Row: C.Budd (GPS Shooting), D.Bodrozic (GPS Tennis), M.Shiner (GPS Cricket), K.Kruszelnicki (CHS Volleyball), T.Miller (GPS, CHS, State Swimming), S.Mitsuji (GPS Soccer). M.Li (GPS Shooting), T.Shu (GPS Shooting).

Summer Sports Assembly 2004

GPS team members, coaches, managers, supporters, fundraisers, special guests, parents and summer sports participants, welcome to our summer sports assembly.

Today we acknowledge and honour the teams in all summer sports. Historically, the GPS teams take pride of place as our first priority in meeting our obligations to the AAGPS. GPS summer sports are: rowing, cricket, tennis, basketball, water polo and swimming. Sailing is now an established summer sport with competition against GPS and CAS schools. Rowing has its own assembly before the Head of the River. I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate Laurie Heil, for the initiatives he has taken this year and in Term 4 last vear, to build our skill base in cricket. I ask all coaches to support Laurie as he carries out his role as both Cricket Co-ordinator and MIC cricket. He will work closely with coaches in selection committees to identify and nurture all our talented cricketers. Thank you to Mr Ben Hayman for taking on the Basketball Coordinator's role as well as coaching first grade. His Coaching Manual and 'train the trainer' courses will make a difference.

What we are seeking through our Sports Coordinators is to inculcate a style in our teams – the High way to play. As a student progresses through the years in his teams, the coaching message should be standardised so that learned behaviours do not have to be unlearned and new ones substituted. Skills, drills and plays can be rehearsed each year and be familiar to everyone.

Well done again to Mrs Helen Tuthill and our tennis committee for preparing the tennis team over summer and raising funds to assist our premiership team. Let us hope we can repeat that performance in 2004. Thank you to Ms Amanda Kaye for taking up the position of MIC sailing. Our program will strengthen with her enthusiasm and persistence. Congratulations to Mr Ockert for taking on the role as MIC swimming. The school carnival went well and there is a better vibe all round about our swim team after its great result in the GPS relay.

At previous Summer Sports Assemblies I have discussed the psychosocial value of having competitive sport as a lifelong goal; the purposes of competitive sport; the personal development and educational values such engagement instils in people; and a brief look at the psychology of team sports. Today, I would like to emphasise the value of training yourself to have a sports mind and a sports heart.

The body, the mind and the emotions are interconnected. Imagined experience affects the body in a physiologically measurable way.

(Boys waiting to sit for examinations know this phenomenon well). To make your body perform you need physical and mental training. Top performers have: tough mindedness, intense concentration, self-confidence, intrinsic motivation, positive attitude and a capacity for anxiety management. Athletes have to train themselves relentlessly to acquire these traits. Adversity must be dealt with quickly. Come to terms with it and move on. High performers have highly tuned sports minds. Unless you take charge of your brain, you run the big risk that it will run itself and detract from your performance.

Top performers conquer emotional and mental distractions and obstacles that impede the performances of others. They have strategies to combat poor concentration, ill temper, self-doubt, lack of motivation, nervousness, self-recrimination or lack of enthusiasm. They have highly trained sports hearts. Unless you take control of your heart, it might control you.

When mind and heart are in tune, very satisfying and expert performances are achievable by nonelite sportspeople. In sailing we call it "in the groove". This describes an intense state of concentration in which a sense of oneness with the yacht, the wind's oscillating angle and velocity, the motion of the waves and swell, the course, the trim of the sails and the speed made good, consumes the helmsman. Sustained periods of maximum boat speed result. Runners reach a trance-like state where time and physical pain have no effect on them as they concentrate on the mechanics of maintaining their form.

Sports success is as much about attitude as aptitude. Sportspeople get nervous. "I've got butterflies in my stomach" is a common expression describing the physical manifestation of this nervousness. Accept that the butterflies will always be there. Train them to fly in the same direction.

They will distract you less.

Athletes use imaging, deep breathing, meditation techniques, visualisations and stress management techniques to make all the butterflies fly in formation. Set yourself performance goals for this weekend. Visualise sinking that three-pointer on the baseline. See yourself playing the bowling for 5 overs in the V between mid-on and mid-off. Imagine yourself returning second serves accurately into particular areas of the court. Project into your swim. Decide when you will go flat out for the finish and be spent as you hit the wall.

Be steadfastly optimistic and positive. Do not contemplate defeat. Be mentally tough until the job is done, the time is up, stumps are pulled, the finishing line crossed or the last point is won. Win with grace. Accept defeat with dignity. Above all, enjoy what you do.

I wish all our teams well for the summer season. The GPS teams are being honoured. They are the symbols of a journey that the rest of you share too. All of you boys who compete on Friday nights or Saturdays deserve our praise. Without you, the school cannot produce high standard GPS teams. Keep it up! One day many of you will stand where these who come before you will stand today. Train your minds and hearts to be ready.

Dr K A Jaggar Principal

Rowing Assembly – 26 March 2004

Distinguished guests, special guest Mr John Croll, staff, parents and students. On the occasion of our annual special assembly to honour the efforts of our rowing crews and to thank all the people who have supported them in their preparations. The rowing program is the biggest sporting undertaking we attempt. It is fitting that such a large team of people are honoured by a special occasion. This assembly is also a traditional prelude to the Head of the River to be held tomorrow at the Sydney International Regatta Centre. I urge more of you to make the trip to Penrith and enjoy the spectacle of one of the greatest events in the world of school sports.

Why do we have a celebration before an event, rather than after it? The reason is that the purpose of team sport at school is educative and not totally connected to winning. Nevertheless, to be competitive and to do your best is important for self esteem. I ask the rowers being honoured here today to steel themselves for pain. To work through the experience of burning muscles and lift personal performance for this big occasion. Jon Sieben, one of our famous Olympic gold medallists, lifted his personal best performance by 3.4% on one swim to beat the world champion, Grosse. I frequently talk about the margin of excellence as being what happens in the last 5% of performance. Imagine if your crew believed it could sustain 3% more effort during its race at the Head of the River. Then let us imagine you were disciplined enough to go ahead and do it. On a 7-minute row for 2000 metres, the

race time would be reduced by up to 13 seconds, potentially enough to make the difference of several places. On big occasions special people can lift themselves to surprising levels of performance. This was demonstrated by Shore's 1st VIII stroke last year at the Head of the River. A rower of small stature, he lifted his crew in the last 100 metres to seal their victory – and collapsed at the pontoon before the presentation. Be prepared to give your all boys. My benchmark is to judge how the school performed overall compared to its own recent performances at the Head of the River. Incremental goals in the zone of proximal development have the potential to inspire increased performance. Best of luck to all crews in the racing.

The administration of a rowing program is a complex and time consuming task. I would like to thank Con Barris for his prosecution of the 'train the trainer' model at High as MIC. We are moving in the direction of a mixed mode of delivery of rowing training, with a professional approach to coaching allied to teacher management of the crews. This model will have an impact in the medium term. I would like to thank on behalf of the school, Michael Doyle, our Rowing Coordinator, employed by me on the MIC's recommendation, to have oversight of coaching operations. His first year has been devoted to assisting senior crews. Our plan is to deepen his influence in the shed over the next couple of years. The 1st VIII was coached by Mark Prater and the 2nd VIII by David Luscombe. I congratulate these men on

the working relationship they developed which assisted the cohesion evident in the senior crews this season. Ken Ambler had carriage of the IVs program. Ross Bowey and Oliver Wilson guided the 1st IV, Ben Privett the 2nd IV, Kelvin Leung the 3rd IV and Simon and Peter Wilson, the 4th IV. Mr Barris coached the 1st Year 10 VIII, with the help of Bronwyn Opferkuch on the 2nd Year 10 VIII and Rowan Burrell prepared the 3rd VIII. Mr Gainford took his customary role of Year 9 guads master, this season assisted enthusiastically by Tim Glass Nick Goozeff and Everett Coan. Doug Hespe was guardian to the Year 8 guads, assisted by Gary McIvor and Mark Livingston as coaches. Thank you all for your commitment to our boys. For 2004-5 we will be seeking to expand the number of our junior coaches so as to include Year 7 rowers in our term 1 program and to achieve more hands on guidance of the Year 8 guads.

Mr David Daish and Mr Chris Watson have habitually made great contributions to High rowing, keeping the shed, the shells and the machinery running and transporting equipment to regattas and interstate on school visits or to the Nationals. Thank you both for your wonderful support. Thank you to Mr. Sean Creer for his management of boating and commitment to the shed. Our Rowing Committee, led for the last time by Mr Jeremy Glass, has been particularly active over the last year. As usual its members raised funds, organised events, provided parental support for camps and working bees for the shed and devoted large amounts of time to our students. Our thanks go to Steve Mitchell, Selim Stamati, Nerida Newbigin, John Gerofi, John and Marilyn Mittelheuser, Anna Cunningham, Vikki Angell, Sue Doran, Sue Udall, Steve Tiedgen, Marie Girdler, Paul Girdler, Mary Cameron, Saul Kammerman, Srian Abeysuriya and Francis Kim. These committee members provided the support the program needed to function. Thank you all.

I am pleased to introduce you to our special quest speaker this morning, Mr John Croll. He attended High from 1976 to 1981. He was vice-captain of the school and captain of boats. He rowed in the 1st VIII in 1980 and 1981 and played in the 1st XV in those years. John continued rowing after school with the Sydney Rowing Club, competing in three King's Cups for NSW (1985-87) and won numerous state and national championships. He coached at High for seven years (1994-2000) and has coached both of the senior VIIIs. He is currently rowing at seniors level and is a member of the NSW squad for the National Regatta in May. John Croll is the CEO of Media Monitors, a national media information and research company, employing 500 people and servicing over 3000 clients. He is also vice president of the International Industry Association and a Director of media and sports sponsorship companies in Australia and New Zealand. He is married with three children, the first one arriving on the day of the Head of the River, 1997. Please make welcome, Mr John Croll,

Dr K A Jaggar Principal



Sydney Boys High School

The Record 2004

63

Front Row: P.Kariawasam, Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), M.Shiner (Captain), Mr C.Kourtesis (Coach), Second Row: N.Mostafa, E.Pham, N.Bull, N.Raveendiran, S.Samarasinghe, M.Samarasinghe

B.Friis-O'Toole (Vice Captain), Mr M.Retter (Assistant Coach), V.Harish



Second Eleven

Back Row: N.Nadarajamoorthy, R.Yoganathan, S.Singh, M.Samarasinghe **Front Row:** K.Illangakoon, N.Mostafa, R.Cherian, S.Kumar, S.Burke, S.Wickramasinghe, (---)



Third Eleven Back Row: P.Rajasekera, P.Gordon, S.Prabakaran *Second Row:* R.Badethalav (Coach), B.Zhang, V.De Silva, J.Zhou, A.Sarkar, V.George *Front Row:* A.Syed, M.Samaraweera, R.Vadali, H.Srinath, V.Patel, S.Kulupana, S.Mani



Fourth Eleven Back Row: M.Bowey, T.Neville, T.Miller, A.Pluis, B.Dubovsky Second Row: J.Van, C.Conway, W.Kwok, M.Alam, D.Byrne, D.Clayton Front Row: N.Jayarathna, D.Thomas, N.Poranek, D.Hoare (Captain), T.Hoare, W.Logge, P.McDonnell



16A Eleven Back Row: D.Gunasekera, C.Rodriguez, A.Gupta, A.Shi, T.Ahmed, S.Puthi Front Row: F.Amin, S.Burke, M.Lunney (Vice Captain), P.Roser (Captain), L.Chen, A.Huynh, L.Rahman



15A Eleven

Back Row: D.Blaxell, A.Shuttleworth, A.Wijeyaratne, J.Luscombe, G.Manamperi, T.Razeen, G.Karunaratne Front Row: D.Gunaratne, M.Razeen, E.Hibbert (Captain), S.Syed, J.Morgan



15B Eleven Back Row: A.Wang, O.Perieira, A.Jawahir, F.Jin, A.Park, K.Lee, R.Xu, R.Jang Back Row: M.Ng, D.Wong, K.Vaidya, R.Alchin, L.Deacon, R.George, G.Panicker



14A Eleven Back Row: A.Husaini, M.Coutts, D.Simpson, M.Coutts, M.Fsadni, L.Yang Front Row: B.Prentice-Davidson, A.Naik (Captain), R.Pandit, A.Ashokkumar



14B Eleven Back Row: Z. Harrison-Tikisci, A. Kandasamy, A. Karunakaran, S. Iyer **Front Row:** D. Bowes, V. Perananthan, K. Srinranjan, N. Lochner, R. Sutton, T. Rosengarten, I. Bapat



Year 8 Trans Harbour XI ~ Premiers Back Row: Mr L.Heil, A.Kandasamy, N.Lochner, K.Sriranjan, M.Coutts Front Row: V.Perananthan, D.Simpson, M.Fsadni, D.Bowes, T.Rosengarten



13A Eleven Back Row: K. Nguyen, S. Ali, R. Ahmed, N. Ridges, N. Dimitropoulos, A. Tsialis, I. Yuan **Front Row:** R. Kashyap, A. Brown, M. Wang, M. Lucchitti, S. Chin



13B Eleven V. Khou, R. Alam, S. Higgins, J. Chew, R. Mitra, H. Richards



13C Eleven Back Row: T. Burston, T. Choudhury, H. Yu **Front Row:** C. Evans, B. Greenslade, L. Brown, B. Apolonio, S. Cheng

Basketball



Front Row: V.Domni, A.Pluis (Captain), Mr B.Hayman (Coach), Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), H.Feng, R.Huynh Back Row: D.Palana, E.Harkins, C.Conway, T.Mainprize, G.Krastev, N.Sedaghat.

The Record 2004

Basketball 2004 Report

This season has been successful.

The biggest sign of success for me is the enjoyment that the boys are gaining from basketball at SBHS. Part of this enjoyment is the improved competitiveness that we have achieved this year. I started working on this program at the beginning of last season. Prior to that there was no record of results.

- Last season we had 97 losses by over 15 pts. This season 82.
- We had 4% more wins as a school than last season.
- The 13's last season won 3.5% of their games. This season the 14's (the same team) won 42%.
- The 14's last season won 11% of their games. This season the 15's won 22%.

• The 15's last season won 34%. This season the 16's were the most successful age group winning 47%.

Basketball at High only operates because of the support of a few people who work tirelessly for the benefit of many for free. These people raise funds and their efforts will be rewarded with the projects we will put in place to benefit the students in basketball in future.

To continue being successful we need to work to produce basketball players capable of competing at the opens level. Every student needs to be trying to play for the highest team they can in their grade. If they are in the A grade side they need to begin playing representative basketball outside of school. If we have 5 players of BNSW division 1 representative standard we can be undefeated in any age group. I urge all students to see me about playing representative basketball.



Second Grade Basketball Back Row: C.J.Yong, E.Hanzmann-Johnson, N.Roucek, F.Wong, P.Chen, B.Lee (Captain) Front Row: J.Kraindler, D.Greenup, D.Park, D.Sun, P.McDonnell
The old boy coaches, Cameron, Pat, Josh, Dustin, Mian, Robbie, Michael, Matt, Hughoce, David, Adrian, George and Vincent have done an outstanding job once again. Added to that line up this season we have had some expert coaching staff. Matt Conacher, Adam Darrah, Hank Foster, Roi Cifci, Tim Seccombe and John Quilter. These people have made a dramatic difference. The 'A' grade teams last season won 28% of games played. This season they won a massive 53%.

Medical Support was provided by Vince Saloman. Vince also lifted our boys to some great wins as the first grade coach this year. His contributions to basketball over the years have been endless.

Coaching Awards

This season, most successful coach goes to a coach who spent a large majority of his summer in the gym with members of his team, did extra sessions after school for free and had an excellent structure prepared for all of his sessions. *This description fits* most of our coaches and it is how we keep our budget down. But in terms of wins, Hughoce Feng wins this award!

The most improved team is the mighty 14A's. They have improved by seven wins this season. Their coach Matt Conacher is responsible for this result. This season he wins the award for the most improved results as a coach!

We have fantastic new uniforms. With these new uniforms we have seen a new culture evolve. A culture whereby boys attend games earlier, with fantastic enthusiastic attitudes. A culture where our boys stay around after their games and support the opens. This enthusiastic support, I am sure the 1sts and 2nds will agree, it was a big factor in getting across the line in every game they won. A culture where our students can see that the future for basketball is exciting. Next season we will have Alex Hayman involved in the program. He has just spent



Third Grade Basketball Back Row: M. Wang, ---, ---, Front Row: ---, ---, T. Law, ---, ---,

two years playing college basketball successfully in USA and will bring knowledge and enthusiasm to our teams. This is a culture where our boys are writing positive articles consistently in the High Notes about their game on the weekend being the most exciting event of their week. Thanks must go to Johnny Shih for his outstanding work every week with the High Notes as well as Hugo Richards and David Fan who diligently organised the statistics for the 14 round competition.

Parent Support

The chair person and secretary this year are Mr Kevin Bock and Mrs Kerrie Bock. They have given up their time to attend all the meetings and run them effectively. The Secretary has done an outstanding job with the collation and distribution of the very detailed minutes.

The canteen and car parking are operating as effectively as possible and all funds are being put back into the program for the students. I encourage everyone to continue to support the canteen and car parking as you are supporting yourselves by doing so. Please see Kumi Abeysuriya, Ross Walker and Tracy Tassell before the night ends if you want to support them in supporting your son. In addition Ross and Helen Walker helped each week being on the scoresheet.

Robert Pluis has been outstanding in supporting me for the last two seasons. His help in strategically planning and treasury each season has been a big part of our success.

It is the staff of Sydney Boys High who are biggest and most important part of our success. Mr Dowdell, Mr Baldock, Ms Ward and Mr McQuillan work endless hours on Saturdays and weekdays to support the 300 plus boys now playing basketball. In particular I would like to thank Ms Ward and Mr McQuillan for their ongoing support. I am sure every student and parent can see what a massive effort they put in.

B Hayman Basketball Master



Fourh Grade Basketball O.Lee, F.Balgahom, S.Zhang, A.Sun, T.Chan, J.Kang.



Fifth Grade Basketball Back Row: O.Lee, P.Yang, D.Huynh, J.Zhou, ---Front Row: P.Loi, R.Guo, Mr T.Ryan (Coach), J.Tsang, S.Law



Sixth Grade Basketball Back Row: C.Shuttleworth, L.Zhang, W.Huang, W.Hong. Front Row: P.Thai, I.Nomchong, Mr T.Ryan (Coach), G.Pasupathy (Captain), J.Phan



Seventh Grade Basketball Back Row: T.Wu, T.Liu, M.Wang (Coach) Front Row: J.Kok, S.Lau, E.Ho, P.Liang, P.Thai



Eighth Grade Basketball Back Row: R.Pereira, R.Kouchak, G.Gutnik, D.Dou, C.Yang, A.Cohen Front Row: J.Chan, K.Liu, K.Shi, A.Hwan, ---

The Record 2004



16A Basketball Back Row: Mr V.Salomon (Coach), C.Tran, E.Wong Front Row: B.Chan, J.Chen, P.Tung, H.Chung, L.d'Avigdor

The 16A's season was going to be a hard one from the beginning with the loss of Dale, Ray and Francis to Sydney High Firsts and Seconds. But what we lacked in manpower, we made up for in spirit with the following players:

Pat Tung Chris Tran Hai Sang Yang Hee Kenny Huang Eugene Wong Lewis d'Avigdor (Captain)

With a team of just seven players, we ran the floor well, always competing against taller teams, with much more depth. High proved to play hard against all teams, never giving in until the buzzer sounded full time. It was a very disappointing season, as we struggled against the bigger teams, only managing one win in the season.

Some positives can be drawn from the season, as it proved to be a stepping stone for many of the players into Grade as Vincent's coaching yet again finetuned many of the players, with Pat, Chris, Kenny, Eugene and Lewis being selected in Second Grade basketball the following year. Many thanks to the High boy's efforts and Vince Saloman's continuing commitment to the Sydney High Basketball Program.

Lewis d'Avigdor Captain



16B Basketball Back Row: Mr V.Salomon (Coach), H.Lee, K.Huang, A.Trieu Front Row: D.Wong, J.Cheung, J.Lu, K.Kim, A.Liu



16C Basketball Back Row: J.Kwon, A.Nguyen, A.Flores, M.Tao, A.Kogan, T.Mei, R.Nithiyendran **Front Row:** B.Wong, J.Lung, W.Zu, K.Lu, J.Phu, S.Chhor, T.Tan



16D Basketball Back Row: M.Thayaparan, A.Chong, K.Amilbangsa, T.Chong, P.Lieu, K.Qiu. Front Row: J.Jiang, J.Sun, C.Ho, W.Zhang, A.Wong, Y.Yeung, K.Hu.



15A Basketball Back Row: T.Ly, V.Wei, B.Liu, J.Ding. Front Row: A.Vertoudakiks, D.Dizon, H.Walker, A.Lee, G.Zinger.



15B Basketball Back Row: J.Tao, W.Shi, S.Wang, W.Zhuang, A.Vulkanovski, J.Xie. Front Row: C.Wong, R.Miao, V.Nguyen, J.Chiu, S.Cui.



15C Basketball Back Row: S.Yuan, M.Keldoulis, D.Ha, P.Duffy, M.Wong, W.Lu. Front Row: P.Malek, J.Wilson, L.Wong, C.Palana, J.Kim, A.Iskander, N.Tran.



15D Basketball Back Row: T.Xie, E.Yao, S.Chen, C.Lee, S.Song, R.Gokarn. Front Row: J.Lai, J.Luu, J.Fu, G.Park, D.Tran.



14A Basketball Back Row: L. Street, A.Leung, N.McDonnell Front Row: K.Iyer, M.Bock, J.Shih



14B Basketball Back Row: A.Thomas, M. Spencer, B. Lee, ---, K. Vingnanasingam Front Row: S.Rahman, M. Myronenko, ---, D Yu, ---



14C Basketball C.Yang, P.Wang, E.Ang, ---



14D Basketball



13A Basketball Back Row: ---??, A.Belokopytov, M.Lau, ---Front Row: --- J.Chow, B. Lau, L.Teng, S. Burnham



13B Basketball S.Dong, S.Zhang, A.Kwok Front Row: D.Hi, K.Lim, J.Wong ---? J.Li



13C Basketball Back Row: S.Jacob, --- H.Li Front Row: ---, ---, M.Yiu, S.Ponraj, ---



13D Basketball



13E Basketball L Tran, W Szet, S Lei, ---

The Record 2004

Tennis



First Grade Tennis ~ GPS and CHS Champions Back Row: Ms H.Tuthill (MIC Tennis), D.Cao, P.Pereira, H.Neo, I.Cerecina Front Row: B.Ly, D.Bodrozic, Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), M.Hayes, T.Neville



Second Grade Tennis Back Row: I.Zak, D.Cao, J.Chan, A.Zinzopoulos. Front Row: Ms H.Tuthill (Coach), M.Nguyen, K.Dickson (Captain), H.Neo, M.Ediryweera



Third–Sixth Grade Tennis Back Row: T.Wei, W.Xu, S.Singarayar. *Second Row:* V.Desai, D.Tran, V.Sirinopakul, D.Qi, R.Yu, H Tuthill (MIC) *Front Row:* A.Kelly, L.Cheung, D.Yang, P.Wong, R.Lu, R.Siu, D.Ong Tennis



16 Years Tennis Back Row: E.Chau, H.Liu, J.Diep, G.Nguyen, H.Dang, A.Leung, K.Ho Second Row: Y-K.Shaw, C.Jahja, A.Ha, A.Chen, T.Wong, N.Wong Front Row: K.Leong, A.Ly, C.To, H.Le, K.Mak, F.Cheung, L.Lai



15 Years Tennis Back Row: E.Stadnik, M.Chen, N.Balashov, J.Hsiao, E.Deng, A.Keswani, A.Yeung Front Row: V.Issaev, A.Klocker, C.Siu, R.Luo, O.Han, E.Luu, A.Alaganar

Tennis



14 Years Tennis



13 Years Tennis



Bow: B.J.Wrench, 2: A.R.Tiedgen, 3: B.S.Mitchell, 4: D.P.Grimm, 5: T.A.Polis, 6: J.B.Scharfegger, 7: M.A.Steen, Stroke: L.J.Bennett, Cox: J.Tan

First Four

A disrupted start to the 2004 season saw three of the first IV's eventual members drop down from the VIIIs program as a result of a prior commitment; the Himalayan expedition. Subsequently the crew of: Bow – Jeremy James, 2 – Yaegan Doran, 3 – Karl Kruszelnicki, and Stroke – Sen Mitsuji, decided not to partake in the opening St Joseph's regatta in favour of furthering their somewhat delayed race preparation.

However the following week they proved more than equal to the task at hand placing a near fifth to Kings in the final, despite being hampered by a broken stroke coach and cox box. After weeks of dedication and commitment, including the draining "hell week", the crew attained its best result at the Gold Cup, reaching the final inside a second of St Josephs.

Then came the ultimate occasion, months of preparation concentrated into one six minute and fifty-four second effort that saw the First IV break the benchmark seven minute barrier and place a commendable sixth at the Head of the River.

Although not entirely the place that had been hoped and prayed for, the crew's relatively light weight took its toll over the longer course. Despite this setback the boys rose to the occasion improving no less than nine seconds on their Sydney Regatta performance only three weeks prior.

Our most sincere thanks go out to our great coaches and now fantastic friends Ross Bowey and Ollie Wilson, for an unforgettable season and tremendous learning experience.

Sen Mitsuji Stroke

Second Four

The season for the crew consisted of many highs and lows. With the help of our coach Ben Privett we took on each challenge as it came, maintaining the close bond within the crew at all times.

The numerous warm up regattas before the Head of the River were great learning experiences with us taking something away from every race, win or lose. At the Grammar regatta at Hen and Chicken Bay, the crew came in first to the line beating Scots, Newington, and Grammar. Sadly, choppy water cancelled the finals but the experience generated great hope for the crew. We arrived at Penrith with great expectations. The experience of the Head of the River itself is rewarding enough, but sadly we did not go as well as we had hoped, coming seventh. With the margins between all crews so close to just slip the tiniest bit was enough to make the difference.

All five boys, including myself, finished the season with fond memories and lifelong friends. Such is the power of High sport. This opportunity is only available through the hard work of the coaches, teachers, old boys, and parents because without them our season would not have been possible.

Paul Watzlaff Stroke

Third Four

The rowing season for 2004 was a fairly successful campaign. Also known as "The Dragon Boat" with an all Asian crew and coach, we put down our pens and pencils and got down to business. With a gruelling pre-season full of 16km rows and 5km runs we knew we had to train hard to compete with other schools.

After these minor set backs we were ready for the GPS season. Placing about 7th in most races we seemed to go out really hard in the first section and then die off and only be able to beat Scots. The problem seemed to be our lack of rhythm so we worked on this and on our timing.

Clean finishes were just what we were looking for and we started to fly down the home straight of races. The Head of the River was coming around and a fool proof race plan was designed by the crew with Coach Kelvin's help and sure enough it worked a charm. The crew who were constantly coming 7th during the GPS actually we came 6th, beating Scots, and for the first time, Newington.

All in all the season was a fun experience for all the fours crews with entertaining camps and a lot gained in the experience. The 3rd IV crew for 2004 was:

Cox: Henry Chan Bow: Will Kwok 2 man: Mitch Seow 3 man: Yinan Zhang Stroke: Ian Kwok (yeah we're brothers) Coach: Kelvin Leung



Second Eight

Bow: W.E.Clegg, 2: B.J.Stamati, 3: B.L.Glass, 4: R.T.Girdler, 5: J.A.Gerofi, 6: A.Dam, 7: O.D.Delaruelle, Stroke: A.M.Jacques, Cox: T.M.Hurrell



First Four Cox: T.J.Mittelheuser, Bow: J.E.James, 2: Y.J.Doran, 3: K.A.Kruszelnicki, Stroke: S.Mitsuji



Second Four Cox: D.R.Grech, Bow: J.C.Stretton, 2: J.C.Phung, 3: J.W.H.Brown, Stroke: P.H.Watzlaff



Third Four Cox: H.K.M.Chan, Bow: W.K.Kwok, 2: M.A.Seow, 3: Y.Zhang, Stroke: I.K.H.Kwok



Fourth Four Cox: I.Zak, Bow: J.R.Yuen, 2: S.Dobrinsky, 3: E.R.Ovadia, Stroke: T.D.Kaldor



First Year 10 Eight Bow: J.F.Tiedgen, 2: Q.J.Q.Yang, 3: A.A.J.Farrow-Palmer, 4: M.L.Levy, 5: R.D.Burrell, 6: D.Chang, 7: S.J.Gribble, Stroke: A.Z.Szabo, Cox: R.G.Abeysuriya

Fourth Four

Early in the 2003/04 rowing season, the idea that Sydney Boys would be racing a Fourth IV in the Head of the River come March seemed like a pipe dream, but one boy never gave up hope. The laborious transition from coxswain to rower is one that many coxes dream of, but few ever attempt. Coxing for three years, Thomas Kaldor wanted to make that transition, but his height/weight (or lack thereof) severely hampered his bid to become a rower. All through the pre-season his dream seemed unlikely. As he stepped up as a reserve rower and often a cox, his fantasy seemed to be drifting out the rowing shed window.

But just when young Thomas had almost given up hope, his luck changed. After the summer break there was a sudden influx of rowing enthusiasts who were willing to row for their great school. Thomas assembled an unbeatable team of pastcoxes and ex-rowers to form an eager and passionate Fourth 1V.

Strong man Edward Ovadia gave the crew power and maturity in 3-seat; Savva Dobrinsky brought commitment and fitness at 2, and Jeremy Yuen contributed a gymnast's flexibility as the bow-man. Thomas, inspired by the transition of Ollie Wilson many years before, stroked the boat. Together with the Third IV's Ian Kwok and First IV's Sen Mitsuji, Thomas added another member to the Bronte strokes' group.

Under the guidance of the classy father-and-son coaching team of Peter and Simon Wilson, the crew was ready. However, in a crew of three ex-cosswains there was still one problem – who would cox this boat? Many were tried – juniors and coaches alike (special thanks to all those who auditioned). Finally one supreme cox emerged, the great Ilya Zak, renowned for his inspirational voice and mastery with the strings.

Rowing in the Fourth IV was a highly enjoyable experience and one of the highlights of my school career. The coaches and crew were committed and also knew that rowing was a very enjoyable activity. Thanks also to Daniel Thomas and Dave Clayton who filled in for us before the crew was assembled. Most of all thanks to Sime and Pete who contributed (and put up with) so much during the season. At the Head of the River, we managed to beat Newington, and we rowed our best.

Year 10 1st VIII

The 2004 Year 10 rowing group was the pinnacle of the social life our grade experienced at the Rowing Sheds. Our group of rowers was vast and stretched through three Year 10 VIII's and six Ouads. This was a large portion of our grade, hence bringing life to rowing. We all had a great time being part of the Rowing Community which is just as important as having the racing spirit in you. The fact that we all got along together really made a positive difference when it came to training and racing. Although the final result of our crew in the Head Of The River didn't suffice all our wants, we were all happy after the season and it was a shame that only a small group of us would be returning next season to continue rowing. Our 1st Year 10 VIII consisted of: Bow - James Tiedgen, 2 – Quinton Yang, 3 – Adam Farrow-Palmer, 4 – Michael Levy, 5 – Roger Burrell, 6 – Douglas Chang, 7 – Sam Gribble, Stroke – Attila Szabo, Cox – Romesh Abeysuriya and coached by Mr Barris. I will present the achievements of our crew in the words of Steve Tiedgen below.

Over January our rowers trained very hard in a series of 'holiday' camps in preparation for the racing season. All of these camps are made possible by the small army of staff, parents, coaches and supporters who give up their time in the 'holiday' month of January. Thanks to all the cooks, parent supervisors, drivers, boatman and coaches who helped out.

The first regatta for the season was held on the last day of January and was hosted by Grammar. In warm and still conditions all our crews performed well and proved themselves worthy competitors. Most were 'on the standard', there were no equipment failures and all who started rowed it out to the finish line. Shore dominated the regatta in nearly every division. We drew Shore in every race, making places hard to come by. The best performed crew on the day was the Year 10 1st VIII who beat Joeys and challenged Newington for 2nd place in a flying finish (unofficial margin - small bow ball). Coached by Mr Barris the Year10 1st VIII consists of, Bow - James Tiedgen, 2 – Quinton Yang, 3 – Adam Farrow-Palmer, 4 – Michael Levy, 5 – Roger Burrell, 6 – Douglas Chang, 7 – Sam Gribble, Stroke – Attila Szabo, Cox – Romesh Abeysuriya.

Last weekend Joey's played host at Hen & Chicken Bay on an overcast day. A persistent headwind and chop made it hard going. In the Senior ranks the Year 10 1st VIII performed well again for a 3rd place – gaining on Shore in the final stages. There are no 'easy beats' at this level and that includes us!

Thomas Kaldor



Second Year 10 Eight Bow: C.Ambati, 2: J.A.Kamerman, 3: B.Y.L.Chow, 4: R.S.Liu, 5: J.Lee, 6: C.Shao,, 7: B.J.Angell, Stroke: A.D.Cunningham, Cox: F.P.Taaffe



Third Year 10 Eight Bow: J.Banh, 2: Y-H.Kim, 3: E.A.Louie, 4: M.Q.Zhou, 5:, M.K.K.Wong, 6: A.P.Reis, 7: B.Liu, Stroke: P.M.T.Tran, Cox: J.P.Archer

The Record 2004

The Senior Boatshed Dinner was held at the Outterside Centre. Captain of Boats, Troy Polis introduced the crews for the season and Dr Jaggar presented them with their jerseys. Troy's keynote speech emphasised the strong bond of friendship that surrounds the current band of senior rowers – a brotherhood. Mr Barris and Mr Glass also spoke of the special atmosphere at the sheds and it was noted that the shed has never been bigger! Most of the boys stayed over and rowed at 7.00 on Sunday morning.

The season had its ups and downs in our performance and spirit but most importantly we came out at the end of it satisfied with the season as a whole. We had our good races and our bad races. Its just unfortunate that one of our bad races was the most important one. Head of the River. We came up to the starting bay with crews on either side of us feeling guite confident we could win. There was one main problem though which held us back. The dilemma of not having a stroke-coach and unconsciously rating a huge 49, possibly even 50 at one point down the course. I remember the look on Mr. Ambler's face after the race when he came up to me and said, "Do you know what you were rating in that race?" I replied "I'm not sure, maybe 42 or something?" "No! At the halfway mark you clocked 49!". This comment brought our spirits up after coming 7th in the big race. We maintain the theory that the lack of stroke coach caused us to rate way too high and robbed us from certain victory. I remember glancing across during the race seeing Joeys cruise down the lake beside us at what seemed a rating of 18. At least I can guarantee we won the max-rating award. Overall my best rowing memories come from this season, and deep into the winter season the occasional reflection on the rowing season creeps into conversation.

Atilla Szabo Stroke

Second Year 10 VIII

The Second Year 10 VIII had an eventful year, but was not able to follow the path of the Second Year 10 VIII before them, who achieved an incredible second place in 2003 Head Of The River. We ended up rowing through the finish line alone, having been beaten by six seconds to seventh place. But our year was far more enjoyable and successful than that one race, with highlights including a second placing at a Victoria School Regatta race and beating at least a couple of GPS schools during the season.

Ms Opferkuch was incredible in steering us through our first year of sweep oar rowing, gaining far more out of us than we could have hoped for early in the season. Being introduced to the more senior atmosphere of the sheds was also enjoyable, and I can personally say that I look forward to next year with excitement.

Sandy Cunningham Stroke

First Year 9 Quad

Rowing season, summer of 2003 and 2004, was an eventful one for the Year 9 1st Quad.

The season started with much anticipation to get that feeling only rowing can give a student, however dreaded the excessive training and the pain of the long hard rows. The season started out well for the 1st Year 9 Quad with much excitement as many of us were going to be coached by our Junior Rugby coach, Mr Gainford. This big man shared his wisdom of rowing with us with hearty laughter and many ridiculous jokes, which seemed to make our season more enjoyable.

However, even with this, rowing was still a tough sport, requiring much commitment. To decide the crews we continuously went rowing in quad combinations to see which crew was best suited for the high level of competition that we were to face. Many long rows and changes were made to the crew, going through many rowers. We eventually settled on the rowers Harry Song (Bow), Andrew Liu (2), Joeun Na (3), and David Kim (Stroke), with Bill Sun as our coxswain. We trained together and worked hard together to become a crew which attempted to work in unison, as one team.

The training we underwent was hard, or so we thought, with many rows and many land training sessions. The amount of training was a big jump from the Year 8 quaddies, where we were basically just learning how to row; now the Year 9 quads were much more serious and competition-oriented. Land training was always draining as between the crews there was always that desire to finish before the other, yet at the expense of your lungs. There was the Monday afternoon row, and the Wednesday row, the Thursday land training and the Saturday row – this was to be our life for the summer season.



First Year 9 Quad Cox: B.Sun, Stroke: D.Kim, 3: J.Na, 2: A.Liu, Bow: H.Song



First Year 9 Quad (Coxless) Bow: H.Song, 2: A.Liu, 3: J.Na, Stroke: D.Kim

Our season itself was not met with that much success, with losses against those GPS Schools with all their big, bulky, boys from all over Australia. Our only successes would be those concerning either Sydney Grammar, or Scots College. At the CHS Regatta we finished fourth in the Under 16 Quads (uncoxed), behind a High crew from the year above, and crews from South Grafton and Taree, just eight seconds from the winners. We did manage to pull something off in our season. We went through many races, giving our best to keep up with boys twice the size of us.

There have been many eventful, interesting and hilarious moments during this season. One of them resulted from a minor disagreement between Andrew Liu (2 man) and Bill Sun our cox. Andrew resorted to jumping out of the boat in an attempt to swim and reach Bill and strangle him to death! However the rest of us quickly rowed the boat away, leaving Andrew Liu stranded in the river as two crews sat close by laughing at him...until Mr Gainford showed up!

Another event which deserves mentioning is that of the final races of the season. Rowing in a quad for so long, it is difficult to see that it was possible to capsize, us being a crew and working together so well. However, during our last row, when Nick Levanic had to fill in for Bill Sun, the crew seemed to give up, Joeun Na (3 man) jumping out of the boat mid row, and Andrew Liu (2 man) managing to get a cramp at the exact same time. With this unbalance in the boat, it tipped causing us to capsize, for the very first time! This was an embarrassing experience, although we laugh about it now as an event never to be forgotten.

The rowers, Harry Song (Bow), Andrew Liu (2), Joeun Na (3) were very strong rowers, and I am proud to have rowed with them, and with our brilliant coxswain, Bill Sun, we made up the 1st Year 9 Quad for 2004 rowing season.

David Kim Stroke

Second Year 9 Quad

The Second Year 9 Quad consisted of Yun-Zhe Guo in the bow seat, Phillip Heo in 2, Kevin Kim in 3, Richard Devapiriam in the cox seat, and myself, Andrew Pham, as stroke. As we all had prior rowing experience there was no need to learn how to row and so we all dove straight into the thick of it, racing the First Quad at every turn, getting fitter, stronger and becoming better rowers every time we got onto the water.

I think our most memorable race would have to be the CHS championship race, where we were lined up against the 1st and 3rd quads, among others. Immediately after the race began we found we were falling behind and so tried to push for 3rd place and our very own CHS medals, but try as hard as we could, our fitness fell far short of the mark and so at the 500 metre mark we could only watch helplessly as the 3rd quad cruised past us and over the finish line.

I'd like to take this opportunity to thank our coach, Mr. Gainford, for giving up his valuable time to coach both the 1st and 2nd year 9 quads.

Andrew Pham Stroke

Fourth Year 9 Quad 2003

The beginning of the season saw the arrival of a few new rowers, and so the crew was comprised of Raymond, Eddy, Max, Mac, and Michael. The crew were certainly determined in their efforts to achieve results in the regattas, however maybe not as determined when it came down to serious training. Nevertheless, it was very gratifying that the crew always exhibited a great sense of humour. The crew always carried with them a sense of determination despite the lack of brawn and whenever the crew was ahead of another boat, it was made sure it was to stay that way.

This season allowed several boys new to rowing to develop some of the life long skills such as commitment and sheer determination. Great thanks to Tim and Nick as our coaches for putting in the time and developing our techniques and also the parents who help out on Saturday.

Eddy Wu Stroke



Second Year 9 Quad Bow: Y-Z.Guo, 2: K.Kim, 3: P.Heo, Stroke: A.Pham, Cox: G.Wang Absent: R.Devapiriam (Cox)



Third Year 9 Quad Bow: M.Liu, 2: W.Zhang, 3: J.Kok, Stroke: J.MacKay, Cox: A.Huang



Fourth Year 9 Quad Bow: M.Wang, 2: M.Ba, 3: M.Ni, Stroke: E.Wu, Cox: R.Su



First Year 8 Quad Bow: D.O'Keefe, 2: A.Komarov, 3: D.Ng, Stroke: D.Vien, Cox: S.Rahman



Second Year 8 Quad Bow: K.Na, 2: B.Wang, 3: B.Pfull, Stroke: J.Livingstone, Cox: L.Burger



Third Year 8 Quad Bow: J.Hui, 2: R.Chen, 3: D.Chiu, Stroke: T.Lindeback, Cox: C.Martin



Fourth Year 8 Quad Bow: D.Campion, 2: C.Zhang , 3: I.Nadkarni, Stroke: P.Locke, Cox: H.Bhrugubanda



Fifth Year 8 Quad Bow: W.Lee, 2: K.Ahmed, 3: S.Merom, Stroke: H.Reid, Cox: A.Taylor



Rowing Club 2004 Back Row: M.Levy, J.Brown, A.Farrow-Palmer, Y.Zhang, D.Chang, K.Kruszelnicki, D.Grimm, R.Burrell, A.Szabo, J.Scharfegger, B.Mitchell, C.Shao. Seventh Row: Y.Doran, W.Clegg, J.Gerofi, B.Wrench, J.Phung, I.Kwok, J.James, J.Glass, O.Delaruelle, W.Kwok, R.Girdler, E.Ovadia, A.Reis. Sixth Row: B.Angell, A.Jacques, E.Wu, Q.Yang, J.Tiedgen, E.Louie, K.Kim, D.Ng, S.Gribble, J-H.Lee, H.Song, J.Kok. L.Bennett. Fifth Row: A.Liu, A.Komarov, M.Seow, T.Kaldor, A.Dam, S.Liu, A.Pham, T.Mittelheuser, S.Dobrinsky, S.Cunningham, J.Stretton, D.O'Keefe, S.Mitsuji. Fourth Row: P.Watzlaff, B.Wang, Y-H.Kim, B.Pfull, S.Jia, P.Heo, J.MacKay, G.Wang, J.Na, J.Van, B.Liu, M.Liu, A.Tiedgen. Third Row: F.Taaffe, I.Zak, I.Nadkarni, N.Levanic, D.Vien, J.Kamerman, D.Kim, W.Zhang, C.Ambati, M.Wang, T.Hurrell, D.Grech, M.Steen. Second Row: B.Stamati, H.Chan, T.Lindeback, A.Taylor, S.Merom, M.Ba, Y-Z.Guo, D.Campion, H.Reid, K.Ahmed, P.Tran, A.Huang. Front Row (Seated): B.Sun, J.Banh, J.Archer, Ms B.Opferkuch, Mr K.Ambler, Mr C.W.Barris (Rowing Master), T.Polis (Captain of Boats), Mr A.M.Gainford, Mr E.Cohn, Mr D.Hespe, M.Wong, P.Locke, D.Chiu. Sitting on Floor: C.Martin, R.Su, K.Na, M.Serban, B.Pelau, R.Chen, J.Hui, W.Lee, H.Bhrugubanda, J.Livingston,

R.Abeysuriya, S.Rahman.

Swimming



Front Row: L.Tan, K.Mickovski, J.Lai, T.Miller (Captain of Swimming), B.Dubovsky, K.Yu, M.Mehmedbasic, A.Belokopytov. Second Row: B.Sun, B.Chow, Q.Nguyen, M.Kim, A.Komarov, A.Morris, Mr V.Ockert (Swimming MIC). Third Row: M.Fetherstone, C.Halls, A.Reis, T.Hoare, E.Louie, A.Ha. Back Row: D.Hoare, P.Tripp, B.Mitchell, T.Polis, R.Girdler.

Swimming



GPS Swimming Relay Team Mr V. Ockert, A. Reis, B. Dubovsky, T. Miller, E. Louie

Sailing



Sailing

Back Row: J.Gough, R.Pearson, C.Halls, J.Holloway, G.McManus, R.Phung.
Second Row: J.Murray, S.Nossar, B.Lopez, S.Cradock, R.Raja, E.Blaxell.
Front Row: D.Toh, P.Kurts, A.Ho, B.Lo, M.Mehmedbasic, J.Coppa, B.Lung.

Phil Kurts & Anton Juresivc - 2004 Pacer Champions

Water Polo



Back Row: P. Tripp, B.Dubovsky, J.Stott. Second Row: C.Budd, C.Shiel, O.Taaffe, D.Hoare, T.Hoare, Mr C.Harvey (Coach). Front Row: J.Menzies, W.Logge, A.Pang, T.Miller (Captain), T.Lung, P-S.Xin, K-Y.Wong.

Sydney Boys High School

The Record 2004
Water Polo

2003/2004 AAGPS/CAS Water Polo Competition Table

1st Competition	Table							Goals	Goals	
Position	Team	Played	Won	Loss	Draw	Bye	Forfeit	For	Against	Points
1 Scots	10	8		2	2		65	27	34	
2 Newington	10	7		3	2		84	27	33	
3 Trinity	10	6	3	1	2		58	45	29	
4 Waverley	10	4	6		2		63	43	24	
5 St Aloysius	8	3	4	1	2		38	36	21	
6 St Ignatius'	8	1	5	2	2		38	48	18	
7 Barker	7	1	5	1	2		29	41	16	
8 Knox	7		7		2		6	108	13	
2nd Competition	Goals	Goals								
Position	Team	Played	Won	Loss	Draw	Bye	Forfeit	For	Against	Points
1 Newington	10	10			1		120	34	33	
2 Barker	10	8	2		1		51	45	29	
3 Scots	10	5	4	1	1		52	48	24	
4 Trinity	10	5	4	1	1		51	54	24	
5 SJC	9	5	3	1	1		62	55	23	
6 St Ignatius'	10	4	5	1	1		69	59	22	
7 St Aloysius	9	3	6		1		43	46	18	
8 Waverley	9	1	8		1		30	91	14	
9 High	9		9		1		34	83	12	
16A Competition Table								Goals	Goals	
Position	Team	Played	Won	Loss	Draw	Bye	Forfeit	For	Against	Points
1 St Augustine's	5 10	9	1		1		100	37	31	
2 Trinity	9	8	1		1		41	25	28	
3 Waverley	9	6	2	1	1		62	39	25	
4 Newington	10	5	5		1		50	42	23	
5 Barker	9	4	4	1	1		64	84	21	
6 Scots	10	5	5		1		83	54	23	
7 St Ignatius'	10	3	7		1		58	64	19	
8 Knox	8	1	7		1		32	92	13	
9 St Aloysius	9	0	9		1		21	108	12	

Winter Sports Assembly 2004

Welcome to the 2004 winter sports assembly. We are here in the presence of parents, staff, coaches and students to honour those boys who have been selected to play in GPS teams for winter competition. On behalf of the school I extend a special welcome to our guest speaker this morning, Todd Olivier. He is an Old Boy with a great commitment to the school. This morning I would like to take the opportunity to talk briefly about evolution of games governed by the Athletic Association of the Great Public Schools.

The GPS competition has adapted slowly to historical changes in Australian sport. Rugby and cricket competitions commenced for senior school boys in 1892, joined the next year by rowing. This year the target rifle shooting competition will be 100 years old. Comparative newcomers are tennis (1972) and basketball (1975). More recently, crosscountry and soccer were added (1988). Unofficial contests in water polo and volleyball are now conducted under the guidance and management of the AAGPS. These sports will always be unofficial while schools from CAS or ISA play in them, due to the fact that the AAGPS is unable to exercise control over members of those associations in respect of rules for the administration of the sports and codes of conduct for players and spectators. Nevertheless, we support the importance of school representation equally, no matter what your chosen sport may be. Although a very conservative institution, the AAGPS is capable of measured adaptation. Some of our traditions at High also need to adapt to changed circumstances.

This year an historic experiment is to be attempted for winter sports competition. McKay No.1 will host first grade competition for both rugby and soccer. This gesture is more than symbolic. It is a genuine attempt to demonstrate parity of esteem among major sports in the school. We have three times as many soccer players as rugby players - an imbalance that I hope our recent GPS Heads arrangements for High teams will redress over the next five seasons. We hope that rugby players will support our soccer teams and vice versa. We are all trying our best to succeed in a very tough competition and we need to support each other. I urge all supporters of sports to embrace this fixtures experiment and to cooperate to make it work successfully.

Our teams face three formidable forces beginning with S – size, strength and speed. These forces are the building blocks of successful sports performances. At High we have our own advantages - high combined intelligence, high spirit and high self-discipline. If we build upon these advantages in our approach to competitive sport, we will lessen or negate the physical superiorities of our opponents. Team ball sports are about possession. The team that infringes least maximises its share of possession. Unforced errors are often due to nervousness or over excited reactions to big occasions. The team that has the self-discipline to reduce unforced errors maximises its share of possession. Patterns of play in attack or defence rely upon individuals playing their parts. Teams made up of individuals who have the commitment, selfcontrol and perseverance to resolutely play their roles in attack or defence, utilise possession or minimise the effects of its absence. Your individual job is to get fit and stay fit, no matter what sport you play. You can improve your strength by signing up for a 10-week professionally designed and supervised weights program at our gym. As a reward for sticking it out, we refund half of the cost. You cannot improve your speed very much but you can increase your stamina so that you can run for an hour non stop.

I have composed a contrived little acrostic (High School) to sum up my expectations of all sportsmen in our school: H- heed the coach's instructions, I – inspire others by your example, G – give 100% of your concentration for the whole game, H – help your team mates. S – start with a positive outlook, C – convince yourself that together you can do it, H – have one or two personal goals for the game, O – offer encouragement to others, O – opt for the highest percentage play, L – last the distance.

High school can win premierships. Last winter season we won rifle shooting and volleyball. Technique and team work are vital in those sports. We had advantages in both. Combined with a fierce determination to win, these advantages were decisive. I exhort you all to try to build self-belief. It has to be founded on a base of high physical fitness and a willingness to leave your ego on the sideline and devote yourself to the common cause – a higher standard of team performance.

Winter Sports Assembly

My warm congratulations are extended to all boys who made GPS teams. I know that for some boys the training has lasted for months. The trial games gave us a chance to fit our personnel to positions and to try out our combinations and plays. We face a stern test this year first up against King's. We will have something to prove against King's for quite a while, given our recent history. Let's go out and show them what High can do. Try to abide by Horace's aphorism: When things are steep, remember to stay level-headed. I have been proud of the efforts I have seen so far. Good luck to all teams for the winter season!

Dr K A Jaggar Principal

Junior Athletics Report 2004

On Saturday 18 September 2004, SBHS was well represented at the combined AAGPS Athletics Championships in the junior competition with competitors in almost all championship and division events.

Although not gaining many championship places it was pleasing to see the number of team members who tried their best on the day and with more training there could be a marked improvement.

This season was cut short with less lead up meets and therefore less training, however thanks to MIC, Mr Devlin, a training program for potential team members was instigated and through this, an improvement in the standard of athletes will occur in next few years. Outstanding performances on the day in the junior team were:

Roger Burrell 2nd U16 Shot Put (new school record 16.31m)

Gehan Karunaratne 1st U14 Long jump (5.57m)

Danny Ng 3rd U14 Long jump

Gehan Karunaratne and Roger Burrell were selected in the first ever combined AAGPS Athletics Team and then were selected to be part of the CIS Athletics Team to compete at the NSW All Schools Carnival, a great achievement for SBHS.

A special thanks to Mr Devlin and his dedicated team of teachers and parents who assisted on carnival days and at training.

Roger Burrell Junior Captain of Athletics

Athletics



Athletics

Front Row: M. Wong, M. Fsadni, B. Chan, R. Burrell (Junior Captain), Mr R. Devlin (MIC Athletics), D. Hoare (Senior Captain), Q. Yuen (---), Second Row: A.Shuttleworth, R.Rotherham, L.Street, S.Cunningham, J.Tiedgen, N.Ridges, G.Fong, J.Sun, J.Luscombe, J.Kamerman. Fourth Row: I.Zak, R.Girdler, T.Hoare, D.Clayton, J.James, O.Delaruelle, P.Watzlaff, D.Thomas, T.Kaldor, J.Ninyo. Third Row: S.Wickramasinghe, J.Stretton, M.Steen, C.Shao, R.Liu, D.Ng, A.Szabo, V.Wei, J.Gerofi. Back Row: P.Gordon, S.Mitsuji, J.Scharfegger, K.Kruszelnicki, D.Cao, B.Hansra, I.Kwok. I.Nadkarni, A.Tsitsalovsk.

Sydney Boys High School

Rugby



Front Row: P.McDonnell, Mr J.Delaney (Assistant Coach), T.Miller, Mr S.Bolen (Coach), D.Hoare (Captain), Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), Second Row: G. Carroll, E.Harkins, B.Friis-O'Toole, T.Polis, T.Hoare, D.Thomas, W.Kwok, F.Ly. Back Row: C.Conway, A.Tiedgen, T.Mainprize, B.Mitchell. Mr G.Stein (Coach), I.Kwok, R.Girdler.

Sydney Boys High School

SBHS Rugby Rugby Results 2004

Team	Trin	Cra	HAg	TAS	SPX	ткѕ	тѕс	SJC	SIC	NC	Shore	SGS
1sts	L 24-31	L 7-13	W 22-10	W 26-7	W 27-24	L 12-30	L 3-45	L 5-69	L 6-22	L 18-44	L 21-38	L 19-30
2nds	W 22-0 (4ths)	L 5-35 (3rds)	L 10-24 (16's)	L 6-27	L 5-10	L 0-7 (5ths)	W 15-7 (5ths)	L 5-36 (5ths)	W 13-12 (5ths)	W 22-0 (5ths)	L 0-34 (5ths)	L 0-25
3rds	NG	D 0-0	NG	W 22-20	L 0-33	L 5-27 (6ths)	L 0-5 (6ths)	L 0-32 (6ths)	L 14-30 (6ths)	L 7-10	L 0-39 (6ths)	L 0-25
15A	W 10-5	L 5-24	W 20-3 (15's)	L 5-12 (16A)	W 23-3	L 0-17	D 7-7	L 0-32	L 0-50	L 7-16	L 0-5	W 10-5
15B	W 29-0 (C's)	W 17-5	NG (16B)	L 5-15	W 14-12 (C)	L 5-21	W 17-10 (C)	L 0-32 (C)	L 0-27 (C)	W 28-10 (C)	L 5-29	L 5-14
15C	NG	NG	NG	NG	NG	NG	NG	L 7-29 (E)	NG	W 30-0 (D)	NG	W 34-20 (D)
14A	L 14-24	D 7-7	W 36-0 (14's)	L 0-15 (15A)	L 17-22	L 0-24	L 12-15	L 0-38	L 0-61	L 10-27	L 7-37	L 17-24
14B	W 84-0 (C's)	W 24-7 (C's)	NG	W 5-0 (15B)	W 29-0	D 10-10 (C)	L 5-20	W 15-0 (D)	L 5-31 (C)	L 5-13 (C)	L 0-31 (C)	W 12-5 (C)
14C	NG 29-10 (E's)	W	NG	L (14A)	W 35-17	L 7-17 (F)	L 10-60 (D)	W 29-0 (F)	W 29-5 (E)	L 12-17 (D)	L 5-20 (F)	W 12-0 (D)
13A	W 25-0	W 22-5	NG	W 61-0 (14B)	W 22-12	W 10-7	W 7-6	L 12-37	L 0-12	D 10-10	W 20-0	W 55-0
13B	W 26-12 (D's)	L 6-36 (C's)	NG	L 12-53 (13A)	D 10-10	L 0-17 (C)	W 17-10 (C)	L 0-48 (C)	L 7-29 (C)	W 10-7 (C)	L 10-34 (C)	W 71-0 (C)
13C	NG	L 17-22 (E's)	NG	L 25-32 (13B)	W 32-5	L 0-39 (F)	W 41-27 (E)	L 17-29 (F)	L 0-42 (E)	W 42-0 (F)	L 7-27 (F)	W 31-19 (D)



Second Fifteen

Back Row: B.Wrench, R.Sangha, P.Tripp, A.Pluis, J.Scharfegger, J.Stretton, B.Glass. Second Row: P.Kariawasam, W.Clegg, M.Taylor, I.Dakdouk, J.Phung, L.Bennett, S.Wickramasinghe. Front Row: A.Dam, J.Gerofi, Mr S.Bolen (Coach), F.Ly, Mr G.Stein (Coach), D.Fonseka, S.Kumar.



Rugby



15A Fifteen Back Row: R.Rahman, P.Roser, A.Farrow-Palmer, M.Levy, G.Nguyen, S.Gribble. **Second Row:** P.Tran, A.Nguyen, Q.Yang, J.Tiedgen, R.Ali, M.Samarasinghe. **Front Row:** J.Archer, G.Manamperi, S.Cunningham (Captain), Mr P.R.Bigelow (Coach), R.Burrell, S.Bourke, J.Morgan.

15A Rugby

The 15As season started with an emphatic victory over Trinity (12-5), with the winning try scored in injury time. It was hoped that this would establish a winning culture in the team, sparkling with numerous 'back from the death' wins, much akin to the Wallabies of 2000-2002. These hopes were soon cut down when we were given a taste of an injury time loss at Armidale, curiously losing by the same margin that we had earlier won by.

The GPS season began with a close 0-5 loss to Kings. Again this gave us confidence for the coming games, but we were not rewarded. We had a 0-5 loss to Shore and a third close loss to Newington 7-16.

Such a run of close losses was finally turned around by a brilliant 8-5 victory over Grammar in the final round – personally the highlight of my High Rugby career so far. An extremely close match was only decided by our superior strategy and execution of the coaches' directions, involving driving mauls and tactical kicking. What more could you ask for? Incredibly, A 5-5 draw with Scots for the second year in a row also capped off our season.

Thanks go to our coaches Mr Bigelow and Mr Archer for their fine tactical knowledge, time and effort throughout the season. They would have never felt more involved in a game than against Grammar, when they basically won the match for our fledgling team.

Sandy Cunningham Captain





15B Fifteen Back Row: D.Chung, R.Raja, A.Szabo, E.Blaxell. **Second Row:** R.Rahman, E.Louie, L.Shi, A.Shi, H.Dang, C.Toh. **Front Row:** Y.Kim, P.Tran, J.Kamermann (Captain), Mr J.Beringer (Coach), B.Angell, D.Wu, W.Zhu.



15C Fifteen Back Row: C.Rodrigo, A.Jeyendra, A.Lee, P.Wang. Second Row: D.Gunasekera, C.Ambati, A.Shi, P.Tran, T.Uddin, D.Tran. Front Row: M.Razeen, T.Razeen, M.Lunney, Mr J.Beringer (Coach), A.Wijeyarathe, A.Ly, M.Wong.

Rugby



14A Fifteen

Back Row: M.Coutts, M.Featherstone, W.Zhuang, S.Wang. Second Row: Mr A.M.Hannon (Coach), R.Miao, F.Jin, A.Pham, D.Kim, P.Heo, Mr G.Moody (Coach). Front Row: L.Yang, A.Wang, Y.Guo, A.Vertoudakis (Captain), A.Jawahir, D.Gunaratne, J.Kim.



14B Fifteen Back Row: J.Ding, J.Chiu, M.Farhat, K.Lee Second Row: Mr A.M.Hannon (Coach), A.Arafat, P.Heo, A.Liu, M.Chen, H.Walker, J.Mackay, Mr G.Moody (Coach). Front Row: H.Lee, N.Levanik, M.Liu, T.Hurrell (Captain), S.Lou, R.Nguyen, R.Jang.



14C Fifteen Back Row: M.Ni, R.Pandit, J.Kok, K.Chen. Second Row: Mr A.M.Hannon (Coach), S.Azad, R.Nguyen, R.Leach, M.Liu, L.Deacon, M.Ng, Mr G.Moody (Coach). Front Row: S.Jia, R.Zaman, R.Devapiriam, W.Zhang, S.Cui, S.Ameen, A.Alaganar.



13A Fifteen Back Row: N.Ridges, D.Ng, P.Du, B.Wang **Second Row:** A.Kwok, R.Chen, C.Reeves, B.Pfull, J.Ip, B.Palau **Front Row:** J.Hui, C.Tang, D.O'Keefe (Captain), Mr P.Scrivener (Coach), N.Lochner (Vice Captain), A.Kandasamy, A.Belokopytov.

The Record 2004

Rugby



13B Fifteen

Back Row: T.Joo, S.Merom, A.Lim, G.Astafiev Second Row: M.Ling, V.Perananthan, J.Burney, J.Livingston, A.Kandasamy, L.Boikov Front Row: K.Na, C.Martin, D.Bowes (Captain), Mr A.M.Gainford (Coach), K.Ahmed (Vice Captain), J.Eriksson, D.Nam



13C Fifteen Back Row: Mr A.M.Gainford (Coach), K.McPherson, R.Chen, J.Nguyen, C.Zhang, A.Krishnan, W.Lin, Mr P.Scrivener (Coach) **Front Row:** J.Coppa, J.Wachsmann, M.Ling, J.Culibao, S.Rahman (Captain), C.Evans, A.Hopkins



Front Row: P.Zhang, P.Watzlaff, Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), A.Alsamail (Captain), Mr R.Gifford (Coach), T.Lung, A.Saxena Back Row: M.Steen, W.Logge, S.Mitsuji, M.Shiner, K.Dickson, D.Byrne, N.Poranek

The Record 2004

GPS Soccer Results

Week	T2 Week 6	T2 Week 7	T2 Week 8	T3 Week 1	T3 Week 2	T3 Week 3	T3 Week 4
Date	05/06/04	12/06/04	19/06/04	24/07/04	31/07/04	07/08/04	14/08/04
Team	Kings (H)	Scots (A)	Joeys (A)	Riverview (A)	Newington (A)	Shore (H)	Grammar (H)
1st Grade	W 1-0	L 1-0	D 1-1	W 4-3	L 5-1	W 4-1	L 3-1
2nd Grade	D 1-1	L 4-0	D 0-0	L 3-0	L 4-0	L 3-0	L 4-0
3rd Grade	L 2-0	W 1-0	W 3-1	D 0-0	L 2-0	W 1-0	D 2-2
4th Grade	L 2-0	D 1-1	W 1-0	L 5-1	L 2-0	L 4-1	L 5-0
5th Grade	W 5-0	W 2-0	W 3-0	D 1-1	D 1-1	W 1-0	W 1-0
6th Grade	W 7-0	W 2-1	W 1-0	L 2-0	W 1-0	W 4-1	L 1-0
7th Grade	W 2-0	W 3-1	D 1-1	L 4-0	W 2-1	D 3-3	D 1-1
16A	D 1-1	L 1-3	D 1-1	L 2-0	L 2-0	D 0-0	
16B	L 0-2	W 2-1	W 1-0	D 1-1	L 2-0	L 1-0	
16C	W 1-0	D 1-1	W 2-0	L 3-0	W 1-0	W 4-0	D 2-2
16D	W 3-0	D 0-0	L 0-2	L 2-0	W 5-1	D 0-0	
15A	D 1-1	L 0-1	W 2-1	W 2-0	D 2-2	L 1-0	L 3-1
15B	L 1-0	L 2-1	L 9-0	D 1-1	L 0-1	D 1-1	L 1-0
15C	W 1-0	W 6-0	W 2-1	W 1-0	W 2-0	D 0-0	L 1-0
15D	W 3-0	L 0-6	W 2-1	W 6-0	D 2-2	W 1-0	D 0-0
15E	W 3-0	W 3-0	W 2-0	W 4-0	L 2-0	W 8-0	W 1-0
14A	W 8-0	W 2-0	W 5-0	D 2-2	D 1-1	W 4-0	D 0-0
14B	W 3-1	W 2-0	W 1-0	D 0-0	L 2-1	D 0-0	L 2-1
14C	W 6-1	W 10-0	W 6-0	L 2-1	W 4-2	W 11-0	W 2-0
14D	W3-2	L 3-2	W 3-0	D 1-1	W 1-0	W2-0	L 1-0
14E	L 4-0	W 2-1	W 2-0	W 2-1	W 4-0	L 3-2	L 3-1
13A	L 2-1	L 6-0	W 5-1	L 3-2	LO-3	L 2-1	L 9-0
13B	L 3-1	L 5-0	W 2-0	L 5-0	L 1-3	W 2-0	
13C	W 5-2	W 2-1	D 1-1	L3-2	L 1-4	D 1-1	
13D	D 1-1	W 1-0	L 2-1	L 5-0	L 0-2	W 2-1	
13E	L 7-0	W 3-1	L 2-1	D 3-3	forfeit	W 2-0	

SPC = St Pats CP = Centennial Park MPW = Moore Park West

Master-in-Charge Report

Having said goodbye to a number of key players last year it was always going to be a year of rebuilding and a year of development. The First Grade side contained just four regulars from the runners up of the previous three seasons, and Second Grade, just three. Their results possibly did not reflect the style of play both sides played and there were important lessons the young players learnt through the season. Some of the players being as young as 15 will have another three years to make this experience count. There is definitely a change in the attitude to the sport, where at this level, the possession of a mental toughness developed through a number of seasons is of great benefit.

Again we fielded a record number of teams starting the season with five in the 13s,14s, and 15s. There were four teams in the 16s and 7 Opens, involving some 380-400 boys, overseen by six staff members and sixteen coaches including old boys, current students and a parent, who went on to produce the school's most successful side, the 14Cs.

Key structures were put in place to add a basis for the ongoing development of our players throughout the Junior School including the appointment of a Director of Coaching, Mr Nick Apoifis. Coaches this year were trained in coaching techniques and assigned sides to develop these skills with the view of making the whole coaching programme uniform throughout the school and to build upon the foundations year after year.

We maintained the use of Clinics running in the holidays and all of our Junior teams trained at least twice a week with their coaches. The Clinics were organised using the best coaches available from the State league and the NSL who were given the brief to concentrate on our players ball skills and fitness. The Clinic was a great success and it is very satisfying after four days of intensive coaching to see the change in ability of the players.

2004 also proved to be a season of firsts around the GPS competition. The season was moved forwards to include GPS rounds in Term 2 to accommodate a switch in the Athletics season to Term 3. Sydney Grammar won the Premiership being crowned Champions, the first time St. Ignatius have been beaten in five years, having been Premiers since 1999. St. Ignatius were beaten by High on their home field at Lane Cove, which is the first time they have ever been beaten on that field in the GPS; also

the first game they had lost in the competition since 2002. Scots played High in First Grade on the Scots main Oval for the first time and the 9 o'clock kick off is possibly a GPS first.

For High, it was a season which was all about restructuring, coaching development and building for the future by putting in place practices aimed at upholding the fine tradition and competitiveness of the sport at High.

N Morris MIC

Second Grade Coach's Report

The philosophical change in the role of Second Grade as the training ground for our future players meant that a very young side was assembled which only included four Year 12 students with past experience and five Year 10s. A Year 9 student was also to gain valuable experience before the season was over.

In Term 1 the Seconds started their preparation with a game against Trinity Grammar and despite losing, there were some very positive signs that the style of football they were to play would at least be very entertaining. They followed this with a fixture against Waverley College at the home of the NSW Soccer Federation, on the last day of Term 1, where they played a full eighty minutes against two Waverley sides made up from both First and Second Grade. Although they lost 2-1 they managed to hold a fresh Waverley scoreless in the entire Second half and the game was memorable for Mihnea Popescu's thirty yard drive into the top corner giving High the lead in the first half.

The trial games began with a close defeat against a physically stronger Cranbrook side and that was followed with victories over SCEGGS Redlands and the morale boosting victory over St Andrews first Grade thanks to a sublime Jongha Lee finish in the first half.

In first game against Kings at home the inexperience and nerves were evident, as what was going to prove the nemesis of the season – the lack of good luck. High struck the bar twice and thanks to an equaliser by Gantheepan came away with a well fought draw. At times the football was very good and, had the ball behaved and gone in when it should, then High would have started with a very satisfying victory. The players were very nervous



Second Grade Soccer Back Row: G.Pasupathy, J.Gough, T.Neville, N.Roucek, T.Ginn, M.Popescu, M.Dwyer, F.Wong Front Row: B.Liu, J.Lee, S.Cradock, Mr N.Morris (Coach), S.D'Souza, M.Seow, B.Chan

before the kick off and the draw seemed to be a strong start which they would learn from. However, the season changing fixture was just around the corner.

Scots away began at 12 noon at ES Marks Field, with the first grade game having been played at Scots at 9 o'clock. Things started well with High conceding height and strength but battling and when Jongha Lee broke and slotted it home, it all looked to be going to plan. Unfortunately the linesman, who was to have a big influence on the game ruled it offside and the teams went into the second half scoreless. Then in the space of fifteen minutes Scots were awarded four penalties, at least three by the linesman. Tim Neville saved one but the High players failed to recover and they lost 0-4.

The effects of this game were to shape the rest of the season, where despite a strong performance against Joeys into the wind, confidence had dropped and the effects of those fifteen minutes came back to haunt the players for the rest of the season.

Equal at the break to St Ignatius blew out to 0-3 in ten second half minutes; a goal down to Newington

at half time blew out to 0-4 in eight second half minutes; equal to Shore at half time resulted in a 0-3 loss in the second half and a stirring performance against the Premiers Grammar at half time resulted in a 0-4 loss in ten second half minutes with the catalyst, a questionable penalty just five minutes after the break.

To their credit High played the final ten minutes of each game strongly and never gave up despite the scoreline. Pre-season High had seemed to be very strong defensively having conceded no second half goals since the defeat at Trinity in the opening game.

A lack of fortune in front of goal and the mental scars of the Scots fixture shaped the season but the players never let their heads drop, and trained just as hard if not harder after each set back.

The season proved to be a steep learning curve for everyone involved but should provide valuable experience and the bonds that were forged in the face of adversity will help to create a stronger unit for the next couple of years.

N. Morris Coach

2nd Grade Captain's Report

Training for the 2004 season started early in February. The selections had been completed in early December 2003 and both the first and second grade sides looked to be shaping up well for the 2004 GPS season. This season marked the beginning of a new approach to soccer at the 2nd grade level. The 2nd grade team which had traditionally comprised of Year 12 students was to be used as a training ground for future first grade players to adjust to the pace and physical nature of open soccer and provide them with that all important big game experience. The teams lead up to the GPS season was not a smooth as it could have been, with multiple line up changes and several interruptions due to rowing and other such commitments meant that training was irregular and varied. Despite this, the team trained hard when they could under the watchful eye of newly appointed coach Mr Morris and played even harder in true High spirit. Unfortunately the season was less successful than it had the potential to be in terms of results, however I believe that most of the boys got some great experience out if it. We all should look forward to promising results in the future.

The pre season provided a mixed bag of results for the 2nd XI with a disappointing loss to Trinity Grammar which was not the ideal start to the season. However after holiday training the boys recovered and put in a strong performance against a solid Cranbrook outfit. Unfortunately, two High players were sent off, and Cranbrook sealed a 2-1victory in the final minutes against an under manned 2nd XI. The following games were marked by impressive improvements from the High players, the 2nd XI put in two strong performances against SCEGGS Redlands and St Andrews 1st XI and looked set to start the season in good form.

High v KINGS GPS ROUND 1

High 2XI started a bit flat and found themselves on the end of very sustained Kings pressure. Kings scored within the first 10 minutes when their striker was gifted time on the edge of the box allowing him to turn unopposed to send the ball low past Tim Neville's near post. High then began to play with much more composure and after near misses by Matt Dwyer and Tyson who hit the bar, early replacement Gantheepan came on and dazzled the Kings defence with his footwork before striking a left footed drive into the net. After half time Kings again started brightly but High were a great deal tighter at the back not allowing the time around the box or in midfield. They played some enterprising football and a 1 -1 draw seemed a fair result for both schools

High v SCOTS GPS ROUND 2

This turned out to be a very controversial fixture and the guestion many asked was simple...how did High concede four penalties in the space of fifteen minutes? Things started well against a fired up Scots side who proved the saying there are no easy fixtures in this competition with everyone able to beat everyone else on their day. 2XI weathered the storm in the first ten minutes, thanks to a great Neville save, tipping a dipping long range effort over the bar, and then started to create chances of their own, the best falling to Jongha Lee who broke and finished only to be pulled back for a controversial offside. The second half started 0-0 as Scots pushed forward using their height and strength to win the 50/50 ball in the air. A reshuffled back line due to an injury to Jack Gough held until too much space was allowed down the right and an unmarked player nipped in to finish a low cross. Then the madness started. High conceded 4 penalties in 15 minutes with Tim Neville saving one. High put some pressure back on Scots late in the game but to no avail. It was a disappointing 4-0 loss.

High v JOEYS GPS ROUND 3

In very blustery conditions High 2XI went out to wipe out the memory of last week's disastrous performance against Scots. Missing key players Michna Popescu and Gantheepan, it was a new midfield that took to the field and dominated early exchanges. High's possession was good and with Jongha leading the line with his tireless running 2XI had the better of the opening 15 minutes. Joeys looked strong on the break especially down the left but High certainly enjoyed most of the first half creating a number of chances which were thwarted by a very well drilled Joeys defence. The second half became more and more even with both sides counter-attacking and High was forced to play much of the ball in their own half due to the wind which made clearing the lines difficult. It was good to see 2XI fighting for all possession and passing the ball around with confidence, the 0-0 result was probably fair considering the evenly matched contest.

High v RIVERVIEW GPS ROUND 4

Always a tough fixture High second grade started very well. We held back Riverview with some ease in the first half with Tim Neville commanding his area behind a solid defence line. The midfielders were stringing some good moves together and matching their opponents in all areas of the field.

In the second half High were defending the expected push from Riverview and weathered the storm until they appeared to be on top, however a failed clearance led to a soft goal. Disheartened by the goal the High boys couldn't defend against the sudden onslaught from the Riverview side that capitalised on two more opportunities. This was a disappointing 3-0 loss for the boys considering their strong performance which unfortunately was destabilised due to many missed chances and a soft goal.

High V NEWINGTON GPS ROUND 5

This 4-0 loss was a disappointing result for the 2nd XI. They boys played well and put in a gallant effort against a well drilled and physical Newington outfit. The game was fast and physical and High was denied a sure chance from a questionable offside

call. Unfortunately for High, Newington capitalised from a set piece late in the first half leaving High with all the work to do. After the break a rejuvenated High side launched the offensive however Newington withstood wave after wave of High attack. The Newington side was then awarded a penalty after a brilliant one-on-one save by Tim Neville injured one of their players. Again, unsettled by the penalty, the High side conceded to more goals in quick succession; a disappointing result for the boys.

High v SHORE GPS ROUND 6

High second grade again fought hard but were comprehensively beaten 3-0 by a fitter and stronger side. Shore began strongly and put High under a great deal of pressure with a string of corners which finally paid dividends for Shore in the tenth minute. Poor marking left a Shore player with a free header and he connected with it perfectly to send it flying into the net. High battled but failed to really trouble the Shore defence in the first half. After half time High played a much more direct game and began to put pressure on the Shore backline, however Shore capitalised on High pushing forwards and scored two counter attack goals by attacking quickly down the flanks.



Third Grade Soccer Back Row: N.Frazi, H.Neo, W.Xu, D.Clayton, V.George, T.Wei, R.Mounarath Front Row: R.Yu, M.Nguyen, D.Greenup, D.Wang, T.Kaldor, J.Kang, J.Kwok



Fourth Grade Soccer Back Row: Z.Zinzopoulos, R.Yoganathan, C.Halls Second Row: C.Nguyen, D.Tran, C.J.Yong, D.Qi, J.Kang, R.Mounarath Front Row: R.Pereira, G.Fong, R.Kouchak, D.Ong, W.Lester, J.Kraindler, H.Chan



Sixth Grade Soccer Back Row: M.Wang, E.Ho, A.Pang, J.Chan, J.Chen. Front Row: J.Van, I.Guo, A.Wong, P.S.Xin, T.Wu, P.Thai, R.Glance



Seventh Grade Soccer Back Row: P.Tung, L.Cheung, C.Tran, R.Kumar, V.Sirinopakul. Front Row: R.Amion, P.Wong, R.Lam, A.Hwan, T.Zhang.

High v GRAMMAR GPS ROUND 7

High started well against the premiers and dominated the play for the first half of the match. After the break the Grammar team looking to claim their premiership unbeaten, launched а considerable offensive however the High boys played with everything they had and contained the attack. It wasn't until the 47th minute when another penalty was awarded against us that the Grammar team were able to capitalise. We fought gallantly however the trademark second half collapse ensued. This was perhaps the most disappointing fixture of the season for the boys considering their performance in the first 40 minutes. Unfortunately the all too familiar pivotal penalty sealed their fate and they went down 4-0.

The success of the season while not reflected in the results gave the younger players plenty of experience and plenty to learn from. With improved

preparation and training we can certainly look forward to more successful results in the near future.

Simon Cradock Captain

16A Soccer

The season started off with much promise, directed by the coaching of Matt Malroney and Hugh James, two esteemed old boys dedicated to teaching the 16As proper football. High started off the season with the loss of some great footballers to the opens, but the side of Long Chen, Kevin Kim, Edward Hibbert, Eddie Pham, Chong Shao, Sahir Syed, Faraz Amin, Larry Lai, Richard Lieu and Lewis d'Avigdor as captain, were determined to put on a strong performance.

We had many close games, losing three times in the last minutes of play, and only getting a 1-1 draw



16A Soccer Back Row: F.Amin, E.Pham, C.Shao, R.Liu, L.Chen. Front Row: R.Rotherham, K.Kim, L.d'Avigdor, L.Lai, S.Syed, E.Hibbert.

against Shore. However the most remarkable moment of our season was our last game against Grammar where we were determined to put points on the board after a disappointing season. The 16As entered the field focused on the game and High started the game confidently and courageously at kick off, with Faraz and Richard tapping it back to Eddie who let loose with a kick to Riet running down the left flank. Immediately the pressure was on Grammar and the ball was in their half, where it stayed.

The 16As were privileged to have the super subs of Francis, Mihnea, Brian Bob and Jongha to come on for quick bursts of play, down from 2nd grade and the result was dramatic. However, we still played as a team, lifting with the tragic dislocation of Jongha's knee early on in the game. We were determined not to let Grammar beat us. We played out our strategy beautifully, distributing the ball wide before sending it to the centre. Surely enough, our strategy worked and Faraz hit home a beautiful goal, his first of the season. More chances came, including a last second cross from Mihnea which flew across the face of goal without meeting the boot of a High player, sending a huge groan from the ranks of High supporters. When Grammar did go on the attack, their efforts were stopped admirably by the sound defence of Lewis, Long, Larry and Big Kev. The keeper was not troubled.

In the second half we played without the help of subs and Grammar counter-attacked quickly. They put in several weak attempts, contemptuously dismissed by the keeper. High was not without chances of its own, with Eddy Pham and Riet working hard on the two flanks. Richard, Sahir and Hibbert were menacing up front with the ball at their feet. However it was clear that fatigue was getting the better of us and Grammar picked up their intensity with numerous runs into our half. There were some gut-wrenching moments when Grammar got into the box late in the second half. Their best chance was first stopped by Larry's boot, then by Long's. The whistle sounded as High clung heroically for a resounding win, the first and last of the season

After a somewhat unlucky season we managed to win in the end 1-0 and give a little credit to the dedicated players and a great coach. I'll be looking forward to seeing most of our team in 1sts and 2nds



16B Soccer Back Row: T.Zhong, E.Chau, A.Leong, Y.Hussain, K.Ly, C.Jahja. **Front Row:** S.Nossar, Y.Shaw, R.Huana, R.Pearson, P.Uthayachandran, F.Taaffe, J.Sun.

in the coming years. Thankyou once again to all the players as well as Matt and Hugh for the effort they put in during the season.

Lewis d'Avigdor Captain

16B Soccer

The 16 B's season was an incredibly enjoyable one. At first successful with consecutive wins over Trinity and Scots, headed by two great coaches and Old Boys, Hugh James and Matt Mulroney.

Hugh James provided us with the strength and cohesion that we needed to overcome very competent opposition and employed his first grade expertise and precision to build our team from a rabble of old mates to a competitive fighting machine.

Our season was extremely successful as we defeated Scots, Joeys and Grammar, with marvellous performances from the likes of Edward Hibbert, Richard Liu, Sahir Syed, Englemann Chow and Tony Zhong. Our keeper was also a sight to behold, as Chris Jahja, the goalie with the ninja reflexes and leadership, together with myself, managed to hold the team together from the back line.

Hugh often said the first line of attack was defence and this proved to be true. As the season progressed our team picked up momentum with an undefeated record. However by the end of the season, due to a number of injuries and a loss of steam, we were defeated by Shore and Newington, breaking our unbroken record.

Overall it was a very rewarding season....a lot of early morning starts, but we were never phased. I would like to thanks Ms Dam, Hugh and Matt for all the help, and the team for an extremely fun ride.

Rory Pearson Captain

16C Soccer

The soccer season for 2004 kicked off with the first trial game in Term I against Trinity. It was the first time the lads had played Trinity and they didn't know what to expect, but played quite well and



16C Soccer Back Row: T.Song, M.Thayaparan, J.Diep, D.Guo, A.Reis, K.Ho, H.Liu, A.Gupta. Front Row: B.Chow, S.Srikumar, K.Liu, A.Ha, F.Cheung, J.Lu, K.Qui.

took the early lead. However, not having played together before, they were not able to maintain that for the full game and were unlucky to go down 2:1. It was another month before the 16Cs were to play their next game. However, with the team undergoing several adjustments to the line-up and getting more used to playing with each other, they came out and soundly defeated Cranbrook 6:0 with Kelvin and Kevin getting two goals each, and Henry and Thomas getting one each. The following week both Kelvin and Kevin added another goal to their tallies with a 2:0 win against SCEGS Redlands. The goals then dried up slightly and we went down 1:0 to St Pius 16B's. This was a very unfortunate loss, as St Pius did not have a single shot on goal in the game, as their score came from an own goal.

It was finally time for the GPS season to make an entrance. First up on the calendar was Kings. In a game which High dominated, we were not able to make a mark on the score sheet. Ironically, what proved to be our undoing in the previous week against St Pius, was our saviour this week against Kings - an own goal. Next up was Scots, with Thomas scoring our opener in the first few minutes of the game. After several games without a proper goal, it looked like we were in for a bit of a show again. However, luck was not on our side and Scots somehow managed to salvage a draw to the surprise of everyone. And so, with Joeys not fielding a 16C's High went into a slightly longer holiday break before the final four games in Term III.

Term III then began with St Ignatius. Although the score line doesn't reflect it, the game was in fact a very close one. However, High went down 3:0 for their worst result of the season. Putting behind the disappointment of this loss, the 16Cs played fantastic football against Newington to win 1:0, with Thomas yet again the goal scorer. This form was carried over to the following week, where we outclassed Shore 4:0, with Francis, Kevin, Jason Lu and Kelvin scoring. The final game against Grammar had a bit of everything, but overall it would probably be best described as a comedy of errors. There was an own goal by High to start things off early in the first half, followed by several fantastic and not-so-fantastic tackles by both sides. The second half then began with a great long-range goal by Henry to put High level. Not long after that there was an own goal by Grammar, and High was in front. However, to even things out Grammar was able to score a goal of their own in the dying minutes of the game to finish the season at 2:2.

Overall 2004, with the new winter sports format, was



16D Soccer Back Row: M.Tao, A.Flores, M.Zhou, N.Balashov, T.Chong, P.Lieu, K.Leong. Front Row: Y.Yeung, J.Jiang, A.Huynh, V.Wei, K.Vaidya, A.Trinh, A.Wong.

an enjoyable and successful season for the 16Cs, with the player of the season being Kevin Ho.

The team consisted of: Arghya Gupta, Kenny Liu, Miruthulan Thayaparan, Andrew Reis, Benjamin Chow, Daniel Chen, Jason Lu, Francis Cheung (vc), Augustine Ha (c), Jason Diep, Henry Liu, Sriram Srikumar, Kevin Ho, Thomas Wong, Kelvin Qiu.

Max Kletski Coach

16D Soccer

It was a shaky start to the season due to the overwhelming number of players initially signing up for soccer. At times it was a struggle deciding whom to keep. Luckily some people went to rugby which helped selection problems and was also good to see more people playing rugby.

In the first few games for 16D, the team played well. Of course, there were some team communication and other gelling issues, but it was good for the most part. We even managed to win the majority of our pre-season games.

The GPS season however was not so fortunate as the competition proved tougher than expected. Coupled with the fact that some of our players had

moved up to Cs or Bs, our team was left slightly diminished but there was still confidence and a strong belief our team could have a successful season.

There was sufficient firepower up front in our mids and strikers with Anthony, Peter, Andrew, John, Tony, Lun, William, Michael Z putting in good performances each week. But it was our defence that was a constant problem. Over the season some positional changes helped to alleviate the problem greatly.

The introduction of keeper Victor Wei halfway through the season also greatly bolstered our defence. Michael Z shone as a defender, and Michael T and Joon were equally good as defenders. Alan, Jack and Kaivon provided some spark off the bench for the mids, and Adrian, Kieran and Nikita did solidly as defenders also.

Many of our games were hard fought, tough blowfor-blow affairs. Only Shore was able to convincingly dominate against us. It was a season of mixed results but it was a fun time and everybody enjoyed the season to the full.

Match Results:

King's: Win 2-1; Scots: D 0-0; St Ignatius': L 0-2; Newington: W 5-1; Shore: L 0-2; SPC: D 0-0; Grammar: L 1-2

Nick Morris, MIC



15A Soccer Back Row: R.George, R.Xu, J.Luscombe, A.Husaini, G.Karunaratne, R.Alchin. **Front Row:** N.Tran, A.Lee, A.Shuttleworth, B.Sun, D.Blaxell.



Back Row: J.Xie, O.Perera, H.Song, A.Surendran, W.Shi, J.Phu, J.Park. Front Row: A.Naik, R.Yeung, M.Alim, C.Siu, J.Freiman, A.Ashokkumar, B.Prentice-Davidson.



15C Soccer Back Row: J.Lai, M.Ba, A.Morris, E.Yao, A.Vulkanovski, A.Park, R.Tran. Front Row: R.Cherian, S.Hussain, A.Ng, D.Wong, S.Yuan, J.Leung, R.Baskaran.



15D Soccer Back Row: V.Tsitalovskiy, B.Liu, M.Shen. Front Row: D.Tran, C.Lee, G.Panicker, M.Liu.



15E Soccer Back Row: Z.Li, M.Keldoulis, S.Song, S.Chen, S.Zhang, E.Luu. Second Row: X.Lu, E.Lui, D.Kumagaya, R.Gokarn, M.Kim, K.Yu. Front Row: J.Luu, J.Au, A.Wan, R.Yang, D.Hu, T.Xia, L.Wong.



14A Soccer Back Row: A.Taylor, A.Leung, D.Campion, L.Street, D.Simpson, D.Chiu. Front Row: P.Locke, M.Spencer, T.Lindeback, M.Fsadni, I.Cerecina.



14B Soccer Back Row: M.Bock, J.Lu, A.Karunakaran, K.Sriranjan, D.Chandrakumar. Front Row: M.Serban, J.Cohn, S.Ting, M.Myronenko, K.Iyer.



14C Soccer Back Row: B.Lee, C.Cheung, D.Vijayakumar, C.Liu, N.McDonnell, G.Lo, T.Rosengarten. **Front Row:** A.Thomas, J.Lee, A.Ng, P.Nguyen, A.Yeung.



14D Soccer Back Row: S.Lee, M.Coutts, B.Lee, C.Yang, J.Menzies, T.Mai, R.Hua. Front Row: S.Yang, C.Yang, A.Tse, J.Huang, L.Berger.



Back Row: R.Ji, R.Ratnayake, M.Lee, P.Phuah. Second Row: K.Vingnanasingam, J.Ma, H.Chen, S.Iyer, W.Nguyen, M.Desai. Front Row: K.Wang, I.Luong, H.Bhrugubanda, M.Sun, X.Zhai, E.Ang, N.Lieu.



13A Soccer

Back Row: M.Mikha, J.Tassell, N.Dimitropoulos, D.Peng, J.Bell, K.Nguyen, S.Hoang. Front Row: N.Lindeback, C.Katsikaros, J.Ireland, C.Chen, J.Cohn.



13B Soccer Back Row: J.Chow, M.Osinski, J.Chen, J.Park. Front Row: A.Jurisevic, S.Chin, M.Lucchitti, P.Desmond, V.Lim.



13C Soccer Back Row: P.Roessler-Holgate, J.Wong, B.Low, M.Liu, D.Lo, W.Zhang. Front Row: T.Lim, B.Diep, S.Shimada, J.Lieu, A.Xie.



13D Soccer Back Row: D.Wu, K.Lim, V.Ung, B.Yang, W.Ma, T.Zhong, X.Quan. Front Row: H.Neo, V.Lam, L.Teng, J.Li, T.Siu.



13E Soccer Back Row: T.Huda, T.Tran, A.Chan. *Front Row:* A.Ang, N.Spoljaric, D.Nguyen, A.Tran.



Sydney Boys High School

Cross Country



Open Grade Country Back Row: Mr.J.Prorellis (Coach), K.Liu, O.Lee, E.Ren, G.McManus J.James **Front Row:** W.Wong, R.Yao, Y.Zhang (Captain), J.Xie, A.Wu

Cross Country – Under 16s

Cross Country is a winter GPS sport. The age categories are U14, U16 and Open. Races are held on Saturday mornings. All GPS schools host races, so the venue changes. Most meets are held in Centennial Park.

2004 proved a very interesting season for the under 16s. With the likes of Andrew Reis and Attila Szabo leaving the team to pursue other sports, a relatively weak team began the season with lower numbers then the 2003 season.

After some vigorous training from Mr Porellis and Mr Kesting, the team slowly began to form shape. The 2004 championships were to be held at Sydney Park, the most grueling of all courses. Sydney Park is a hilly 6km course, which takes the most out of even the best runner. The mid-season break provided an excellent opportunity for some hard training by a number of runners. As the team returned from the two week holiday, we were fitter then ever.

Some excellent results were achieved at the first run of Term III which was held at Macquarie hospitals. Three runners placed in the top 20 of a very demanding field. As the season continued, the training stepped up. James Chen was always a source of mid-run entertainment with his Discman and speakers.

The looming Sydney Park Championships slowly grew closer. As the day arrived, the team briefly discussed nutritional habits and some carbo-juice was taken in a last ditch attempt at gaining energy. Many members of the team began the race with the aim only to finish without throwing up. The team ran an impressive race, narrowly missing out on gaining a podium finish. Overall, the team had a valiant season, with many committed runners giving it their all.

Julian Murray



16s Cross Country Second Row: S.Thillainadesan, D.Sun, R.Phung, W.Lu, J.Chen Front Row: A.Trieu, E.Stadnik, J.Murray, D.Wong, J.Cheung.



14s Cross Country I.Bapat, W.Ma, E.Montoya Zorrilla, J.Dai, W.Chan.

Rifle Shooting



Front Row: T.Shu, Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), A.Jacques (Captain), Mr J.Fittler (MIC Shooting), C.Lam. Back Row: S.Singarayar, C.Budd, J.Scharfegger, P.Gordon, M.Li.
Second Grade Rifle Shooting

Second Grade did well this year despite coming fourth out of five competing schools including Shore, Grammar, Kings and Scots. The team of eight was made up of Phil Wu, Alex Shapilsky, Andrew Liu, Martin Vu, Patrick Chen, Simon Zhang, Ben Tseng and Joe Banh. Shooting for the seconds premiership began at the 500 metre range at Hornsby on 21 July. Patrick Chen shot an excellent 33-2 whilst Andrew Liu and Joe Banh both scored a credible 30-0. The total aggregate for the 500 metre shot was 224-3 out of a possible 280.

The second and final match was contested at the 300 metre range straight after the 500 metre shoot. Martin Vu shot the highest score in the 300 metre

range for High Second Grade with a 33-3 whilst Patrick Chen and Simon Zhang shot a solid 32-3 and 30-1 respectively. Congratulations to Patrick Chen and Martin Vu who scored the highest individual grand aggregates of 65-5 and 62-4 respectively. The total aggregate was 219-10 out of 280 at the 300 metre range whilst the grand aggregate was 443-11 which was enough for Sydney High to come fourth and beat Scots by 49 points and 5 bulls.

Congratulations to Shore, Grammar and Kings with scores of 523-34, 497-15 and 488-18 respectively who beat us. Good Luck next year to Second Grade for what should be a better result.

Joe Banh Captain 2nd Grade



Second Grade Rifle Shooting Back Row: M.Vu, S.Zheng, P.Chen. Front Row: P.Wu, E.Stadnik, J.Bahn, A.Liu, B.Tseng

Fencing



Fencing Back Row: P.Tian, M.Wang, L.Li, S.Chen, D.Huynh. Front Row: M.Sin, A.Klocker, A.Clune, K.Axelrod, P.Duffy, D.Tran, L.Tan.

Sydney Boys High School

The Record 2004

Skiing



Ski Team

Back Row: D.Clayton, A.Farrow-Palmer, N.Roucek, N.Balashov. Second Row: Mr C.Kesting (Coach), H.Walker, S.Cunningham, S.Mitsuji, J.Tiedgen, R.Rotherham. Front Row: A.Ho, M.Spencer, H.Reid, A.Klocker, J.Freiman, J.Burney, V.Issaev.



Back Row: K.Wong, T.Ly, D.Grimm, K.Kruszelnicki, B.Zhang, F.Balgahom. Front Row: V.Nguyen, Dr K.A.Jaggar (Principal), Y.Doran (Captain), Mr M.Kay (Coach), R.Lu.

First Grade Volleyball

With five people backing up from last year's first grade premiership, High went into the GPS season not so quietly confident. We made it a goal for first grade to not only be undefeated in the entire season, but also to not drop a set. With only five schools in the competition, and of those, only two that were serious competitors (High and Grammar), we figured this was a very plausible goal.

The season started with High playing some horrible volleyball, but still managing to easily account for Scots, Iggies and Newington in straight sets. Our first encounter with Grammar was one of mystery. Not knowing what to expect we came out firing, only to face a below strength Grammar team and record our biggest margin in a set at 25-3, and once again recording a straight sets win.

The second round robin after the holidays saw us acquire two new players, Anisul Islam as libero and Dominic Grimm as our 6'5" blocker. Both were valuable assets to the team, complimenting each other's positions. The next three rounds replicated the first three, all with easy wins.

Despite the previous score line with Grammar, we knew that with a full strength team they would be a force, and the first set proved us right. A point for point set saw High take the lead numerous times only for it to be snatched away from them, until at 31-30, a long tense rally was ended with a not quite so stunning spike by Fahmy.

The next two sets were both hard fought with many good passages of play, and for the first time in the competition our team broke into a mild sweat. Both sets ended with High up 25-21, but not before Bill managed to sprain his ankle in the last few points.

And so, in a season of topsy turvy nature, where High recorded both the biggest and the smallest margins against the same team, High became the unofficial GPS champions, without dropping a set.

Thanks to everyone who played for us, and with the entire team back next year, we will somehow try to work out a way of bettering this year's result.

Yaegan Doran Captain

Second Grade Volleyball

The 2004 GPS Volleyball season for High Second Grade was immensely enjoyable, but unfortunately

far too short, with the double round robin season offering only five Second Grade games. Indeed some of the fiercer battles were waged off court by the players on the bench for a chance to get on. The team played consistently well throughout the season, finishing with no losses, and dropping only one set.

Match Reports

vs Newington (home)

High defeated Newington [25-13, 25-7, 25-9]

The first game for a new team that contained many old faces, our passing remained strong, and the setters serviced the hitters on every opportunity. Kapil was an imposing block at the net, making Newington pay whenever their own passes strayed. Our serving was impressive — Hughoce and Phillip notched up a few killer jump serves during the final two sets. A strong win to start the season.

vs Riverview (away)

High defeated Iggies [25-10, 25-9, 25-18]

Even with the pressure of playing in an unfamiliar, freezing cold environment, we easily accounted for the St Ignatius team. We won most of our points on serves, thanks largely to Cong and Hughoce. The unreturnable spikes of Sheng, Alex, and Kenny demonstrated their solid point-making skills.

vs Grammar (home)

High defeated Grammar [25-7, 25-7, 25-12]

The build-up to this game had been tense (Grammar being our perennial rivals), however, the fears were unfounded as they were unable to slow the High juggernaut. Kenny unleashed his hidden fury from the outset, with devastating serves, and even more powerful and accurate spikes. There was solid passing in the back court, especially by our everreliable libero Sam, and Ed's accurate setting allowed Sheng to spike at will. The second set saw an unofficial serving competition between Hughoce and Cong, with Hughoce opening the set with ten consecutive winning jump serves. David and Clement provided imposing blocks leading to rash returns from the Grammar front court. The third set was also won convincingly, with Sam given an opportunity in the front court as an outside hitter. Despite the anti-climatic performance by Grammar, we knew we were yet to see the end of a team who has the habit of producing an unseen, mystery team in the last match of the season.



Second Grade Volleyball Back Row: Mr P.S.Parker (Coach), E.Leong, D.Dou, H.Feng, K.Huang, S.Chhor. Front Row: J.Tao, A.Le, P.Yang, S.Zhang, S.Tu.

vs Newington (away)

High defeated Newington [25-14, 25-10, 25-14]

We began the match in our customary fashion of strong serving by Cong and Ed. However, it soon became obvious that Newington had dramatically improved their passing and hitting since the first round. Effective spiking by Kenny and Phillip ensured that, in the end, we won the first set comfortably. In the next set, David, Clement and Sheng subjected Newington to consistent attacks, and Hughoce showed them how jump serves were really done. Newington lost the spirit to put up a decent challenge in the third set.

vs Grammar (away)

High defeated Grammar [25-20, 25-15, 23-25, 25-20]

This was the highly anticipated showdown against Grammar and the most important fixture of the season. Grammar fielded a very strong side and there would be no easy points. We were alert, but not alarmed. With Hughoce injured, Ed was our main setter, and the little maestro played a sublime match — his pinpoint sets clearly allowed us to dominate in attack. Phillip led the way with solid hitting through the middle and effective jump serves, despite the narrow free zone provided by the Grammar gymnasium (which means there is a brick wall three feet behind the baseline). Kenny was again impressive hitting from the outside, and back-up libero Alex Le played a faultless passing game. The momentum gained in the first set was carried into the second, and the consistent serves of Ed and David (but no aces this time) and our persistent spiking meant mistakes began to creep into the Grammar game. We wrapped up the set quite comfortably.

In the third set, Grammar got away with a handy eight-point margin. Despite impressive hitting by Sheng and David, and Clem's many judiciously disguised tips, we had to play catch-up for the rest of the set. Little Alex was given a chance as an outside hitter, which inadvertently left us without a libero. We lost an unforgivable number of points through careless passing; Phillip was substituted into the back court to slow the bleeding, but we eventually lost the set by two points.

Determined not to let Grammar back into the game, we kept up our aggressive attack in the fourth set and were able to capitalise on Grammar's mistakes. Recruit Jamie Tao provided both strong serving and attack shots. Alex Chan showed why he is such a highly rated player with truly powerful cross-court attacks. In the end, we edged out Grammar in a tight final set. It was satisfying to come away with the win, even more so knowing that all our practice and training had paid off.

Player Profiles

Phillip Yang — Centre Blocker

As the backbone and captain of Second Grade, Phillip grudgingly dispenses wisdom to his subjects and is the never faltering iron will in the middle. When he is not blocking or spiking, Phillip is also an accomplished libero, which may sound odd, but there's no denying the truth: he's that good.

Alex Chan — Outside Hitter

Few can match Alex's enthusiasm for volleyball, and he is certainly one of the characters on the team. He assures us that he is renown for having "one of the most critical and powerful spikes in the game, which leave the opponents' mouths wide open." Alex indeed has a penetrating and effective spike, and he is a force to be reckoned with, but we expect no less from this HK Superstar.

Sam Chhor — Libero/Outside Hitter

Sam is our unflappable defence specialist — a real asset to the team, especially against bigger-hitting opponents. Stepping up from the U/16's, Sam has risen to the challenge, proving time and again that he certainly has the skills and abilities to play at grade level. As an outside hitter, Sam is always a reliable attacking option.

David Dou — Centre Blocker

An experienced and reliable member of the team, David's trademark is perhaps his flat serve, which many a foe have found too hot to handle (he holds the record with 18 consecutive points won on serve). At the net, David puts up effective blocks and wins valuable points spiking through the middle. A resourceful and valuable player.

Hughoce Feng — Setter

Hughoce is the livewire of the team, and is known to blow his top during the middle of rallies. Hughoce is a classy setter when he's on the ball, or rather when he's off the basketball. In addition to his setting, Hughoce's blocking has been impressive this season, successfully taking out the line more often than not. He also possesses a sublime, penetrating jump serve.

Kenny Huang — Outside Hitter

A shrewd tactician, Kenny has a superb all-round game. He is second to none at the net, though it is often difficult to get him fired up, thus denying the opposition the true majesty that is "The Wrath of Kenny." When in full flight, Kenny is an aggressive and potent spiker. He has also pulled off some spectacular diving saves during the season. Definitely a player to look out for next season.

Kapil Khanna — Centre Blocker

Kapil's seemingly effortless swats make blocking look so simple, to the dismay of the other blockers on the team. In attack, his height allows him to hit with impunity, so much so that the metre ball became Hughoce's release ball. Unfortunately, Kapil was unable to finish the season.

Clement Lau — Centre Blocker

Clem is a very intelligent volleyball player, and goes about the taxing business of blocking with ease and nonchalance. Clement has improved out of sight since he first took up volleyball last year; he is a reliable centre hitter in the front court and a solid passer in the back. He is a valuable member of this team.

Ed Leung — Setter

A gifted setter, Ed quietly goes about his business during every match, darting in and out, and keeping the well-drilled Second Grade attack operating smoothly. Undoubtedly Ed is an integral member of the team, and working in tandem with Hughoce, his picture-perfect sets fly straight and true, even if everything else is going awry.

Cong Tse — Outside Hitter

Cong is a powerhouse hitter — his sharp spikes and serves bludgeon and humble even the most stubborn and unyielding of defences. However, to the dismay of Mr Parker, Cong refuses to get any

elevation when he spikes, and so we can only imagine how impressive he would be if he jumps just a little higher. Another player to look out for next season.

Sheng Zhang — Outside Hitter

Armed with his Berocca cocktail, Sheng powers his way through every match and always gives it his all. Sheng is able to spike with both his left and right hands, and possesses a dynamic attack, which, along with his high-pitched war cry, instils fear into the hearts of men. The most improved player from last year, Sheng plays with both maturity and passion. His dedication and skill make him an invaluable asset. The team would like to thank Alex Le and Jamie Tao for their important contribution during the season especially with the final Grammar match: without you guys, we would have needed one more set to overcome them.

Finally, I must thank all the players of Second Grade 2004 for your dedication, for your willingness to play volleyball, and for making the season the wonderful experience that it was. Good luck in your volleyball endeavours in the future.

Phillip Yang Captain



16 Years Volleyball Back Row: Mr M.Kay (Coach), A.Le, S.Chhor, T.Ly, W.Lu. Front Row: V.Nguyen, D.Dizon, J.Tao, A.Lee, J.Luong.



15 Years Volleyball Back Row: Y.Sun, B.Lee, P.Du. Front Row: J.Shi, W.Trac, Mr M.Kay (Coach), Z.Mancenido, D.Chim.



14 Years Volleyball Back Row: S.Zhang, D.Shan, E.Lu. Second Row: Mr P.S.Parker (Coach), S.Garofano, S.Ke, M.Zhang, J.Lee, S.He, N.Abeysuriya, Mr M.Kaye (Coach). Front Row: T.Wilson, S.Wan, D.Lam, S.Dong (Captain), T.Nguyen, M.Chan, R.Mitra.

List of Officers

	Headmaster	Captain	President OBU	President P&C
1883	J. Waterhouse			
1884 (1)	J. Coates	F.W. Doak		
1885	J. Coates	G.C. Saxby		
1886	J. Coates	G.C. Saxby		
1887	J. Coates	F.W. Doak		
1888	J. Coates	P.J. Pratt		
1889	J. Coates	A.B. Davies	OLD BOYS UNION	
1890	J. Coates	J.P. Wood	Founded 13 June 1892	
1891	J. Coates	H.S. Dettmann		
1892	J. Coates	H.S. Dettmann	J. Coates	
1893	J. Coates	W.G. Forsyth	J. Coates	
1894	J. Coates	W.G. Forsyth	J. Coates	
1895	J. Coates	F.A. Todd		
1896	J. Waterhouse	F.A. Todd	The OBU lapsed in 1895, due	
		J.P.V. Madsen	to the reduced enrolment in	
1897	J. Waterhouse	F.A. Todd	the School and a subsequent	
1898	J. Waterhouse	O.U. Vonwiller	lack of former pupils to	take
1899	J. Waterhouse	O.A.A. Diethelm	up Union positions. The	OBU
		C. St. L. Willis	was reformed on 11 Aug	gust,
1900	J. Waterhouse	C.E. Weatherburn	1902 under A.M. Eedy.	
		A.M. Levick		
1901	J. Waterhouse	G.L. Tomlinson		
1902	J. Waterhouse	W.E.T. Porter	A. M. Eedy	
1903	J. Waterhouse	H.S. Utz	P. J. Pratt	
1904	J. Waterhouse	H.S. Utz	C. H. Cooke	
1905	J. Waterhouse	A.S. Walker	Prof. O. U. Vonwiller	
1906	J. Waterhouse	R.C. Blumer	R. C Forsyth	
1907	J. Waterhouse	W.R. Brown	C. M. Drew	
1908	J. Waterhouse	A.L. Buchanan	G. C Saxby	
1909	J. Waterhouse	J.G.M. Beale	C. A. Fairland	
1910 (2)	J. Waterhouse	C. G. McDonald	Prof. F. A. Todd	
1911	J. Waterhouse	O. D. Oberg	P. S. Hunt	
		J. R. Nield		
		E. J. Saxby		
1912	J. Waterhouse	F. Wootton	G. C. Saxby	
1913	J. Waterhouse	G. J. M. Saxby	A. Bohrsmann	
		W. S. Patterson		
1914	J. Waterhouse	J. Woodhouse	A. G. Henderson	
1915	J. Waterhouse	C. E. Brake	A. G. Henderson	
1916	R. J. Hinder	A. W. W. Gray	W. G. Lewes	
1917	R. J. Hinder	T. H. Henry	E. J. Hooke	
1918	R. J. Hinder	F. E. Stayner	E. J. Hooke	
1919 (3)	C. R. Smith	G. B. Morris	H. K. Prior	
1920	C. R. Smith	K. M. McCredie	H. K. Prior	
1921	C. R. Smith	S. J. Burt	L. F Watt	
1922	C. R. Smith	A. Underhill	L. F Watt	
1923	C. R. Smith	E. M. Henry	W. W. Vick	
1924	C. R. Smith	S. C. King	A. M. Eedy	

List of Officers

1925	G. C. Saxby	E. L. Pilkington	R. T. McKay	Rev H.E. Hulme
1926	G. C. Saxby	K. C. Hardy	R. T. McKay	Rev H.E. Hulme
1927	G. C. Saxby	L. W. Hepper	R. T. McKay	Rev H.E. Hulme
1928	G. C. Saxby	B. Gardiner	A. M. Eedy	Rev H.E. Hulme
				A.R. Sullivan
1929	G. C. Saxby	J . L. Still	W. J. Cleary	A.R. Sullivan
1930	G. C. Saxby	T. P. Pauling	O. A. A. Diethelm	A.R. Sullivan
1931	G. C. Saxby	E. W. Hyman	O. A. A. Diethelm	A.R. Sullivan
1932	G. C. Saxby	R. L. McKinnon	H. F. Halloran	A.R. Sullivan
1933	G. C. Saxby	A. W. Horner	S. A. Smith	A.R. Sullivan
1934	F. McMullen	F. B. Horner	S. A. Smith	A. Horner
1935	F. McMullen	J. Maxwell	C. G. McDonald	A. Horner
1936	J. H. Killip	H. Turk	C. G. McDonald	H.B. Edwards
1937	J. H. Killip	K. J. Oram	G. F. Diamond	H.B. Edwards
1938	J. H. Killip	R. Higham	Judge J. R. Nield	E.H. Oliver
1950	5.1.1.1.1.1.1.	na nghan	suges namera	H.B. Edwards
1939	J. H. Killip	N. Docker	Judge J. R. Nield	H.B. Edwards
1940	J. H. Killip	R. Loton	Dr G. Hardwicke	R.S. Betty
1940	J. H. Killip	N. McInnes	C. N. Hirst	R.S. Betty
1941	J. H. Killip	J. Dexter	C. N. Hirst	R.S. Betty
1942	J. H. Killip	E. Swinbourne	E. Pye	R.S. Betty
1943	J. H. Killip	A. Hodge	Dr G. Hardwicke	,
		5		R.S. Betty
1945	J. H. Killip	K. Cross	Dr G. Hardwicke	R.S. Betty
1946	J. H. Killip	P. Turner	Dr G. Hardwicke	R.S. Betty
1947	J. H. Killip	B. Thiering	Major D. J. Duffy	B.R. White
1948	J. H. Killip	N. Pearce	Major D. J. Duffy	B.R. White
1949	J. H. Killip	R. Morrow	A. R. Beveridge	B.R. White
1950	J. H. Killip	J. Agnew	A. R. Beveridge	B.R. White
1951	J. H. Killip	J. Thronett	K. C. Cameron	W.B. Nehl
1952	G. Barr	V. Littlewood	K. C. Cameron	W.B. Nehl
1953	G. Barr	M. Stuart	P. G. Saywell	A.G. Leroy
1954	G. Barr	C. Chamberlain	A. R. Callaway	T.W. Rushall
1955	K. J. Andrews	W. Summers	A. R. Callaway	T.W. Rushall
1956	K. J. Andrews	R. May	A. R. Callaway	T.W. Rushall
1957	K. J. Andrews	K. Rubie	Col D. J. Duffy	T.W. Rushall
1958	K. J. Andrews	P. R. Phillips	Col D. J. Duffy	T.W. Rushall
1959	K. J. Andrews	W. Young	Col D. J. Duffy	M.R. Wills
1960	K. J. Andrews	A. Cairns	A. Ferguson	M.R. Wills
1961	K. J. Andrews	J. Coleman	A. Ferguson	M.R. Wills
1962	K. J. Andrews	F. Conner	A. Ferguson	J.H. Levi
1963	K. J. Andrews	R. McKay	W. McMurray	J.H. Levi
1964	M. R. Callaghan	N. Stamell	W. McMurray	J.H. Levi
1965	M. R. Callaghan	N. Morgan	C. E. H. Rubie	W.F. Halliday
1966	M. R. Callaghan	J. Isaacs	C. E. H. Rubie	W.F. Halliday
1967	M. R. Callaghan	J. Isaacs	A. F. Deer	W.F. Halliday
1968	M. R. Callaghan	D. Luxford	A. F. Deer	R.A. Blomberg
1969	M. R. Callaghan	A. Tzannes	The Hon Sir G. Wallace	R.A. Blomberg
1970	M. R. Callaghan	J. Ehrlich	The Hon Sir G. Wallace	R.A. Blomberg
1971	M. R. Callaghan	D. Blomberg	Judge K. Torrington	R.H. Stracey
1972	M. R. Callaghan	R. Middleton	Judge K. Torrington	N.R. Frumar
1973	M. R. Callaghan	N.S. McGill	Sir B. Sugerman	N.R. Frumar
1974	G. J. Bradford	G. Hill	Sir B. Sugerman	N.R. Frumar

1975 1976	G. J. Bradford G. J. Bradford	N. Green S. Marquet	Prof. S. Livingstone Prof. S. Livingstone	Dr P.A. Musgrove Dr P.A. Musgrove
1977	R. Outterside	B. Ramsay	Prof. S. Livingstone	Dr P.A. Musgrove
1978	R. Outterside	T. Musgrove	Brig. E. S. Swinbourne	Dr P.A. Musgrove
1979	R. Outterside	G. Anderson	Brig. E. S. Swinbourne	Prof C. Phipps
1980	R. Outterside	M. Wieland	Dr P. A. Musgrove	Prof C. Phipps
1981	R. Outterside	G. Warren	Dr P. A. Musgrove	Prof C. Phipps
1982	R. Outterside	G. Webb	B. H. Pyke	Prof C. Phipps
1983	R. Outterside	M. Aikman	B. H. Pyke	Prof C. Phipps
1984	R. Outterside	M. Adams	B. H. Pyke	T. Lynam
1985	R. Outterside	M. Ward	B. H. Pyke	T. Meakin
1986	R. Outterside	C. Lynam	Dr J. M. Challen	T. Meakin
1987	R. Outterside	T. Walker	Dr J. M. Challen	T. Meakin
1988	R. Outterside	A. Magro	B. H. Pyke	T. Meakin
1989	R. Outterside	C. Aitken	M. Aikman	T. Meakin
1990	R. Outterside	G. Main	M. Aikman	T. Meakin
1991	R. Outterside	A. Abrahams	R. Mitchell	V. Moschione
1992	R.J.Stratford	J. Isaacs	R. Mitchell	V. Moschione
1993	R.J.Stratford	S. Mohideen	MajGen J. Norrie	S. Kritzler
1994	R.J.Stratford	D. Eyers	MajGen J. Norrie	P. Whyte
1995	R.J.Stratford	A. Lamb	MajGen J. Norrie	P. Whyte
1996	R.J.Stratford	P. Lyons	MajGen J. Norrie	K. Loblay
1997	R.J.Stratford	K. Robinson	MajGen J. Norrie	K. Loblay
1998	R.J.Stratford	J. Stern	MajGen J. Norrie	J. Kaldor
1999	R.J.Stratford	A. Liu	N. Scudder	D. Briggs
2000	K.A.Jaggar	J.S. Boag	N. Scudder	D. Briggs
2001	K.A.Jaggar	N. Armstrong	J. Goddard	D. Briggs
2002	K.A.Jaggar	M. Nam	J. Goddard	D. Briggs
2003	K.A. Jaggar	H. James	J. Goddard	P. Girdler
2004	K.A. Jaggar	T. Miller	J. Goddard	P. Girdler

[1] From 1884-1919 the dux was known as captain of the school.

[2] The prefect system was introduced in 1910.

From 1910 to 1919, the equivalent of the present School Captain was called the Senior Prefect. [3] The title of Senior Prefect was changed to Captain in 1920.



Year 7 2004

Back Row: M.Ling, J.Park, M.Feng, S.Zhang, T.Wilson, L.Appleton, A.Kwok, C.Reeves, N.Ridges, A.Clune, M.Lau, D.Peng, A.Krishnan, M.Wong, B.Lau, L.Brown, K.Mcpherson. Seventh Row: R.Mitra, J.Wong, E.Martini, B.Lu, N.Wong, R.Feng, R.Lu, T.Tran, B.Yang, J.Chen, F.Lee, J.Nguyen, N.Dimitropoulos, M.Kayes, S.Wan, N.Pednekar, S.Ke, E.Lu, A.Alam, J.Young, S.Binns, G.Astafiev, J.Wong Sixth Row: P.Roessler-Holgate, R.Chen, S.Shimada, J.Lieu, D.Lo, T.Harvey, J.Eriksson, T.Choudhury, S.Dong, R.Ahmad, J.Santoso, H.Yu, C.Chen, W.Pan, W.Lin, R.Shenoy, D.Stojanovic, L.Png, A.Richards, J.Chen, M.Mikha, R.Saggar. Fifth Row: D.Hu, N.Huang, J.Wachsmann, A.Tsaillis, A.Sharma, M.Osinki, M.Chan, H.Li, S.Zhang, J.Wang, K.Lim, J.Cao, H.Richards, M.Yiu, J.Chow, M.Zhang, A.Tran, T.Nguyen, C.Katsikaros, S.He, K.Nguyen, J.Byrnes, J.Tassell. Fourth Row: C.Chen, W.Ma, A.Hatle, Z.Yu, J.Bell, M.Tang, N.Spoljaric, W.Szet, D.Fan, D.Nam, A.Belokopytov, D.Tran, L.Teng, B.Jiang, V.Ung, S.Lee, J.Lee, C.Evans, A.Hopkins, G.Zhang, A.Li, N.Abeyzuria Third Row: J.Young, V.Lien, L.Tran, V.Zhang, V.Khou, C.Liu, H.Huh, M.Zhou, B.Greenslade, W.Zhang, T.Burston, V.Lim, J.Ireland, Y.Chan, T.Gao, M.Tong, J.Qiu, D.Hi, C.Mak, M.Zhang, S.Huda, R.Lee, A.Xie. Second Row: D.Wu, M.Sin, P.Hung, S.Jacob, T.Siu, D.Lam, A.Brown, X.Quah, A.Tran, S.Lei, P.Kurts, T.Yu, S.Burnham, B.Apolonio, C.Peng, P.Desmond, J.Li, A.Ang, B.Diep, R.Huynh, T.Zhong, J.Chen. Front Row: S.Cheng, T.Lim, K.Lo, R.Kashyap, H.Neo, N.Lindeback, M.Lucchitti, D.Andonovski, M.Chan, B.Esaev, I.Yuan, V.Lam, D.Nguyen, M.Nguyen, J.Tan, A.Jurisevic, S.Chin, M.Din, D.Lambert, G.Cosman, S.Garofano, S.Hoang, J.Chan.



Year 12 2004

Back Row: H.Zhou, F.Ly, A.Elia, K.Axelrod, O.Pickles, J.Kim, E.Ren, J.Stott, K.Dickson, W.T.Ginn, B.Dubovsky, K.Khanna, A.Pluis, T.Miller (Captain), S.Chadwick, O.Ware, M.Shiner, T.Neville, Y.Zhang, L.Levinzon, L.Yu, J.Chan, B.Mitchell, A.Jacques, B.Glass, O.Taaffe. Sixth Row: T.Liu, A.Pang, P.Yang, E.Ho, A.McKenzie, K.Shanthikumar, E.Hanzmann-Johnson, B.Friis-O'Toole, T.Hoare, D.Hoare, B.Shores, E.Harkins, D.Wodak, L.Bennett, C.Conway, T.Polis, D.Park, W.Logge, D.Byrne, M.Alam, N.Poranek, W.Huang, R.Girdler, C.Shuttleworth, J.Kim, J.Tan. Fifth Row: K.Sevinc, N.Sedaghat, G.Krastev, V.Dong, S.Chen, A.Montemayor, M.Shen, D.Liu, K.Chen, D.Huynh, H.Srinath, H.Feng, A.Chan, B.Au, M.Hayes, H.Leung, A.Khoo, M.Dwyer, C.Shiel, M.Wang, S.Hamid, T.Norrie, K.Zhang, N.Madhavan, S.Nalavenkata, J.Yang, S.Pak. Fourth Row: D.Selim, X.Wu, G.Carroll, T.Lung (Senior Prefect), J.Rosenzveig-Holland, K.Leung, J.Gerofi, H.Ye, R.Zhou, S.Zhang, N.Dong, T.Chow, A.Sun, I.Paniyan Duwage, K.Kwong, A.Chen, D.Xue, B.Eskander, J.Vongratsavai, O.Lee, R.Jin, H.Choi, R.Banerjee, P.Chen, S.D'Souza, V.Guruparan. Third Row: T.Wu, P.S.Xin, W.Luong, W.Zhu, A.Kelly, D.Wang, S.Madorski, R.Goldstein, P.Godfrey, N.Nadarajamoorthy, S.Samarasinghe, S.Kulupana, A.Saxena, R.Emmanuel, A.Uthayachandran, N.Raveendiran, R.Badethalav, N.P.Chandrala, M.Zgliniecki, B.Lee, H.Zhang, M.Poon, H.Chin, J.Kok, K.Moltchanski, L.Cheah, J.Chen. Second Row: M.Cosman, B.Mohan, C.Liu, P.Loi, J.Tsang, J.Lee, T.Lau, C.Lau, A.Stone, J.Shen, T.Wang, D.Yeo, J.Yang, G.Tse, W.To, A.Wong, S.Lau, C.Yang, T.Lei, T.Ruen, I.Thangasamy, K.Illangakoon, R.Muralitharan, P.Thai. Front Row: J.Shen, M.Wong, N.Jayarathna, A.Rao, A.Liu, I.Guo, J.Chen, M.Liang, J.Wu, M.Lee, J.Eusebio, V.Harrish, K.Y.Wong, E.Siu, P.Liang, R.Yeung, A.Lo, A.Lee, T.Ahmed, I.Hossain, M.Ediriweera, R.Cherian, R.Ghance, C.Hua, A.Alsamail, S.Ahmed, J.Van.